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Risk factors which could cause actual results to differ from our expectations and which could negatively impact our financial
condition and results of operations are discussed below and elsewhere in this report. Additional risks and uncertainties not
presently known to us or that are currently not believed to be significant to our business may also affect our actual results and
could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations. If any of the risks or uncertainties described below or any
additional risks and uncertainties actually occur, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially
and adversely affected. Business, Strategic, and Reputational Risks A failure of, or interruption in, the communications and
information systems on which we rely to conduct our business could adversely affect our revenues and profitability. We rely
heavily upon communications and information systems to conduct our business. Although we have built a level of redundancy
into our information technology infrastructure and update our business continuity plan annually, any failure or interruption of
our information systems, or the third- party information systems on which we rely, as a result of inadequate or failed processes
or systems, human errors or external events, could adversely affect our digital- based operations and slow or temporarily halt the
processing of applications, loan servicing, deposit- related transactions, and our general banking operations. In addition, our
communication and information systems may present security risks and could be susceptible to hacking or other unauthorized
access. The occurrence of any of these events could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations. Economic conditions have affected and could continue to adversely affect our revenues and profits. Our
success depends, to a certain extent, upon favorable economic and political conditions, local and national, as well as
governmental monetary policies. Conditions such as recession, unemployment, trade wars and tariffs, changes in interest rates,
inflation, money supply, and other factors beyond the Company’ s control may adversely affect deposit levels, costs, loan
demand and / or asset quality and, therefore, our earnings. Further, any economic downturn could result in financial stress on our
borrowers that would adversely affect consumer confidence, a reduction in general business activity and increased market
volatility. The resulting economic pressure on consumers and businesses and the lack of confidence in the financial markets
could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and stock price. Our ability to properly assess the
creditworthiness of our customers and to estimate the losses inherent in our credit exposure would be made more complex by
difficult or rapidly changing market and economic conditions. Accordingly, if market conditions worsen, we may experience
increases in foreclosures, delinquencies, net charge- offs and customer bankruptcies, as well as more restricted access to funds.
The competitive nature of the banking and financial services industry could negatively affect our ability to increase or maintain
our market share and retain long- term profitability. Competition in the banking and financial services industry is strong. We
compete with commercial banks, savings institutions, credit unions, finance companies, fintechs, mutual funds, insurance
companles and securities brokerage and 1nvestment bankrng ﬁrms operatrng locally and natlonwrde Fand-may-soon-eompete

Some of our competrtors have greater ﬁafne—ﬁnancral resources, name recognition and market presence than we do and offer
certain services that we do not or cannot provide . Further, our credit union competitors benefit from competitive
advantages, including the credit union exemption from paying federal income tax and can, therefore, more aggressively
price many products and services . [n addition, larger competitors may be able to price loans and deposits more aggressively
than we do, which could affect our ability to increase our market share and remain profitable on a long- term basis. Negative
developments in the banking industry could adversely affect our current and future business operations and financial condition.
Bank failures and related negative media attention have caused significant market trading volatility among publicly traded bank
and financial holding companies, particularly for regional and community banks. These developments have negatively impacted
customer confidence in smaller banks, which could prompt customers to move their deposits to larger financial institutions.
Further competition for and costs of deposns has srmllarly 1ncreased puttrng pressure on net interest margln %&e—From time

v also-antietpate 1ncreased regulatory scrutiny — in the
course of routine examinations and otherwise — and new regulations d1rected towards banks of similar size to the Bank designed
to respond to reeent-negative developments in the banking industry and / or changing regulatory focus, all of which may
increase our costs of doing business and reduce our profitability. Among other things, there may be increased focus by both
regulators and investors on deposit composition, the level of uninsured deposits, brokered deposits, unrealized losses in
securities portfolios, liquidity, CRE composition and concentration, capital, third party risk management and general oversight
and control of the foregoing. The Bank could face increased scrutiny or be viewed as higher risk by regulators and / or the
investor community due to changing regulatory focus and / or the failures of other financial institutions, which could negatively
affect our future results of operations and financial condition. Reputational risk and social factors may negatively affect us. Our
ability to attract and retain customers is highly dependent upon other external perceptions of our business practices and financial
condition. Adverse perceptions could damage our reputation to a level that could lead to difficulties in generating and
maintaining lending and deposit relationships and accessing equity or credit markets, as well as increased regulatory scrutiny of
our business. Adverse developments or perceptions regarding the business practices or financial condition of our competitors, or
our industry as a whole, may also indirectly adversely affect our reputation. In addition, adverse reputational developments with
respect to third parties with whom we have important relationships may negatively affect our reputation. All of the above factors
may result in greater regulatory and / or legislative scrutiny, which may lead to laws or regulations that may change or constrain



the manner in which we engage with our customers and the products we offer and may also increase our litigation risk. If these
risks were to materialize, they could negatively affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Societal,
legislative and regulatory responses to environmental, social and governance (ESG) concerns, and anti ESG concerns, as
well as diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI) and anti- DEI concerns, could adversely affect our business and
performance, including indirectly through impacts on our customers. Our business faces increasing public, investor,
activist, legislative and regulatory scrutiny related to ESG and anti- ESG, DEI and anti- DEI developments. We risk
damage to our brand and reputation in certain sectors if we fail to act in response to ESG concerns, such as diversity,
equity and inclusion, environmental stewardship, human capital management, support for our local communities,
corporate governance and transparency, or fail to consider ESG factors in our business operations. Concerns over the
long- term impacts of climate change have led and will likely continue to lead to global governmental efforts to mitigate
those impacts. Consumers and businesses also may change their behavior and operations as a result of these concerns.
The Company and its customers may need to respond to new laws and regulations as well as consumer and business
preferences resulting from climate change concerns. We and our customers may face cost increases, asset value
reductions and operating process changes. The impact on our customers will likely vary depending on their specific
circumstances, including a significant presence in areas that are vulnerable to natural and man- made disasters that may
be exacerbated by climate change, or reliance upon or a role in carbon intensive activities. Among the impacts to the
Company could be a drop in demand for our products and services, particularly in certain sectors. In addition, we could
face reductions in creditworthiness on the part of some customers or in the value of assets securing loans. Our efforts to
take these risks into account may not be effective in protecting us from the negative impact of new laws and regulations
or changes in consumer or business behavior. In response to ESG developments (including, in particular DEI initiatives),
there are increasing instances of anti- ESG legislation and anti- DEI executive orders, adverse media coverage,
regulation, and litigation that could have unintended impacts on ordinary banking operations and increase litigation or
reputational risk related to actions we choose to take and impact the results of our operations. If legislatures in the states
in which we operate adopt legislation intended to protect certain industries by limiting or prohibiting consideration of
business and industry factors in lending activities, certain portions of our lending operations may be impacted. New lines
of business, and new products and services, may result in exposure to new risks; and the value and earnings related to existing
lines of business are subject to market conditions. The Bank has introduced, and in the future, may introduce new products and
services to differing markets either alone or in conjunction with third parties, including programs and products introduced as part
of our fintech partnership initiatives. New lines of business, products or services could have a significant impact on the
effectiveness of our system of internal controls or the controls of third parties and could reduce our revenues and potentially
generate losses. There are material inherent risks and uncertainties associated with offering new products and services,
especially when new markets are not fully developed or when the laws and regulations regarding a new product are not mature.
New products and services, or entrance into new markets, are carefully scrutinized by regulatory agencies and may require
substantial time, resources and capital, and profitability targets may not be achieved. Factors outside of our control, such as
developing laws and regulations, regulatory orders, competitive product offerings and changes in commercial and consumer
demand for products or services may also materially impact the successful launch and implementation of new products or
services. Failure to manage these risks, or failure of any product or service offerings to be successful and profitable, could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Significant external events, including continued the
spread or outbreak of a highly contagious disease, could adversely affect our business and results of operations. We could
experience other external events such as severe weather, natural disasters, acts of war, terrorism , civil unrest or widespread
public health issues, including sueh-as-the-COVID-—9-pandemie-pandemics or another-epidemics caused by highly contagious
or infectious disease, that could impair the ability of our customers to repay outstanding loans; impair the value of collateral, if
any, securing outstanding loans; negatively impact our deposit base, loan originations or general demand for our services; cause
significant property damage; result in loss of revenue or cause us to incur additional expenses or losses. We could also be
adversely affected if key personnel or a significant number of employees were to become unavailable due to external events
affecting the places they live. Although we have business continuity plans and other safeguards in place, there is no assurance
that such plans and safeguards will completely mitigate the adverse impacts of any significant external event. The occurrence or
continuation of any such event could materially adversely impact our business, our ability to provide our services, demand for
our services, asset quality, financial condition and results of operations. Anti- takeover provisions could negatively impact our
shareholders. Provisions of Indiana law and provisions of our articles of incorporation could make it more difficult for a third
party to acquire control of us or have the effect of discouraging a third party from attempting to acquire control of us. We are
subject to certain anti- takeover provisions under the Indiana Business Corporation Law. Additionally, our articles of
incorporation authorize our Board of Directors to issue one or more classes or series of preferred stock without shareholder
approval and such preferred stock could be issued as a defensive measure in response to a takeover proposal. Although these
provisions do not preclude a takeover, they may have the effect of discouraging, delaying or deferring a tender offer or takeover
attempt that a shareholder might consider in his or her best interest, including those attempts that might result in a premium over
the market price of our common stock. Such provisions will also render the removal of the Board of Directors and of
management more difficult and, therefore, may serve to perpetuate current management. These provisions could potentially
adversely affect the market price of our common stock. Credit Risks Our commercial loan portfolio exposes us to higher credit
risks than residential real estate loans, including risks relating to the success of the underlying business and conditions in the
market or the economy and concentrations in our commercial loan portfolio. Our commercial loans totaled $ 3. 6-3 billion, or 7§
80 . 3-2 % of our total loan portfolio as of December 31, 2623-2024 . These loans generally involve higher credit risks than
residential real estate loans and are dependent upon our lenders and service providers maintaining close relationships with the



borrowers. Payments on these loans are often dependent upon the successful operation and management of the underlying
business or assets, and repayment of such loans may be influenced to a great extent by conditions in the market or the economy.
Commercial loans typically involve larger loan balances than residential real estate loans and could lead to concentration risks
within our commercial loan portfolio. In addition, our C & I, healthcare finance, franchise finance and small business loans have
primarily been extended to small —to medium- sized businesses that generally have fewer financial resources in terms of capital
or borrowing capacity than larger entities. Our failure to manage this commercial loan growth and the related risks could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, with respect to CRE, federal
and state banking regulators are examining CRE lending activity with heightened scrutiny and may require banks with higher
levels of CRE loans to implement more stringent underwriting, internal controls, risk management policies and portfolio stress
testing, as well as possibly higher levels of allowances for credit losses and capital levels as a result of CRE lending growth and
exposures. If we were required to maintain higher levels of capital than we would otherwise be expected to maintain, our ability
to leverage our capital may be limited, and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects. Portions of our commercial lending activities are geographically concentrated in Central Indiana and
adjacent markets, and changes in local economic conditions may impact their performance. We offer our consumer lending as
well as construction, investor CRE, public finance, healthcare finance, franchise finance, small business lending and single
tenant financing products and services throughout the United States. However, we serve €RE-and-C & | and certain CRE
borrowers primarily in Central Indiana and adjacent markets. Accordingly, the performance of our CRE and C & I lending
depends upon demographic and economic conditions in those regions. The profitability of our CRE and C & I loan portfolio
may be impacted by changes in those conditions. Additionally, unfavorable local economic conditions could reduce or limit the
growth rate of our CRE and C & I loan portfolios for a significant period of time, or otherwise decrease the ability of those
borrowers to repay their loans, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. We are subject to risks arising from conditions in the real estate market, as a significant portion of our loans are
secured by real estate. At December 31, 2823-2024 , approximately 45-49 . 6-8 % of our loans held for investment portfolio was
comprised of commercial, residential mortgage and home equity loans with real estate as the primary component of collateral.
Our real estate lending activities, and our exposure to fluctuations in real estate collateral values, are significant and may
increase as our assets increase. The market value of real estate can fluctuate significantly in a relatively short period of time as a
result of market conditions in the geographic area in which the real estate is located; in response to factors such as economic
downturns and changes in the economic health of industries heavily concentrated in a particular area; and in response to changes
in market interest rates, which influence capitalization rates used to value revenue- generating commercial real estate. If the
value of real estate serving as collateral for our loans declines materially, a significant part of our loan portfolio could become
under- collateralized and losses incurred upon borrower defaults would increase. Conditions in certain segments of the real
estate industry, including homebuilding, lot development and mortgage lending, may have an effect on values of real estate
pledged as collateral for our loans. The inability of purchasers of real estate, including residential real estate, to obtain financing
may weaken the financial condition of our borrowers who are dependent on the sale or refinancing of property to repay their
loans. Changes in the economic health of certain industries can have a significant impact on other sectors or industries which are
directly or indirectly associated with those industries, and may impact the value of real estate in areas where such industries are
concentrated. If our allowance for credit losses is not sufficient to cover actual credit losses, our earnings could decrease. We
maintain an allowance for credit losses (“ ACL ) on loans and held- to- maturity debt securities. The ACL represents the Bank’
s best estimate of probable losses within the existing portfolio of loans and held- to- maturity debt securities. Additionally,
related to off- balance- sheet credit exposures, we maintain a liability reserve account reported as an other liability in our balance
sheet. The amount of each allowance account represents management' s best estimate of current expected credit losses on these
financial instruments considering available information, from internal and external sources, relevant to assessing exposure to
credit loss over the contractual term of the instrument. Relevant available information includes historical credit loss experience,
current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. As a result, the determination of the appropriate level of the ACL
inherently involves a high degree of subjectivity and requires us to make significant estimates related to current and expected
future credit risks and trends, all of which may undergo material changes. Continuing deterioration in economic conditions
affecting borrowers; new information regarding existing loans and loan commitments; and identification of additional problem
loans, ratings down- grades and other factors, both within and outside of our control, may require an increase in the ACL. In
addition, if any charge- offs related to loans or off- balance sheet credit exposures in future periods exceed our ACL or reserve
for off- balance sheet credit exposures, we will need to recognize additional provision for credit losses. Material additions to the
ACL would decrease our net income and may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and
capital. Market, Interest Rate, and Liquidity Risks The market value of some of our investments could decline and adversely
affect our financial position. In assessing the impairment of investment securities, we consider the length of time and extent to
which the fair value has been less than cost, the financial condition and near- term prospects of the issuers, whether the market
decline was affected by macroeconomic conditions and whether we have the intent to sell the security or will be required to sell
the security before its anticipated recovery. We also use economic models to assist in the valuation of some of our investment
securities. If our investment securities experience a decline in value, we would need to determine whether we would be required
to record a write- down of the investment and a corresponding charge to our earnings. Changes in interest rates could adversely
affect the Company’ s results of operations and financial condition. The Company’ s earnings depend substantially on the
Company’ s interest rate spread, which is the difference between (i) the rates the Bank earns on loans, securities, and other
earning assets and (ii) the interest rates the Bank pays on deposits and other borrowings, and its costs of capital. These rates are
highly sensitive to many factors beyond the Company’ s control, including general economic conditions and the policies of
various governmental and regulatory authorities. If market interest rates eentintete-rise, especially at the pace they did in 2022



and 2023, the Company will eentire-te-face competitive pressure to increase the rates the Bank pays on deposits, which could
negatrvely affect net interest margrn In addition, the 1nterest rate on the Company s 6-0-%Fixed—to-—Floating Rate

eempaﬂy—s—other subordrnated ﬂetes-debt have, and are scheduled to change in 2025 and 2026 fespeetwel-y—from ﬁxed to
floating rates . These changes could result in a decrease of net interest income. If market interest rates decline, the Bank could
experience fixed- rate loan prepayments and higher investment portfolio cash flows, resulting in a lower reinvestment yield on
earning assets. Earnrngs can also be impacted by the spread between short term and long- term market interest rates —Fhe

er—resu-l-ts—e-ﬁepefat—teﬂs— The Bank may not be able to pay us drvrdends The abrhty of the Bank to pay drvrdends to us is hrnlted
by state and federal law and depends generally on the Bank’ s ability to generate net income. If we are unable to comply with
applicable provisions of these statutes and regulations, the Bank may not be able to pay dividends to us, we may not be able to
pay dividends on our outstanding common stock and our ability to service our debt may be materially impaired. We may need
additional funding resources in the future, and these funding resources may not be available when needed or at all, without
which our financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be materially impaired. As a part of our liquidity
management, we use a number of funding sources in addition to core deposit growth and repayments and maturities of loans and
investments. These sources include brokered deposits and FHLB advances. Further, in the past, we have raised additional capital
in the public debt and equity markets to support balance sheet growth, refinance existing debt obligations, or explore strategic
alternatives which may include additional asset, deposit or revenue generation channels. Our ability to source deposits and raise
future capital, if needed, will depend upon our financial performance and conditions in the capital markets, as well as economic
conditions generally. Accordingly, such financing may not be available to us on acceptable terms or at all. If we cannot raise
additional capital when needed, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. The Company’ s stock price can be volatile. The Company’ s stock price can fluctuate widely in response to a
variety of factors, including without limitation: actual or anticipated variations in the Company’ s quarterly operating results;
recommendations by securities analysts; significant acquisitions or business combinations; strategic partnerships, joint ventures
or capital commitments; operating and stock price performance of other companies that investors deem comparable to the
Company; new technology used or services offered by the Company’ s competitors; news reports relating to trends, concerns
and other issues in the banking and financial services industry; and changes in government regulations. General market
fluctuations, industry factors and general economic and political conditions and events, including terrorist attacks, increased
inflation, economic slowdowns or recessions, interest rate changes, credit loss trends or currency fluctuations, could also cause
the Company’ s stock price to decrease, regardless of the Company’ s operating results. Operational Risks Because our business
is highly dependent on technology that is subject to rapid change and transformation, we are subject to risks of obsolescence.
The Bank conducts its deposit gathering activities and a portion of its lending activities through digital channels. The financial
services industry is undergoing rapid technological change, and we face constant evolution of customer demand for technology-
driven financial and banking products and services. Many of our competitors have substantially greater resources to invest in
technological improvement and product development, marketing and implementation. Any failure to successfully keep pace
with and fund technological innovation t-the-markets-tn-whieh-we-eempete-could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. We rely on our management team and could be adversely affected by the
unexpected loss of key officers. Our future success and profitability are substantially dependent upon our management and the
abilities of our senior executives. We believe that our future results will also depend in part upon our ability to attract and retain
highly skilled and qualified management. Competition for senior personnel is intense, and we may not be successful in
attractrng and retarnrng such personnel Changes in key personnel and therr responsrbrhtres may be drsruptrve to our busrness

etueeh-ref—exeeﬂt-r-ve-efﬁeer—could have a materral adverse effect on our busrness frnancral condrtron and results of operatrons A
failure in or breach of our operational or security systems or infrastructure, or those of our third- party vendors and other service
providers, including as a result of cyber- attacks, could disrupt our business and lead to unauthorized disclosure of customers’
personal information, theft or misuse of confidential or proprietary information, damage to our reputation, and increases in our
costs or financial losses. We depend upon our ability to process, record and monitor our client transactions on a continuous
basis. As customer, public and regulatory expectations regarding data privacy and information security have increased, our
operational systems and infrastructure must continue to be safeguarded and monitored for potential failures, disruptions and
breakdowns. Our business, financial, accounting and data processing systems, or other operating systems and facilities, may
stop operating properly or become disabled or damaged as a result of a number of factors, including events that are wholly or



partially beyond our control. For example, there could be electrical or telecommunications outages; natural disasters such as
earthquakes, tornadoes and hurricanes; pandemics; events arising from local or larger- scale political or social matters, including
terrorist acts; and, as described below, cyber- attacks. Although we have business continuity plans and other safeguards in place,
our business operations may be adversely affected by significant and widespread disruption to our physical infrastructure or
operating systems that support our business. Information security risks for financial institutions such as ours have generally
increased in recent years in part because of the proliferation of new technologies, the use of digital technologies to conduct
financial transactions, and the increased sophistication and activities of organized crime, hackers, terrorists, activists and other
external parties. As noted above, our operations rely on the secure processing, transmission and storage of confidential
information in our computer systems and networks. Our business relies on eur-digital technologies, computer and email
systems, software and networks to conduct its operations. In addition, to access our products and services, our customers may
use smartphones, tablets, personal computers and other mobile devices that are beyond our control systems. Although we have
information security procedures and controls in place, our technologies, systems, networks and our customers’ devices may
become the target of cyber- attacks or information security breaches that could result in the unauthorized release, gathering,
monitoring, misuse, loss or destruction of our or our customers’ confidential, proprietary and other information, or otherwise
disrupt our or our customers’ or other third parties’ business operations. Third parties with whom we do business or that
facilitate our business activities, including financial intermediaries or vendors that provide services or security solutions for our
operations, could also be sources of operational and information security risk to us, including from breakdowns or failures of
their own systems or capacity constraints. Although to date we have not experienced any material losses relating to cyber-
attacks or other information security breaches, like other companies, we and our vendors face a wide range of ongoing cyber
threats that include phishing emails and social engineering schemes, ransomware threats, and criminal re- use of credentials sold
on the dark web. There can be no assurance that we will not suffer such material losses in the future. Our risk and exposure to
these matters remains heightened because of the evolving nature of these threats. As a result, cybersecurity and the continued
development and enhancement of our controls, processes and practices designed to protect our systems, computers, software,
company data, networks, and customer information from attack, damage or unauthorized access remain a focus for us. As
threats continue to evolve, we may be required to expend additional resources to continue to modify or enhance our protective
measures or to investigate and remediate information security vulnerabilities. Disruptions or failures in the physical
infrastructure or operating systems that support our business and clients, or cyber- attacks or security breaches of the networks,
systems or devices that our clients use to access our products and services, could result in client attrition, regulatory fines,
penalties or intervention, breach investigation and notification expenses, reputational damage, claims or litigation,
reimbursement or other compensation costs and / or additional compliance costs, any of which could materially and adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Qur business may be adversely affected by fraud. As a
financial institution, we are inherently exposed to risk in the form of theft and other fraudulent activities by customers,
employees, or other third parties targeting us or our customers or data. Such activity may take many forms, including
check fraud, electronic fraud, wire fraud, phishing, social engineering, spoofing, and other dishonest acts. Although we
devote substantial resources to maintaining effective policies and internal controls to identify and prevent such incidents,
given the increasing sophistication of possible perpetrators, we may experience financial losses or reputational harm as a
result of fraud. Further, as a result of the increased sophistication of fraud activity, we continue to invest in systems,
resources, and controls to detect and prevent fraud. This will result in continued ongoing investments in the future. Lcgal
and Regulatory Risks We operate in a highly regulated environment, which could restrain our growth and profitability. We are
subject to extensive laws and regulations that govern almost all aspects of our operations. These laws and regulations, and the
supervisory framework that oversees the administration of these laws and regulations, are primarily intended to protect
depositors, the DIF, the-government-and the banking system as a whole, and not shareholders. These laws and regulations,
among other matters, affect our lending practices, capital structure, investment practices, dividend policy, operations and
growth. Compliance with the myriad laws and regulations applicable to our organization can be difficult and costly. In addition,
these laws, regulations and policies are subject to continual review by governmental authorities, and changes to these laws,
regulations and policies, including changes in interpretation, implementation, or priorities in enforcement of these laws,
regulations and policies, could affect us in substantial and unpredictable ways and often impose additional compliance costs .
The application of more stringent capital requirements for both the Company and the Bank could, among other things,
result in lower returns on equity, require the raising of additional capital, and / or result in regulatory actions
constraining us from paying dividends or repurchasing shares if we were to be unable to comply with such requirements,
any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business and profitability . Further, any new laws, rules and
regulations could make compliance more difficult or expensive. All of these laws and regulations, and the supervisory
framework applicable to our industry, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. Federal and state regulators periodically examine our business and we may be required to remediate adverse
examination findings. The Federal Reserve, the FDIC and the DFI periodically examine our business, including our compliance
with laws and regulations. If, as a result of an examination, a federal or state banking agency were to determine that our financial
condition, capital resources, asset quality, earnings prospects, management, liquidity or other aspects of any of our operations
had become unsatisfactory, or that we were in violation of any law or regulation, it may take a number of different remedial
actions as it deems appropriate. These actions include the power to enjoin “ unsafe or unsound * practices, to require action to
correct any conditions resulting from any violation or practice, to commence a formal or informal enforcement action or issue an
administrative order that can be judicially enforced, to direct an increase in our capital, to restrict our growth, to assess civil
monetary penalties against our officers or directors, to remove officers and directors and, if it is concluded that such conditions
cannot be corrected or there is an imminent risk of loss to depositors, to terminate our deposit insurance and place us into



receivership or conservatorship. Anyregutatory-Regulatory action against us could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. Our FDIC deposit insurance premiums and assessments may increase,
which would reduce our profitability. The deposits of the Bank are insured by the FDIC up to legal limits and, accordingly,
subject to the payment of FDIC deposit insurance assessments. The Bank’ s regular assessments are determined by its risk
classification, whrch is based ona number of factors, mCludlng regulatory caprtal levels asset growth and asset quallty -I-I-lgh

—In order to maintain a strong fundrng posrtlon and
restore the reserve ratios of the DIF, the FDIC may increase deposit insurance assessment rates and may charge a special
assessment to #al-FDIC- insured financial institutions. Further increases in assessment rates or special assessments may occur in
the future, especially if there are significant additional financial institution failures. Any future special assessments, increases in
assessment rates or required prepayments in FDIC insurance premiums could reduce our profitability or limit our ability to
pursue certain business opportunmes which could have a materral adverse effect on our busrness ﬁnancral condrtron and results
of operatrons - of regtila aptta neetrtattand-a ; aptta

-ofw a-matertal-o an : . We are subject to numerous laws designed
to protect consumers, 1nclud1ng the CRA and fair lending laws, and failure to comply with these laws could lead to a wide
variety of sanctions. The CRA, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair Housing Act and other fair lending laws and
regulations impose nondiscriminatory lending requirements on financial institutions. The Department of Justice and other
federal agencies are responsible for enforcing these laws and regulations. A successful regulatory challenge to an institution’ s
performance under the CRA or fair lending laws and regulations could result in a wide variety of sanctions, including damages
and civil money penalties, injunctive relief, restrictions on mergers and acquisitions activity, restrictions on expansion and
restrictions on entering new business lines. Private parties may also have the ability to challenge an institution’ s performance
under fair lending laws in private class action litigation. Such actions could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. We are subject to evolving and expensive regulations and requirements. Our failure
to adhere to these requirements or the failure or circumvention of our controls and procedures could seriously harm our business.
We are subject to extensive regulation as a financial institution and are also required to follow the corporate governance and
financial reporting practices and policies required of a company whose stock is registered under the Exchange Act and listed on
the Nasdaq Global Select Market. Compliance with these requirements means we incur significant legal, accounting and other
expenses. Compliance also requires a significant diversion of management time and attention, particularly with regard to
disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting. Although we have reviewed, and will continue
to review, our disclosure controls and procedures in order to determine whether they are effective, our controls and procedures
may not be able to prevent errors or frauds— fraud in the future. Faulty judgments, simple errors or mistakes, or the failure of
our personnel to adhere to established controls and procedures may make it difficult for us to ensure that the objectives of the
control system will be met. A failure of our controls and procedures to detect other than inconsequential errors or fraud could
seriously harm our business and results of operations. We face risk under the BSA and other anti- money laundering statutes and
regulations, as well as general fund transfer and payments- related risk. The BSA, the USA PATRIOT Act and other laws and
regulations require financial institutions, among other duties, to institute and maintain an effective anti- money laundering
program and file suspicious activity and currency transaction reports as appropriate. The federal Financial Crimes Enforcement
Network is authorized to impose significant civil money penalties for violations of those requirements and has engaged in
coordinated enforcement efforts with the individual federal banking regulators, as well as the U. S. Department of Justice, Drug
Enforcement Administration and Internal Revenue Service. We are also subject to increased scrutiny of compliance with the
rules enforced by the OFAC. If our policies, procedures and systems are deemed deficient, we would be subject to liability,
including fines and regulatory actions, which may include restrictions on our ability to pay dividends and the necessity to obtain
regulatory approvals to proceed with certain aspects of our business plan, including our acquisition plans. Failure to maintain
and implement adequate programs to combat money laundering and terrorist financing could also have serious reputational
consequences for us. Any of these results could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. In addition, financial institutions, including ourselves, bear fund transfer risks of different types which result from
large transaction volumes and large dollar amounts of incoming and outgoing money transfers. Loss exposure may result if
money is transferred from the Bank before it is received, or legal rights to reclaim monies transferred are asserted. Such
exposure results from payments which are made to merchants for payment clearing, while customers have statutory periods to
reverse their payments. It also results from funds transfers made prior to receipt of offsetting funds, as accommodations to
customers. Transfers could also be made in error. Additionally, as with other financial institutions, we may incur legal liability
or reputational risk, if we unknowingly process payments for companies in violation of money laundering laws or regulations or
immoral activities. Our introduction of new products and programs in partnership with fintechs has increased account and
transaction volume at the Bank and thereby increased the foregoing risks, the results of which could have a material adverse



effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. We may be subject to potential liability and business risk
from actions by our regulators related to supervision of third parties. Our regulators er-and auditors have required us to increase
the level and manner of our oversight of the-third parties shieh-that provide marketing and other services through which we
offer products and services, whether in connection with our introduction of new programs and products, or otherwise. Although
we have significant compliance staff and have used outside consultants, our internal and external compliance examiners
continually evaluate our practices and must be satisfied with the results of our third- party oversight activities. We cannot assure
you that we will satisfy all related requirements. Not maintaining a risk and compliance management system which is deemed
adequate could result in sanctions or other action against the Bank. Our ongoing review and analysis of our compliance
management system and implementation of any changes resulting from that review and analysis will likely result in increased
non- interest expense. Federal banking laws limit the acquisition, ownership and repurchase of our common stock. Because we
are a bank holding company, any purchaser of certain specified amounts of our common stock may be required to file a notice
with or obtain the approval of the Federal Reserve under the BHCA, as amended, and the Change in Bank Control Act of 1978,
as amended. Specifically, under regulations adopted by the Federal Reserve, (1) any other bank holding company may be
required to obtain the approval of the Federal Reserve before acquiring 5 % or more of our common stock and (2) any person
may be 1equlred to file a notice with dnd not be dlsapprox ed by the Federal Reserve to acquire 10 %emefe—e—ﬁeﬁreeﬂaﬂaeﬁ
wib t d-notb d % or more of our
common stock. Fmther recently enacted ldV\ s impose an excise tax on a publlc company’ s 1e|3u1chase of its own stock.
Changes in accounting policies or in accounting standards could materially affect how we report our financial condition
and results of operations. There—- The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U. S generally
accepted accounting principles (“ GAAP ”), including the accounting rules and regulations of the SEC and the FASB,
requires management to make significant estimates and assumptions that impact our financial statements by affecting
the value of our assets or liabilities and results of operations. Some of our accounting policies arc diseussions-and-proposed
fegistation-critical because they require management to inerease-make difficult, subjective and complex judgments about
matters that exeise-tax-are inherently uncertain and because materially different amounts may be reported if different
estimates or assumptions are used . fnereases-in-If such estimates or assumptions underlying our financial statements are
incorrect, our financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected. From time to time, the exetse-tax
orFASB and the SEC change the financial accounting and reporting standards or the interpretation of such standards
that govern the preparation of our external financial statements. These changes are beyond our control, can be difficult
to predict, may require extraordinary efforts or additional costs to implement and could materially impact how we
report our financial condition and results of operations. Additionally, we may be required to apply a new or revised
standard retrospectively, resulting in the restatement of prior period financial statements in material amounts. Shares of
our common stock repurehases-are not insured deposits and may lose value. Shares of our common stock are not savings
accounts, deposits or other obligations of any depository institution and are not insured or guaranteed by the FDIC or
any other governmental agency or instrumentality, any other deposit insurance fund or by any other public or private
entity, and are subject to investment risk, including the possible loss of principal. The costs and effects of litigation,
investigations or similar matters involving us or other financial institutions or counterparties, or related adverse facts
and developments, could rnegatively-materially affcct our business, operating results and financial condition. We may be
involved from time to time in a variety of litigation, investigations, inquiries, or similar matters arising out of our
business. Furthermore, litigation against banks tend to increase during economic downturns and periods of credit
deterioration, which may occur or worsen as a result of current steekrepurehase-prograntreconomic uncertainty. Most
recently there has been and-- an increase in class action lawsuits filed claiming deceptive practices or violations of
account terms in connection with non- sufficient fees or overdraft charges. We manage these risks through internal
controls, personnel training, insurance, litigation management, our ability-compliance and ethics processes, and other
means. However, the commencement, outcome, and magnitude of litigation cannot be predicted or controlled with any
certainty. We establish reserves for legal claims when payments associated with the claims become probable and the
losses can be reasonably estimated. However, our insurance may not cover all claims that may be asserted against us and
indemnification rights to repurehase-eommon-stoek-which we are entitled may not be honored, and any claims asserted
against us, regardless of merit or eventual outcome, may harm our reputation. Should the ultimate judgments or
settlements in any litigation or investigation significantly exceed our insurance coverage, they could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. In addition, premiums for insurance
covering the financial and banking sectors are rising. We may not be able to obtain appropriate types or levels of
insurance in the future , nor may we be able to obtain adequate replacement policies with acceptable terms or at historic
rates, if at all . [tem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments None. Item 1C. Cybersecurity We believe that cybersecurity and the
protection of data and customer information in our possession, custody or control is of paramount importance to our business.

We—have—t-hefefefe—The Company s mformatlon securlty program is designed and-implemented-aframework-of pottetes;

to protect the confidentiality, integrity, and

av allablllty of our Cl‘lthdl systems and mfmmatlon 1ndudmg customer information. The Jnfermation-Seeurity Progrant
program is comprised of policies, procedures, and programs, and is informed by and intended to align with the
interagency guidance issued by banking regulators as well as the FFIEC Information Security Booklet and Cybersecurity
Assessment Tool (the “ Information Security Program ) . This does not imply that we meet any particular technical
standards, specifications, or requirements, but rather that we use the guidance to help us identify, assess, and manage
cybersecurity risks relevant to our business. Cybersecurity Risk Management and Strategy Our Information Security Program is
integrated into our risk management program and is aligned to the Company’ s business strategy and Enterprise Risk




Management program . [t shares common methodologies, reporting channels and governance processes that apply to other
areas of enterprise risk, including legal, compliance, strategic, operational, and financial risk. Key elements of our Information
Security Program include: ° risk assessments designed to help identify material cybersecurity risks to our critical systems,
information, products, services, and our broader enterprise information technology environment are conducted on at least an
annual basis ; « internal testing of our security controls and our response to cybersecurity incidents; ¢ the use of external service
providers, to assess, test or otherwise assist with aspects of our security controls; ¢ training and awareness programs for all
employees that include periodic and ongoing assessments to drive adoption and awareness of cybersecurity processes and
controls; ¢ a cybersecurity incident response plan that includes procedures for responding to cybersecurity incidents; ¢
maintenance and regular testing of a Business Continuity Plan that includes redundant back- up systems for afcritical functions;
* a physical security program that is tested regularly, ° obtalnlng and malntalnlng a-ppfepﬂafe-cyber 1nsu1ance aﬁd

indemnifieationfor-eyberseeurity-ineidents; in v
and-serviee-providers—and ¢ a third- party risk management program f01 service prov1de1s supphers and VendOIs that prov1des
for the assessment, monitoring and management of cybersecurity risk presented by the Company’ s use of such third parties I
thelast-three-fiseal-years-, the-Company-has— as netexperieneed-any-material-well as contractual protections related to
cybersecurity incidents affecting third party vendors and service providers. The Company engages in a continuous risk
monitoring process that seeks to identify the likelihood and impact of internal and external threats to our information
security systems and data , and assesses the sufficiency of the controls in place to mitigate these threats to acceptable
levels on a risk- based basis. Incidents are reported to and handled under our Incident Response Policy, which designates
and-- an expenses-inetrredfrom-incident response team and includes procedures and processes to identify, assess, respond
to, mitigate and report on cybersecurity incidents swere-tmmaterial-. For-The risk and evolving nature of cybersecurity
threats, and not a diseussion-of-whether-previous cybersecurity incident, has led to the Company to devote significant time
and hew-any-resources to the development and implementation of the Information Security Program described above.
Despite our efforts, there can be no assurance that our cybersecurity risk management processes and measures will be
fully implemented, complied with, or effectlve in protectmg our systems and 1nformat10n. We face risks ﬁom certain
cybersecurity threats that , if realized 1 0
are reasonably likely to matenally affect tts—mel-ud-mg—our buslness strategy, fesu-l-ts—~ result of operatlons or financial condition .
Please see Part I, referto-Item |1 A Risk Factors for further discussion of the risks associated with an interruption or
breach in our information systems or infrastructure . Cybersecurity Governance Our Board of Directors keeps apprised of
and oversees technology risk and cybersecurity of the Company -ard-. The Board receives updates from the Company’ s
Information Security Officer (“ ISO *) on a quarterly basis and receives cybersecurity training on at least an annual basis .
Heowever-While the entire Board receives reporting and receives training . the Board has delegated certain specific
responsibility for overseeing cybersecurity threats, among other things, to its Audit-ard-Risk Committee. Our ISO and Chief
Risk Officer provide the Axditand-Risk Committee and the Company’ s internal Enterprise Risk Management Committee
perlodlc and as needed reports on our Cybersecunty risks and cybersecurlty 1nc1dents if any The Beard—aﬂd—t-he%udﬂ—&ﬂd—R—tsk

y 7 g and certain other relevant
pOhCles on at least an annual basls Our ISO who has over twenty flve years of experience in the system, network, and
cybersecurity space, is responsible for implementing-overseeing and managing the Information Security Program alongside
our Chief Information Officer. The $560-and-Chief Information Officer both-serve-serves on the Enterprise Risk Management
Committee, which is chaired by our Chief Risk Officer. They are supported by our team of technology professionals, who are
responsible for information technology security monitoring and for managing the controls designed to identify, detect, protect

agalnst 1esp0nd to and recover from cybersecurlty threats and cybersecurlty 1nc1dents fPhe—Gefﬁpamf—eﬂgages—m—a—eeﬁt-mueus

-rﬁetdeﬂ’fs—ltem 2 Propemes The C ompany and the Bank are headqualtered ma 172 630 square foot 1mxed use bu1ld1ng
located at 8701 East 116th Street, Fishers, IN 46038. The Bank’ s wholly- owned subsidiary, SPF15, Inc., owns the building and
property . The Company considers its property to be in adequate condition and suitable for its intended purposes . [tem 3.
Legal Proceedings Neither we nor any of our subsidiaries are party to any material legal proceedings. From time to time, the
Bank is a party to legal actions arising from its normal business activities. Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures PART II Item 5.
Market for Registrant’ s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities Market
Information The Company’ s common stock trades on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol “ INBK. ”” As of
March 87 , 2624-2025 , the Company had 8, 655697 , 854-085 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, and there were
9799 holders of record of common stock. Dividends Total cash dividends declared by the Company in 2023-2024 were $ 0. 24
per share. The Company expects to continue to pay cash dividends on a quarterly basis; however, the declaration and amount of
any future cash dividends will be subject to the sole discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend upon many factors,
including our results of operations, financial condition, capital requirements, regulatory and contractual restrictions (including
with respect to the Company’ s outstanding subordinated debt), business strategy and other factors deemed relevant by the
Board of Directors. Because the Company is a holding company and does not engage directly in business activities of a material
nature, its ability to pay dividends to shareholders may depend, in large part, upon the receipt of distributions from the Bank,



which is also subject to numerous limitations on the payment of dividends under federal and state banking laws, regulations and
policies. The present and future ability of the Bank to distribute funds to the Company are subject to the discretion of the Board
of the Directors of the Bank and the Bank is not obligated to pay any distributions to the Company. In October 2021, the
Company' s Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program authorizing the repurchase of up to $ 30. 0 million, which
was subsequently increased to $ 35. 0 million, of our outstanding common stock from time to time on the open market or in
privately negotiated transactions. Under this program, the Company repurchased 855, 956 shares of common stock at an average
price of $ 36. 31, for a total investment of $ 31. 1 million. This stock repurchase authorization expired on December 31, 2022. In
December 2022, the Company’ s Board of Directors approved a new stock repurchase program authorizing the repurchase of up
to $ 25. 0 million of the Company” s outstanding stock from time to time on the open market or in privately negotiated
transactions. The stock repurchase program is-sehediledto-expire-on-Deeember3+2024and-replaced the stock repurchase
program mentioned above and expired on December 31, 2024 . Under this program, the Company repurchased 559, 522 shares
of common stock through March 8 2024 at an av 61"156 pr1ce of $ 19. 06, for a total investment of $ 10. 7 million. No Fhe

; on € 56 s-common stock made-was repurchased during

the foulth qucu te1 of %92—3—2024 by—e-leunder the repurchase program that explred on beha-l-f—ef—t-he—@emp&mf—e%aﬁyﬁ

December 31, 2024 %92—3—1—9—999—2—3— 92—1-9—999—1—4—6—1—7—’130&-}49—999—49—999—&001( Performance Graph The followm;a g"lph
and table compares the five- year cumulative total return to shareholders of First Internet Bancorp common stock with that of the
Nasdaq Composite Index and the S & P U. S. BMI Banks Index. The following assumes $ 100 invested on December 31, 2648
2019 in First Internet Bancorp, the Nasdaq Composite Index and the S & P U. S. BMI Bank Index, and assumes that dividends
are reinvested. The historical stock price performance for our common stock is not necessarily indicative of future stock
perfmm"mce December 31, Index2604826192626202126222023First—--- Index201920202021202220232024First Internet
Bancorp $ 100. 00 $ H47-122. 87 $202. 50 $ 105. 28 $ 106 . 34 $ +44-159 . 41 +7-$2376+-$42353-$124-FF Nasdaq
Composite Index100. 00 +36-144 . 92 69198-16-242-63163-28236—1+7177 . 06 119. 45 172. 77 223.87 S & P U. S. BMI
Banks Index100. 00 3787 . 36-+19-24 118 . 8316261 98 . 9213538 107 . 32 +3-143 +47. 4+-68 [tem 6. [ RESERVED | [tem
7. Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations The following discussion and
analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial
statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this report. The following discussion, analysis and comparisons generally
focus on the operating results for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-20822-. Discussion, analysis and
comparisons of the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-2024-that are not included in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K can be found in “ Management' s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ” in Part II, Item 7
of our Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 . This discussion and analysis includes certain
forward- looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. You should review the “ Risk Factors ” section of
this report for a discussion of important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results described in
or implied by such forward- looking statements. See also the “ Cautionary Note Regarding Forward- Looking Statements ” at
the beginning of this report. €ests-Asseetated-with-Exit-Aetivittes-During the twelve months ended December 31, 2024, net
income was $ 25. 3 million, or $ 2. 88 per diluted share, compared to net income of $ 8. 4 million, or $ 0. 95 per diluted
share, for the twelve months ended December 31, 2023 and net income of $ 35. 5 million, or $ 3. 70 per diluted share, for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2022. The $ 16. 9 million increase in net income for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2024 compared to the twelve months ended December 31, 2023 was due primarily to an increase of $ 21. 2
million, or 81. 2 %, in noninterest income, an increase of $ 12. 5 million, or 16. 7 %, in net interest income, partially
offset by an increase of $ 10. 7 million, or 13. 4 %, in noninterest expense, an increase of $ 5. 7 million, in income tax
expense and an increase of $ 0. 4 million, or 2. S %, in provision for credit losses. During the twelve months ended
December 31, 2024, return on average assets (“ ROAA ”), return on average equity (“ ROAE ”) and return on average
tangible common equity (“ ROATCE ”) were 0. 46 %, 6. 70 % and 6. 78 %, respectively. The Company recognized gains
of $ 2. 9 million from termination of interest rate swap agreements and $ 1. 8 million from prepayment of FHLB
advances as well as expenses of $ 0. S million in IT termination fees and $ 0. 1 million in anniversary expenses. Adjusted
net income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2024, was $ 22. 0 million, and adjusted diluted earnings per share
was $ 2. 51. Additionally, for the twelve months ended December 31, 2024, adjusted ROAA, adjusted ROAE and
adjusted ROATCE were 0. 40 %, 5. 83 % and S. 90 %, respectively. Due to the steep decline in consumer mortgage
volumes and the negative outlook for consumer mortgage lending, the Company decided to exit its consumer mortgage business
during the first quarter 2023. This included its nationwide digital direct- to- consumer mortgage platform that originated
residential loans for sale in the secondary market, as well as its local traditional consumer mortgage and construction- to-
permanent busmess fPhe—In connection w1th th1s dec1smn, the Company recognlzed —s—eemmefela-l-eeﬁsﬁﬂeﬁeﬁ—&ﬂd—l-aﬂd-

Gemp&ny—metmd—teta-l—pre—&ﬁeexpeﬂse—e-ﬁ$ 3 1 mllhon oftn%%—asseetated—wﬁh—exﬁmg—t-he—eeﬁﬁmeﬂnortgage eﬂgmat-teﬂ
business—operations and exit costs Buring-during the twelve months ended December 31, 2023 ;netineome-was-$8- 4-The
Company also recognized $ 0. 1 million —er—$—9—9§—per—d1-}tﬁed~s-hare—eeﬁqaafed—te—net—meeme—of mortgage banking revenue
durlng -$—3§%—mrl+teﬁ—er—$—3—7-9—peied1-l-ttted—sh&re—feﬁhe twelve nonths ended December 31, %92—2—aﬂd-ﬂet—rﬂeeme-ef—$—48—1-




te—e*i-t—t-he—bus-rness— Addmonally, duim<y the twelwe months ended Decembei 31 073 the Company recognized a $ 6. 9
million partial charge- off related to a commercial and industrial participation ]oan with a balance of $ 9. 8 million , prior —Fhis
aetiorreontributed-to the inerease-partial charge- off, that was moved to nonaccrual status late in the 'pfe’v‘l'S‘te'H-ﬁl‘St quarter
2023. The Company received payment for ereditlosses-as-eompared-to-the remaining balance of the participation loan
durlng 2023 The decrease in net income of $ 27 1 mllllon for the twelve months ended December 31, 2022—Fhe-Company

. . & : attotrto ing-2023 compared to —The-deereasetrnet-ineome-of
-$—l—2—6—m1-1-1-teﬁ—fer—the twelve months ended Decembei 31,2022 eefﬁp&red—was due primarily to a decrease of § 22. 2 million,
or 22.9 %, in net interest income, an increase of $ 11. 7 million, or 234. 6 %, in provision for loan losses and an increase
of $ 6. 2 million, or 8. 4 %, in noninterest expense, partially offset by a decrease of $ 8. 0 million, or 176. 3 %, in income
tax expense and an increase of $ 4. 9 million, or 22. 9 %, in noninterest income. During the twelve months ended December
31, 2024-2023 was-due-primariyto-, ROAA, ROAE an-and $H-ROATCE were 0 . 6-million-deerease-innoninterest17 %, 2.
35 % and 2. 38 %, respectlvely Excludmg the 1mpact of ex1t1ng consumer mortgage and the partlal charge- off, adjusted

and ddjusted diluted earnings per Shdle was § 1. 83. Additiondl]y, for the twelve months ended December 31, 2()23 ad]usted
ROAA, adjusted ROAE dnd ad]usted ROATC E were 0. 33 % 4 54 % and 4. 6()

e were at 0-%, respectively. Refer to the Reconeilidtion of Non (JAAP
Financial Measures ” section of Item 7 of Pcllt Il of this repmt Management' s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations for additional information. Consolidated Average Balance Sheets and Net Interest Income Analyses
For the periods presented, the following table provides the average balances of interest- earning assets and interest- bearing
liabilities and the related yields and cost of funds. The table does not reflect any effect of income taxes. Balances are based on
the average of daily balances. Nonaccrual loans are included in average loan balances. Twelve Months EndedDecember 31,
2024December 31, 2023December 31, 2022Beeember3+,20214-2022 (dollars in thousands) Average Balancelnterest /
DividendsYield / CostAverage Balancelnterest / DividendsYield / CostAverage Balancelnterest / DividendsYield /
CostAssetsInterest- earning assetsLoans, including loans held- for- sale $ 3, 997, 397 $ 233, 844 5. 85 % $ 3, 685, 729 § 192,
3375.22%$ 3, 142, 166 $ 140, 600 4. 47 % $2-Securities- taxable692 , 999—806 26, 742 3 232-$1234674- 1286 % 551
-Seeuﬂtres-—ta*&b}eéé-l— 479 17,189 3. 12 % 537,921 10, 711 1. 99 % S44-Securities- non- taxable77 , 643-7-987 3 , 976-+775

4. 4684 9% 72 -Seeﬁﬂ-t—tes-—neﬁ-—ta*&b-}e-?‘%, 571 3,5324.87 % 75,382 1,767 2. 34 % 84;4824-0+71+-26-%Other earning
assets500-assetsS16 , 836 27, 526 5. 33 % 500, 061 26, 384 5. 28 % 278, 073 3, 830 1. 38 % 466;-668+-429-6—31+% T otal

interest- earning assets4-assetsS , 285, 026 291, 887 5. 52 % 4 , 809, 840 239,442 4. 98 % 4, 033, 542 156, 908 3. 89 %4;:-694;
93514338833 27% Allowance for credit losses ( 42, 758) ( 36 038) (29, 143) (%9—96'89—Nonmteiest - earning —assets1o4
assets220, 462 194 , 712 166, 127 +46;-659-Total assets $ 5,462, 730 $ 4, 968, 514 $ 4, 170, 526 $4;205:-926
LiabilitiesInterest- bearing liabilitiesInterest- bearing demand deposits $ 494, 082 $ 10, 448 2. 11 % $ 366, 082 $ 6, 186 1. 69 %
$333,737 82,056 0. 62 % $+95-Savings accounts22 , 336 189 699-$-583-0. 30-85 % 29 Savingsaeeeunts29- 200 249 0. 85
% 58, 156 336 0. 58 %4-56;967203-0-36-% Money market accounts1, 230, 443 51,036 4. 15 % 1, 276, 602 49, 890 3. 91 % 1,
423,185 18, 513 1. 30 % +Fintech- brokered deposits141 , 434-860 6 , 023 4 829-5;-892-6-. 4125 % 33 BaaS—brokered
deposits33-, 039 1, 402 4. 24 % 60, 699 1, 033 1. 70 % ——08-00-%Certificates and brokered deposits2 , 430, 205 115, 454 4.
75 % 2, 040, 041 85,636 4.20 % 1, 147,017 19, 894 1. 73 % Total interest- bearing deposits4, 318, 926 183, 150 4. 24 % 3,
744, 964 143, 363 3. 83 % 3, 022, 794 41, 832 1 . 38 % Other borrowed funds629 , 137 44524+ 21 23— +444-360 3 . 64-40
% 719,617 21,175 2.94 % 638 52617, 983 2. 82 % Total mteiest bearmo depestts%—llabllltles4 444—948 964-063 204, 510

€ 6 otat ingtiabiities 464 581164 538 69% 661 27()
59, 815 1. 63 %-3—69-8—74—1—49—32—',’—11"-84}41-Nomnterest beaim;: depesﬁs—l%é—deposnslm 396 125 , 816 120, 325 -1-9-1—825
Other noninterest- bearing Habtities20-liabilities23 , 056 20 , 317 16, 037 4%255-Total -1-t&b1-1-rt—tes4rllablllt1es5 085,5154 ,
610, 714 3, 797, 682 3,—847,—82—1—51]31’61101(161‘8'6%}@'357* equity377 , 215 357 , 800 372, 844 358365-Total liabilities and
shareholders' equity $ 5, 462, 730 $ 4, 968, 514 $ 4, 170, 526 $4:265;926-Net interest income $ 87,377 $ 74, 904 $ 97, 093 &
$6;:-556-Interest rate spread11. 39 % 1. 29 % 2. 26 %+-99-% Net interest margin21. 65 % 1. 56 % 2. 41 %23 Net interest



margin- FTE31.74 % 1. 67 % 2. 54 %2-25% 1 Yield on total interest- earning assets minus cost of total interest- bearing
liabilities 2 Net interest income divided by average interest- earning assets 3 On a fully- taxable equivalent (“ FTE ) basis
assuming a 21 % tax rate. Refer to the “ Reconciliation of Non- GAAP Financial Measures ” section of Item 7 of Part II of this
report, Management' s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Rate / Volume Analysis The
following table illustrates the impact of changes in the volume of interest- earning assets and interest- bearing liabilities and
interest rates on net interest income for the periods indicated. The change in interest not due solely to volume or rate has been
allocated in proportion to the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each. Rate / Volume Analysis of Net Interest
IncomeTwelve Months Ended December 31, 2023-2024 vs. December 31, 2022-2023 Due to Changes inTwelve Months Ended
December 31, 2622-2023 vs. December 31, 2024-2022 Due to Changes in (amounts in thousands)
VolumeRateNetVolumeRateNetInterest income Loans, including loans held- for- sale $ 17, 100 $ 24, 407 $ 41, 507 $ 26, 264 $
25,473 § 51, 737 $-6;457-$10,976- 517133 -Sccurities — taxable275-taxabled , 961 4, 592 9, 553 275 6, 203 6, 478 (+88)2;
844-2-F4+-Securities — non- taxable-taxable265 (22) 243 (69) 1, 834 1, 765 4269-870-756-Other earning assets4-assets891 251
1,142 4,967 17, 587 22, 554 79433195240+ Fetal3+- Total23 , 217 29, 228 52,445 31 , 437 51, 097 82, 534 54434%
88223025 Interest expense Interest- bearing demand depesitst2-- deposits2 . 642-85-491 1 , 4891+6+-771 4 , 262 220 3, 910 4,
130 Savings accounts (60) — (60) (207) 120 (87) Money market accounts (1, 847) 2,993 1, 146 (2, 094) 33, 471 53+ 31,
377 Fintech- brokered deposits4, 618 3 4, 621 ( 744-634 ) 1, 003 369 Certificates and brokered deposits17, 699 12, 75412
119 29 , 6+6-818 23, 199 42, 543 65, 742 Other borrowed funds2-- funds (2, 867) 3,052 1852 , 391 801 3, 192 +Total20 , 034
19 9946167478 TFotalH4- 433-90-938 39 , 290-972 22, 875 81, 848 104, 723 3504243842488 Increase / (decrease) in net
interest income $ 473 , 604-183 $ 9 39- 493-290 $ 12,473 $ 8, 562 $ (30, 751 ) $ (22, 189) $4:793-5-5-744-$40,-53FNet
interest income for the twelve months ended December 31, %92—3—2024 was $ 87 4 mllllon, an 1ncrease of $ 12. 5 million, or
16. 7 %, compared to $ 74. 9 mithen ; A —tmillion for the twelve
months ended December 31, %922—2023 The deefe&se—lncrease il net 1nterest income was the result of a $ +64-52 . 74 million,
or #7521 . +9 %, increase in total interest expense-income to $ +64-291 . 5-9 million for the twelve months ended December
31, 26232024 compared to $ 59239 . 8-4 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 26222023 . The increase in total
interest expense-income was partially offset by an-a $ 82-40 . 5-0 million, or 52-24 . 6-3 %, increase in total interest ineeme
expense t0 $ 239-204 . 4-5 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2023-2024 compared to $ +56-164 . 9-5 million
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2622-2023 . The growth in total interest income was due primarily to an increase in
interest earned on loans resulting from an increase of #5-63 bps in the yield earned on loans, as well as an increase of $ $43-311 .
©6-7 million, or ++-8 . 3-5 %, in the average balance of loans, including loans held for- sale -Fuﬁheﬂﬁere—Addltlonally the-yietd

orotherearning-assets-inereased-390-bps-and-the average balance of

Additionally;the-average-balanee-ofsccurities increased $ +6-146 . 7 million, or +23 . 85 %, and the y1eld earned on the
securities portfolio increased +29-64 bps. The 1 increase 1n the y-te{ds—~ yleld earned on loans —eﬂ&eﬁeafﬂ-mg—&ssets—and securities

was due to the impact of the continued elevated ;
the-higher-interest rate environment rthe-on both ex1st1ng and newly- orlgmated interest- earning assets. The yreld on
funded portfolio originations was 8. 4+29 % for the twelve months ended December 31, 2623-2024 , an increase of 362-5 bps
compared to the twelve months ended December 31, 2622-2023 . The increase in total interest expense was due primarily to
increases of $ €5-29 . 78 million, or 336-34 . 5-8 %, in interest expense associated with certificates and brokered deposits, $ 34+
4.6 million, or +69-329 . 5-6 %, in interest expense associated with meney-market-aceounts-fintech- brokered deposits and $
4 -1—3 mrlhon or %99—68 9 %, in 1nterest expense associated with 1nterest bearrno demand deposrts aﬁd—$—3%—m-1-l-heﬂ—er—1—7—8

brokered deposrts was drrven by an increase of %47—55 bps n the cost ot these deposrts as Well as an increase of § -893—390 62
million, or 7+19 . 9-1 %, in the average balance of these deposits. The increase in the average balance of these deposits was
driven by strong consumer and small business demand for certlhcates of deposrts n %92—3—2024 partlally offset by lower
brokered deposit balances . as wel-as-the Company used funding g b

e&rhem%@%—te—supp-}efneﬁt—on balance sheet liquidity to pay down higher- cost balances throughout 2024 . The increase in
interest expense related to meney-market-aceounts-fintech- brokered deposits was driven primarily by an increase of 26+bps-$
108. 8 million, or 329. 6 %, in the eest-average balance of these deposits ;partialty-offsetby-a-deerease-of$146- The 6

mithenor+0—3-%trthe-average-balance of these deposits is driven by payments volume associated with one of the
Company’ s fintech partnerships, which increased significantly year- over- year . The increase in interest expense related to

interest- bearing demand deposits was due primarily to a +67-42 bp increase in the cost of these deposits, as well as an increase
of $ -32—128 -3—0 million, or 9—35 —7—0 % in the average balance of these deposrts The increase 1ntn-tefest—e*peﬂse—fe}a-ted-te

fPhe—rnerease—rn—t-he—these ever&l-l—eest—ef—deposrts was due pruﬁaﬂ-l-y—to growth in deposit activity from certain ﬁntech
partnershlps The increase m the cost of funds across all of t-he—these eentmtted—rrse—m—deposrt types reﬂects the impact of

NIM ”) was 1. 56—65 % for the twelve months ended December 31, %92—3—2024 cornp"tred to 2—1 4-1—56 % for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2622-2023 . On a fully- taxable equivalent (“ FTE ) basis, NIM was 1. 6774 % for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2023-2024 compared to 2-1 . 54-67 % for the twelve months ended December 31, 2622-2023 ., g&-an
deerease-increase of 77 bps. The deerease-increase in NIM and FTE NIM compared to the twelve months ended December
31,2022-2023 reflects the decelerating pace of increase in the cost of interest- bearing deposits and Habitities-of266-bps;



partiatly-offsetby-the inerease-irearning-assetyields-of +69-bps-Company’ s focus on shifting the loan composition towards

variable rate and higher- yielding products . Noninterest Income The following table presents noninterest income for the
three most recent years. Twelve Months Ended December 31, (amounts in thousands) 262326222024-Serviee—--
202420232022Service charges and fees $ 959 $ 851 § 1, 071 -$—1—1—1-4—L0dn servicing revente3-revenue6 , 188 3 8332,573 &
934-1 oan servicing asset revaluation ( 2, 537) ( 1, 463) (1, 639 35-069-) Mortgage banking aetivities?6—- activities — 76 5,
464 45;-650-Gain on sale of teans26-loans33, 329 20,526 11, 372 H-Other9 , 406 598-Gain-onsate-of premises-and
equtpment——2 7523-Other2-, 302 2, 416 +-694-Total noninterest income $ 47 345$ 26, 125§ 21, 257 $325-844-During the
twelve months ended December 31, 2823-2024 , noninterest income totaled $ 26-47 . +-3 million, representing an increase of $ 4
21 . 9-2 million, or 22-81 . 9-2 %, compared to $ 2426 . 3-1 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2622-2023 . The
mcrease in noninterest 1ncome was driven prlmanly by Increases of$ 12. 8 million in gain on sale of loans , $ 7 1 mllllon in

loans was due prlmarlly to an tnereased» increase of 48. 8 % in the volume of SBA 7 (a) guaranteed loan sales as well as
an increase of 83 bps to 108. 17 % in net gain on sale premium for the year. The increase in other income was due
primarily to distributions from fund investments, as well as a gain on termination of interest rate swaps of $ 2. 9 —2
million -er-86-and a gain on prepayment of FHLB advances of $ 1 . 8 million 5—%—i—n—292—3—eeﬂ=rpafed-te—t-he—pfiefye&e The
increase in net loan servicing revenue was due to growth i in the balance of the C ompany s SBA 7 (d) serv 1e1ng portfoho
partially offset by as-w Spe S A ; S
fair value adjustment to Gempany—s—exrt—ffeﬂa—the loan serv1c1ng asset meﬁgage—buﬁness—rn—ﬂae—ﬁrs{—qﬁaﬁeﬁ%
Noninterest Expense The following table presents noninterest expense for the three most recent years. Twelve Months Ended
December 31, (amounts in thousands) 262320222024Salartes---- 202420232022Salaries and employee benefits $ 51, 756 $ 45,
322 $ 41, 553 $38,223-Marketing, advertising and promotion2 , 589 2 , 567 3, 554 3;26+Consulting and professional

serv 1ees3 744 3, 082 4, 826 4;-654-Data processing2, 448 2, 373 1, 989 -1—649—L0an expenses5, 947 5, 756 4, 435 2, H2
Premises and equipmentto-equipment11 , 902 10 . 599 10, 688 -7’—963—Depos1t insurance premam3-premiums5 , 000 3 , 880 1,
152 15,243-0ther5-Other6 , 724 5, 857 5, 076 4%2—3—T0tal noninterest expense $ 90, 110 $ 79, 436 § 73, 273 $-64798
Noninterest expense for the twelve months ended December 31, 2623-2024 was $ 90. 1 million, representing an increase of $
10. 7, or 13. 4 %, compared to $ 79. 4 ﬂa-x-l-l-teﬁ—eefﬂpa-fed-te—$—7-3—3—m1ll10n for the tw elve months ended December 31, 2622
2023 . The increase © was due prlmanly to
increases of $ 3-6 . -4 m11110n ,or14.2 %, n salarles and employee benehts $21.83 m11110n or 12. 3 %, in premises and
equipment, $ 1. 1 million, or 28. 9 %, in deposit insurance premium and- $ +0 . 3-9 million , or 14. 8 %, in tean-other
expenses and s-partialy-offsetby-deereasesof$ +-0 . 7 million , or 21. 5 %, in consulting and professional fees and-$4-0
mithon-inrmarketing-advertising-and-prometiorr. The increase in salaries and employee benefits was due primarily to moertgage
exit-eosts-higher small business lending incentive compensation and staff additions in small business lending and risk
management , as well as aninerease-irheadeotnt-and-higher incentive compensation accruals based on the increase in smalt
busittess-net income in 2024. The increase in premises and eenstruetionlending-equipment was due primarily to non-
recurring IT termination fees, property taxes and software maintenance expense . The increase in deposit insurance
premium was due mainly to year- over- year asset growth and changes in s-as-weH-as-the composition of the teans— loan and
deposits-— deposit portfolios . The increase in tean-other expenses was due prunarlly to Varlous ﬂaeﬁg&ge—e*rt—eesfs—aﬂd
aeerted-eontraet-cxpenses, none of which were individually significant as-w g ytoar etirg-fees4
other-miseeHaneoustending-eosts- The deefease—lncrease n COHSUltlHé and professmnal fees was due prlmanly to 1ncreased

COHSUltlHé and audlt fees ela

B v &

ﬂae—meﬁg&ge—bﬁsmess—rrrﬂae—ﬁfst—qﬁaﬁer%@%— lneome Taxes The followmﬂ tdble reconmles repmted imncome pr0v1s1on tax

(benefit) previsterrto that computed at the statutory federal tax rate for the three most recent years. Twelve Months Ended
December 31, (amounts in thousands) 262320222024 Statatery—--- 202420232022Statutory rate times pre- tax income $ 5, 784
$ 1,037 $ 8, 421 $H;-880-(Subtract) add the tax effect of: Income from tax- exempt securities and loans (3, 500) (3, 951) (4,
190 34-24F) State income taxes, net of federal tax effeeteffectd7 (30) 592 865-Bank- owned life insurance ( 262) (215) (201 ¥
H99-) Tax credits ( 110) ( 168) (143) @F5)-Other differenees-differences307 (150) 80 304-Income tax provision (benefit)
provistenr$ 2,266 S (3,477) $ 4, 559 $8;458-We recognized an income tax beaefit-provision of § 2. 3 S-mithenrin2023;
eompared-to-antheome-tax-provistonrof-$4—6-million and an effective tax rate of H-8 . 42 % in 2022-2024 , compared to an
income tax benefit of $ 3. 5 million in 2023 . Our federal statutory tax rate was 21 % in 2024 and 2023 aﬂd%GQQ— In 2024 and
2023 and2022-, the variance from the federal statutory rate was due primarily to tax- exempt income. Interest income on certain
loans or securities issued by governmental, municipal and not- for- profit entities, and earnings from bank- owned life insurance
were the primary components of tax- exempt income . The income tax benefits recognized during 2023 also reflect the
benefit of tax exempt income relative to stated pre- tax income, as well as the impact on pre- tax income from mortgage
exit costs and the partial charge- off of a commercial and industrial participation loan in 2023 . The following table
presents summary balance sheet data as of the end of the last two years. (amounts in thousands) December 31, Balance Sheet
Data: 20232022 Fetal-20242023Total asscts $ 5, 737,859 $ 5, 167, 572 $4;-543;+064Feans3-Loans4 , 170, 646 3 , 840, 220 3;
499-40+-Total seeurities702-- securities837 , 151 702 , 008 579:-552-1.oans held- for- sale22-sale54, 695 22 , 052 245-5H-
Noninterest- bearing depesitsi23— deposits136 , 451 123 |, 464 +75;:3+5-Interest- bearing depesits3-deposits4 , 796, 755 3 , 943,
509 3;265;-930-Total deposits4, 933, 206 4, 066, 973 3;444245-Advances from Federal Home Loan Banké+4-Bank295, 000
614 , 934 6+4;-928-Total sharcholders' equity362-equity384 , 063 362 . 795 364;-974-Total assets increased $ 624-570 . 3




million, or 11. 0 %, to $ 5 mithen;er43- 7 %-billion as of December 31 , 2024 compared to $ 5. 2 billion as of December 31,
2023 eempared-te-$4--S-billionas-ef Peeember 31,2022~ Balance sheet Growth was driven primarily by an increase in total
deposits of $ 625-866 . 72 million, or +8-21 . 2-3 %. The Apertionrofthe-increase in deposits was used , in part, to fund loan
growth , as loan balances increased $ 346-330 . 4 million. or § . 6 %. Furthermore, additional llquldlty from the increase in
deposits was deployed to reduce advances from the FHLB, which declined as FHLB advances decreased $ 319. 9 million,
or 9-52 . 70 %. As Hewever;-as-deposit growth outpaced loan growth, balance sheet liquidity increased as the combined balance
of cash and securities increased $ 274195 . 87 million, or 32-17. 7 %, and the percentage of loans to deposits declined to 84 .
5 % as sand-the-pereentage-of loans-to-depeosits-deelinedto-December 31, 2024 from 94. 4 % as of December 31, 2023 5
eomparedto1+0+-. As 7%-as-of December 31, 2622-2024 —As-ofPeeember3+-2623-, total shareholders’ equity was § %62—384
8-1 million, -an deerease-increase of $ 2-21 . 2-3 million, or -5 . 6-9 %, compared to December 31, 2022-2023 . The deerease
increase in sharcholders’ equity was due primarily to steekrepurehase-aetivity-ane-the éay—l—GEG]:adjﬁst-ment—paft—lﬁ-Hy—effse’f
bynet income earned during 2024, partially offset by an increase in accumulated the-other peried-comprehensive loss .
Tangible common equity totaled $ 358-379 . +4 million as of December 31, 2023-2024 , representing a-an deerease-increase of
$ 221 . 23 million, or 6-5 . 69 %, compared to December 31, 20222023 . The ratio of total shareholders’ equity to total assets
decreased to 6. 69 % as of December 31, 2024 from 7. 02 % as of December 31, 2023 from-8-03-%-as-of Deeember342622
and the ratio of tangible common equlty to tangible assets decreased to 6. 62 % as 0fDecember 31 2024 from 6 94 % as of

shcne mcre'lsed 4—5 26 % to$ 44 31 as 0fDecember 31, 2024 from $41. 97 as of Decembel 31, 2023 -ffeﬂ‘l—$—49—26—as—ef
Beeember3+-2622-. Tangible book value per share increased 4-5 . 2-6 % to $ 43. 77 as 0fDecember 31,2024 from §$ 41. 43 as
of December 31, 2023 -ffeﬂa—$—3«9—7-4—as—e-f—Beeeﬁrber—3—l—292—2— The increase in both book value per common share and tangible
book value per share was driven primarily reflee 6 : :
by the deehines-increases in total shareholders’ equity and tdn(nble common equlty Refer to the Reconcﬂlatlon of Non—
GAAP Financial Measures ” section of Item 7 of Part II of this report, Management' s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations for additional information. Loan Portfolio Analysis The following table provides
information regarding our loan portfolio as of the end of the last two years. December 31, (dollars in thousands)
20232022Cemmereial---- 20242023Commercial loansCommercial and industrial $ 120, 1752.9 % $ 129, 349 3. 4 9%-$1426;
+68-3-6-% Owner- occupied commercial real estate57estateS3 , 591 1. 3 % 57 , 286 1. 5 %5-658361+-8"% Investor commercial
real estated32--- estate269 ,431 6.5 % 132, 077 3. 4 % 93-Construction413 , +21-2-523 9 . 79 % Censtruetion26+261 , 750
6. 8 %5 18H-966-5-2-% Single tenant lease finaneing936-financing949 , 748 22. 7 % 936 , 616 24. 4 9% 939-Public finance48S ,
240-26-867 11 . 8-6 % 521 Publiefinanee52+- 764 13. 6 % 62+-Healthcare financel81 , 63217427 4 . 74 9 222 Healtheare
finanee222-, 793 5 —8%272461+7. 8 % Small business tending248---- lending 1331, 914 8. 0 % 218 , 506 5. 7 % Franchise
finance536, 909 123 12 -750-3- 5-9 % 525 Franehise finanee525- 783 13. 7 %299,-835-8-6-9% Total commercial loans3, 342,
585 80.2 % 3, 005, 924 78. 3 Y%25-H9;349-F+F" Consumer loansResidential moertgage395-mortgage37s , 160 9. 0 % 395 .
648 10. 3 % 383-Home equityl8 , 274 94810 . 4 % 23 Heme-equity23-, 669 0. 6 % 24-Other consumer407 , H2-0-9479 . 7
8 % 377 Othereensumer377-, 614 9. 8 %324-59893-% Total consumer teans796-loans801, 381 19. 2 % 796 ., 931 20. 7%
F33:25824-0-% Total commercial and consumer leans3-loans4 , 143, 966 99. 4 % 3 , 802, 855 99. 0 %3;452,-66798F%
Net deferred loan origination costs, premiums and discounts on purchased loans and other 226, 680 0. 6 % +37 37,365 1. 0 %
46:-794139%Total leans3-loans4 , §40-170 , 220-646 100. 0 % 3, 499-840 , 464-220 100. 0 % Allowance for credit losses-
loans ( 44, 769) (38, 774 ¥3+H73F) Net loans $ 4, 125, 877 $ 3, 801, 446 $3;-467-664-1 Balances include $ 34. 0 million
and $ 33. 5 million that are guaranteed by the U. S. government as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
respectively. 2 Includes carrying value adjustments of $ 22. 9 million and $ 27. 8 milltenand-$32-5-million related to
terminated interest rate swaps associated with public finance loans as of December 31, 2623-2024 and December 31, 2622-2023
, respectively. Total loans were $ 3-4 . 82 billion as of December 31, 2023-2024 , an increase of $ 346-330 . 4 mllllon, or 8
ﬂa-rl-l-leﬁ—e—lh9— 76 %, compared to December 31, 2622-2023 . Total commercial loan balances were §$ 3.6-3 billion, as of
December 31, 2623-2024 . up-an increase of $ 2-86—336 6-7 million, or +46-11 . 5-2 %, from December 31, 2622-2023 . Total
consumer loan balances were $§ 736-801 . 9-4 million as of December 31, 2023-2024 , an increase of § 63-4 . -5 million, or 8-0 .
76 %, compared to December 31, 2622-2023 . Compared to December 21 %922—2023 in connection with the Company’ s
focus on variable rate products , the increase in commercial loan bahnces was drlven by growth in the franehise-finanee;
smat-bustnesstending,construction and-, investor commercial real estate and small business lending portfolios. The increase
was pmtlally offset by contlnued runoff in the healthcare ﬁnance portfoho and a decrease in the fixed- rate public finance
portfoho ASV AddltlonallyBﬁﬂng—Z-G%Zv— commercnalt-he

fate—and h—rg-her—yte}dmg—lndustrlal balances dechned due prlmarlly to early payoffs The sllght increase in consumer loan

types-inorder-balances was due primarily to new origination act1v1ty tmpfeve—net—mfefest—m&rgtn—aﬁd—mﬁtgate—}eﬂg-—teﬂﬂ
tﬂtefest—fa-teﬂsﬂlél:he—tﬂefease—mtheotherconsumerlocms er-balanee eereational-vehieles-an

Pt it ress-. Loan Maturities and Rate Sensitivity The
following table shows the contldctual maturity distribution mtervals (W 1thout l‘eédld to repayment or repricing schedules) of the
outstanding loans in our portfolio as of December 31, 2623-2024 . (amounts in thousands) Within 1 Yearl- 5 Years5- 15
YearsBeyond 15 YearsTotalCommercial loans Commercial and industrial § 36-16 , 46+422 $ 68, 168 $ 35, 58-585 ;856-5 —
34-623-$ 120 9-$129-, 349-175 Owner- occupied commercial real estate6-estate2 , 585 54619,266-- 20 31—, 476 30 480—57-,



286-530 — 53, 591 Investor commercial real estateét-estate67 , 042-68-146 201 , 311 974 3602705 432269 , 677431
Construetion$3-Construction96 , 560176-853 303 , 9931263 13 , 197407 — 26+-413 , 756-523 Single tenant lease
finaneing35-financing65 . 683-383-793 485 . 426-518-080 398 . H3-875 — 936-949 , 616-748 Public finanee33-finance32 , 267
64-545 86 , 726-372-213 367 , 656-51+-109 — 485 ., 867 727524764 Healthcare finanee-finance800 45 —24-, 333-264-382 135
222-181 , 793-427 Small business lending45-lending88 +-2 , 884170-864 267 , 44846-775 61 , +29-218-187 331 ,
566-914 Franchise finance — 40-146 , 831484922 389 , 952987 — 525-536 , 783-909 Total commercial teans255-loans282 ,
232 9748356571, 816-359 , 42897679 1 , 865-639, 487 61, 187 3, 865-342 , 924-585 Consumer loansResidential mertgage
mortgage460 564 14 —460-15-, 573-379-309 359 , 675-395-827 375 , 648-160 Home equityt-equity825 360 4 , 377 12 239
2785, 97316712 18 |, 274 +79-23-669-Other eonstmert-consumerS30 21 , 264-18-361 326 , 576367117 59 , 663-50-939 407
, 947 HH-37%-644-Total consumer foans2-loansl , 56319-815 22 | 254-329-285 344 | 209-445-803 432 , 965-796-478 801 , 93+
381 Total commercial and consumer loans $ 258284 | 477047 $ 854-1 , 381 9H-$2- 964 +45-637-5 543-1 , 984 830-$3-, 862
290 $ 493 , 855665 $ 4, 143, 966 The following table shows the rate sensitivity of the outstanding loans in our portfolio by the
contractual maturity distribution intervals as of December 31, 2623-2024 . (amounts in thousands) Within 1 Yearl- 5 Years5- 15
YearsBeyond 15 YearsTotalFixed rate $ 76-101 , 393-779 § 594-851 , 642035 § 1, 945-668 , +70-362 $ 429-375 , 865656 & 3-2
, 045996 ., 446-832 Variable rate182, 884-260-268 530 , 859-260-929 315 , 4671+3-928 118 , 965757009 1 , 415147, 134
Total commercial and consumer loans $ 258-284 | 477047 $ 854-1 , 381 9H-$2- 964 1456375 543-1 , 984 836-$3- 862290
$ 493 , 855665 $ 4, 143, 966 Loan Approval Procedures and Authority Our lending activities follow written, non-
discriminatory policies with loan approval limits approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank. Loan officers have
underwriting and approval authorization of varying amounts based on their lending experience and product type. Additionally,
based on the amount of the loan, multiple approvals may be required. Based on the Bank’ s legal lending limit, the maximum it
could lend to any one borrower at December 31, 2823-2024 was $ #5-78 . 6-1 million. Our goal is to have a well- diversified and
balanced loan portfolio. In order to manage our loan portfolio risk, we establish concentration limits by borrower, product type,
industry and geography. To supplement our internal loan review resources, we have engaged independent third- party loan
review groups, which are a key component of our overall risk management process related to credit administration. Asset
QualityDecember 31, (dolldls n thouiands) %92—3%92—2—140ﬂaeefuﬁ-1—h——— 20242023N0naccrual loansCommercial loans:
ommeretal-and-indus $ ocetpied-eommeretalrea 8-Small business tendingé— lending $ 11,
, 382 303 Total commercnl -le&ns—'/—loanle 8117, 127 6-Consumer

4298% 6, 324 4,—7-64—Franchlse -f-“rﬂanee393—~ ﬁnancelO
loans: Residential mortgage4 , 385-083 1, 911 Other consumer61 86 Total consumer loans4, 144 1 997 Total nonaccrual
loans25, 955 9, 124 Past Due 90 days and accruing loansCommercial loans: Small business lendingl, 320 — Total

commercnal loansl 320 — Consumer loans: Residential m01t5dge1 142 838 9—1—1—1—948—Other eeﬁSﬂrﬂef%-consumeM +—

e e 3 9 Totdl past due 90 ddys and accruing }eaﬁs-8-3-8—7-9—loans2 466
838 Totdl nonperfmmlng -}eaﬁs9—loans28 421 9, 962 +-529-Other real estate ownedResidential mertgage375-mortgage272 —
375 Total other real estate eWﬂedS%—ownedZH —375 Other nonperforming assetst7assets212 42-17 Total nonperforming
assets $ 28,905 $ 10, 354 $F-57+Total nonperforming loans to total loans0. 26-68 % 0. 22-26 % Total nonperforming assets to
total assets0. 26-50 % 0. +7-20 % Allowance for credit losses- loans to total loans1. 07 % 1. 01 %5-6-9+% Nonaccrual loans to
total loans0. 24-68 % 0. 2424 % Allowance for credit losses- loans to nonaccrual feans425— loans172 . 5 % 425 . 0 % 426
Allowance for credit losses- loans to nonperforming loans157 . -5 % 389. 2 % A loan is individually evaluated, when,
based on current information or events, it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due (principal and interest)
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Payments with delays generally not exceeding 90 days outstanding are
not individually evaluated. Certain nonaccrual and substantially all delinquent loans more than 90 days past due may be
individually evaluated. Generally, loans are placed on nonaccrual status at 90 days past due and accrued interest is reversed
against earnings, unless the loan is well secured and in the process of collection. The accrual of interest on individually
evaluated loans is discontinued when, in management’ s opinion, the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become
due. Individually evaluated loans include nonperforming loans and also include loans where concessions have been granted to
borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. These concessions could include a reduction in the interest rate on the loan,
payment extensions, forgiveness of principal, forbearance, or other actions intended to maximize collection. Nonperforming
loans are comprised of total nonaccrual loans and loans 90 days past due and accruing. Nonperforming assets include
nonperforming loans, other real estate owned (“ OREO ) and other nonperforming assets, which consist of repossessed assets.
Nonperforming assets could also include individual securities for which a credit loss has been recognized; however, we did not
own any securities classified as such during the two- year period ended December 31, 2623-2024 . Total nonperforming loans
increased $ 2-18. 5 million, or 185. 3 %, to $ 28 . 4 million as of December 31 , 2024 compared er32—3%;-to $ 10. 0 million

as of December 31, 2023 eemparedto-$FS-mithornas-of Peeember34;2022-, due primarily to increases in nonperforming
loans related to the small business lendmg 8 franchlse ﬁnance and reudentlal mortgage portfohos partialy-offsetby-an-owner-

ﬂ&eﬁﬁeﬁed-abeve—as Well as an iereases— 1ncrease in eﬂ%er—re&l—estafe—eﬁmed—@ekEei)—&ﬂd—accunng 10ans past due 90 days
or more . Total nonperforming assets increased $ 18. 6 million, or 179. 2 %, to $ 28. 9 million as of December 31, 2024,
compared to $ 10. 4 million as of December 31, 2023, due primarily to the increases in nonperforming loans mentioned
above, as well as an increase in loan repossessions (“ REPO ”) , partially offset by a decrease in the-other ewner—oeeupted
eommeretal-real estate loanmentioned-above-owned (“ OREO ). As of December 31, 2024, the Company had one
residential mortgage property in OREO with a carrying value of $ 0. 3 million . As of December 31, 2023, the Company



had two re%ldentlal mortgage propertle% in OREO Wlth a carlylng Value of $0. 4 mllhon As—ef—Beeefﬁber—ZvH@Q%—t-he

fes-t-l‘ue’éuﬂﬂgs—$—$%2—2—Allowance for Credlt Losses- Loan% The followmg table prov1de§ a rollforward ofthe aHowanee-for
eredittossessACL on loans by loan portfolio segment for the twelve months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-;
however, allocation of a portion of the allowance to one segment does not preclude its availability to absorb losses in
other segments . December 31, (ameunts-dollars in thousands) 26232022Batanee-20242023Balance , beginning of period $
38,774 $ 31, 737 $2F-84+-Adoption of ASU 2016- 13 (CECL) — 2, 962 —Balance, beginning of perted34-period38 , 774 34
, 699 27-84-Provision charged to expenset5-expensel8 , 815 15 . 454 4977 osses charged offCommercial and industrial —
(7, 049) —Investor commercial real estate — (591 ) Single tenant lease financing (195 ) — Healthcare finance — (605) —
Small business lending ( 10, 441) ( 2, 586 3462-) Franchise finance ( 1, 466) ( 331) Residential mortgage ( 159) ( 140) —Other
consumer (1, 009) ( 582 H2358-) Total losses charged off (13, 270) ( 11, 884) F66)-RecoveriesCommercial and
industrial243-industrial8 243 §—Smg-}e—tenaﬁt—}ease—ﬁﬂaﬁemg—l—2-3-l—8mall business tending7729-lending325 77 Residential
mertgageS-mortgagel 4-5 Home equity6-equity7 +39-6 Other eonsumert74-consumer109 27+-174 Total reeovertes505—
recoveries450 505 1,-679-Balance, end of period $ 44,769 $ 38, 774 $35F3FNet charge- offs § 12,820 $ 11, 379 $3;-684-Net
(recoveries) charge- offs {reeevertes)-to average loans (annualized) Commercial and ndustriaté— industrial (0. 01 %) 6 . 87 %
0043y Investor commercial real estated-- estate — % 0 . 47 %— Single tenant lease finaneing-financingd —. 02 % —
% Healthcare finance — % 0. +4-%)Healtheare-finanee6-25 %—"% Small business endingtHlending3 . 39 % 1 . 34 %632
% Franchise Finance0. 27 % 0. 08 %—9 Total commercial net charge- effs-offs0 {reeoveries). 37 % 0. 38 % {6-63-%)
Residential mortgage0. 04 % 0. 03 %—""% Home equity (0. 03 %) (0. 02 %) €8-68%)-Other consumer(. 24-28 % 0. 43-21 %
Total consumer net charge- offs-offs0 {reeoveries)6-. 6713 % 0. 32-07 % Net charge- offs to average loans0. 34-32 % 0. 63-31
% The determination of the alewanee-foreredittosses=ACL Z-and the related provision for credit losses are components of
our significant accounting policies as discussed within Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements. The adequacy of the
allowance for credit losses and the provision are based on the review and evaluation of the loan portfolio and reflect
management’ s assessment of the risks and potential losses within the portfolio. This evaluation uses a discounted cash flow
analysis based on historical loss data, reasonable and supportable forecasts and prepayment rates, as well as qualitative factors
such as economic and business conditions, portfolio growth, concentrations of credit in the portfolio, trends in risk grades,
delinquencies within the portfolio and changes in our lending policies and practices. Management actively monitors asset
quality and, when appropriate, charges off loans against the ACL aHewanee-for-eredittosses-. Although management believes it
uses the best information available to make determinations with respect to the ACL aHewanee-for-eredittosses-, future
adjustments may be necessary if economic conditions differ substantially from those in the assumptions used to determine the
size of the ACL aHewatee-foreredittosses-. The ACL was $ 3844 . 8 million as of December 31, 2623-2024 , compared to an
AEEE-ACL of $ 34-38 . 78 million as of December 31, 2822-2023 . The increase in the ACL reflects the-day-ene-eurrent
expeeted-ereditiosses(“CECEadjustmentof- $-3—0-millien;overat-crowth and higher coverage ratios in-thelean-pertfolio;
ehanges-in certain portfolios, as well as additional reserves for nonperforming small business lending and franchise
finance loans, partially offset by the impact of cconomic data on fereeasts-forecasted thatimpaeted-guantitative-loss rates
and sadjuastments-to-qualitative factors for eertatrrother portfolios and-speeiftereservesplaced-onreertaintoans-. The ACL as a
percentage of total loans was 1. 8407 % as of December 31, 2023-2024 , compared to 8-1 . 3401 % at December 31, 2622-2023
. The ACL as a percentage of nonperforming loans decreased to 157. 5 % as of December 31, 2024, compared to 389. 2 % as
of December 31, 2023 ;eemparedto42t--5%as-of Deeember3+2022-. The provision for credit losses- loans was $ 45-18 . 5-8
million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2023-2024 compared to $ 15. 5 —8-million for the twelve months ended
December 31, 20222023 . The increase in the provision for credit loqseq loans for the twelve month% ended December 31,
%92—3—2024 was drlven prlmanly by increases in net Charge offq hteh-ine he-a menttoned-partia

tnefease-and franchlse ﬁnance portfolms, as well as growth in ACL discussed above the-proviston-for-ereditlosses—toans
g, paltlally offset by lower net charge- offs in the commercial
v Sein HH o s— portfolio . [nvestment Securities Portfolio In
managing our investment securities portfoho management focuses on providing an adequate level of liquidity and managing
long- term interest rate risk, while earning an adequate level of investment income without taking undue credit risk. Investment
securities that are acquired and held principally for the purpose of selling them in the near term with the objective of generating
economic profits on short- term differences in market characteristics are classified as  trading securities. ” We did not classify
any securities as trading securities as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard2822-. Securities that we intend to hold until maturity
are classified as ““ held- to- maturity ” securities, and all other investment securities are classified as ““ available- for- sale. ” The
carrying values of available- for- sale investment securities are adjusted for unrealized gains or losses as a valuation allowance
and any gain or loss is reported on an after- tax basis as a component of other comprehensive income (loss). We periodically
evaluate each security in an unrealized loss position to determine if there is an impairment. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the
unrealized losses in our investment securities portfolio were due primarily to interest rate changes. We have the ability and
intent to hold all investment securities in an unrealized loss position resulting from interest rate changes to the earlier of the
forecasted recovery or the maturity of the underlying investment security. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , we did not have any




investment securities of a single issuer that exceeded 10 % of shareholders’ equity. The term “ issuer ” excludes the U. S.
Government and its sponsored agencies and corporations. The following tables present the amortized cost and approximate fair
value of our investment securities portfolio by security type as of the end of the last two years. (amounts in thousands)
December 31, Amortized €ost20232022Seeurittes-Cost20242023Securities available- for- saleU. S. Government- sponsored
agencies $ 83, 811 $ 96, 404 $35-606-Municipal seenrittes69-securities67 , 441 69 , 494 68;958-Agency mortgage- backed
securities- restdential237- residential300 , 914 237 , 798 252:-066-Agency mortgage- backed securities- eommeretal46--
commercial64 ,214 40,215 -1—7—1-42—P11\fc1te label m01tgage backed securities- restdential2t-residential46 , 623 21 , 742 H5
FHAsset- bdcked seettﬂt—tes%—securltle523 802 8 , 071 5;-066-Corporate seeurtttes39-securities40 , 049 39 , 591 45—634—T0tal
securities available- for- sale543-sale626, 854 513, 315 436;183-Securities held- to- mdturltyl\/lumClpal Seettﬂ-HeS-B
securities12 , 843 13 | 889 43;:-946-Agency mortgage- backed securities- residenttaH-66—- residential201 , 840 166 , 750 245
853-Agency mortgage- backed securities- commercial5, 708 §, 767 5;-8+8-Corporate seettﬂt—tes49-securltle529 408 40 , 747 4%
S55+-Fotat-held—to—matarity; net2274+53189,1+68-Total securities held- to- maturity, net249, 796 227, 153 Total securities $
876, 650 $ 740, 468 $-625;351-(amounts in thousands) December 31, Approximate Fair Malte20232022Seeurities
Value20242023Securities available- for- saleU. S. Government- sponsored agencies $ 82, 816 $ 95, 177 $33;:-889-Municipal
seeunritiesé8-securities63 , 654 68 , 446 674276-Agency mortgage- backed securities- feae}eﬁt-ml%%» residential269 , 641 206 ,
649 2+5;-692-Agency mortgage- backed securities- eommereial38-- commercial63 , 331 38 , 885 +5;-846-Private 1dbel
mortgage- backed securities- restdential20-residentiald5 , 821 20 , 779 -1-9—455—Asset backed seeunrities8-securities23 , 821 8 ,
081 4;966-Corporate seeurities36-securities38 , 271 36 , 838 42—952—T0tal securities available- for- sale474-sale587, 355 474 ,
855 390;:384-Securities held- to- mdturityl\/lunicipal seeunritiest3-securities11 , 925 13 , 040 42;-832-Agency mortgage- backed
securities- restdentiaH52-residential184 , 412 152 , 642 +06;F4+-Agency mortgage- backed securities- commercial4, 548 4,

521 4:-552-Corporate seettﬂt—tes%—'/—securltle527 966 37 , 369 44358 Fotat-held—to—maturity207,-572168;-483-Total securities
held- to- maturity228, 851 207, 572 Total securities $ 816 206 $ 682, 427 $558;867-The approximate fair value of
investment securities available- for- sale increased $ 84-112 . 5 million, or 2423 . 6-7 %, to $ 587. 4 million as of December 31,
2024 compared to $ 474. 9 million as of December 31, 2023 eeﬁrpafed-te—$—}99—4—ﬁnﬂieﬂ—as—ef—9eeeﬂa-ber—3-1%922— The
increase was due primarily to increases of $ 63 61 t eren es .0
million in agency mortgage- backed securities- eeﬂﬂﬁefeta-l-&ﬂd—remdentlal $+6-25 . 3-0 m11110n n prwdte 1dbel morts_age—
backed securities- residential , $ 24. 4 million in agency mortgage- backed securities- commercial, and $ 15. 7 million in
asset- backed securities , pdltid]ly offset by decreases of $ 812 . 4 million in ageneymortgage-U. S. Government - backed
sponsored agencies sccuritics —restdenttal-and $ 6-4 . +8 million in eerperate-municipal sccuritics. Puring2023;-The increase

was primarily attributable to new purchase activity within the avallable- Geﬂ‘rp&ny—s—stf&tegy—fm purehasing-avatlable—for
- sale portfohos, partlally offset by net paydown actnvnty seet aperey-ad-hteh—egratity

eﬂ"v‘ﬁ‘eﬂl‘ﬂeﬁt— As of December 3 1, %92—3—2024 the Company had securities Wlth ﬁﬂ—&mefﬁzed—eest—basts—a net carrylng value
of § 267-249 . 6-8 million deﬂ,ﬁsnated as held- to- maturity compared to $ 468227 . 5-2 million as of December 31, 2622-2023 .
The increase was due primarily to purchases of CRA- eligible puarehases-efagency mortgage- backed securities- residential.
Investment Maturities The following table summarizes the contractual maturity schedule (without regard to repricing schedules)
of our investment securities at their amortized cost and their weighted average yields at December 31, 2623-2024 . 1 year or
lessMore than 1 year to 5 yearsMore than 5 years to 10 yearsMore than 10 yearsTotal (dollars in thousands) AmortizedCostWtd.
Avg. ¥teldAmertizedCostWid-Yieldl AmortizedCostWtd . Avg. YieldAmertizedCostWtd-YieldlAmortizedCostWtd . Avg.
YieldAmeortizedCostWid-Yieldl AmortizedCostWtd . Avg. YieldAmertizedCostWtd-Yieldl AmortizedCostWtd . Avg.
YieldSeeurities-Yield1Securities : U. S. Government- sponsored agencies $ 256-2-—0 . 8400 % $ +6 , 9964419 5 . 86-48 %%
$39-25 , 394500 5. 6132 % $ 54-51 , 767-892 5. 58-35 % $ 96-83 , 404-811 5. 5735 9% Municipal securities 52952 ,533 2 .
3561 % 11,987731 2. 89-94 % +6-27 , 938319 2. H-72 % 53-38 , +63-701 2. H-88 % 80, 284 2. 83 ;3832-73-% Agency
mortgage- backed securities- residential — — % 5681, 023 2 . 6826 % 4, 5582775 1 . 66-74 % 399-496 , 422-2-956 3 . 45-32
% 464-502 , 5482-754 3 . 45-31 % Agency mortgage- backed securities- commercial — — % 19, 973 4 -769-2-. 39-55 % 23,22
220 51586~ 1748 % 19-26 , 6552-726 3 . 84-64 %0 4569 , 982-919 4. 40-51 % Private- label mortgage- backed securities-
residential — — % — — % — — % 2446 , 7424623 5 . 6843 % 2146 , 7424623 5 . 68-43 % Asset- backed securities — —
% —— % —— %823, 671802 6. 94-00 % 823 , 671-6-802 5 . 94-62 % Corporate seenrities-securities10 , 000 4. 12
% 23-30 , 546-5-586 6 . 78-97 %0 5628 ., 792-871 4. 64-71 % — — % 86-69 ., 3384-457 6 . 98-00 % Total securities $ +12 , 545
2-533 3 .43-82 % $ 42-69 , 866-732 5. 40 % $ 109, 685 4%9%—$—1—39—837—4—84—%r$é§6€%9€—9§4}{1—$—749—46-8—3— 39 %
684, 700 3. 70 % $ 876, 650 3. 92 % 1 Weighted- average yields are calculated on a fully- taxable equivalent basis using
the federal statutory rate of 21 % for 2024. Accrued Income and Other Assets Accrued income and other assets increased $ &
11 . 29 million, or 43-23 . -3 %, to $ 63. 0 million at December 31, 2024 compared to $ 51. | million at December 31, 2023
eompared-to-$44-—9-mithon-at Deeember31;2022-. The increase was due primarily to increases of $ 12. 9 million in equ1ty
investments, $ 3. 0 million related to a bond that was called on December 30, 2024 and $ 2. 3 million in deferred-income
tax receivable, partially offset by a decrease of $ 5. 6 million in derivative asscts and-$3—4-mitlioninfund-investments-.
Deposits The following table presents the composition of our deposit base as of the end of the last two years. December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 20232022Neninterest—--- 20242023 Noninterest - bearing deposits $ 136,451 2.8 % $ 123,464 3.0 % $
+75;31+5-5—+% Interest- bearing demand depesits402-deposits896, 661 18. 2 % 402, 976 9. 9 % 335-Savings accounts19 ,
6H-9-823 0 . 84 % 21 Savings-aeeounts2, 364 0. 5 %44:-8+94-3-% Money market accounts!, 183, 789 24. 0 % 1, 248, 319
30. 8 % Fintech- brokered deposits1 — — % 74, 401 1 . 8 % Certificates of deposits2 , 4-1-8—133 59941455 43 . 2 % BaaS-
brokered-deposits74;40+-1 , 605, 156 39 . 8-5 % +3-Brokered deposits563 , 667-6-027 11 . 4 % 591 Certifteates-of depositst,
293 14 60515639 5 % Total § 874;:496-25-4 , 933, 206 100. 0 %, Brokered-deposits5952931H4—-5%578;8041+6-8 %5 TFotal




$ 4,066,973 100. 0 % $3-1 Fintech- brokered deposits that had been previously classified as brokered deposits were
reclassified to interest- bearing demand deposits as of December 31 , 2024 44+-2451406-. 6-%-Total deposits increased $ 625
866 . 72 million, or 4821 . 2-3 %, to $ 4. 9 billion as of December 31, 2024 compared to $ 4. 1 billion as of December 31,

2023 eempared-te-$3-—4-billionas-ef Peeember 34152022~ This increase was due primarily to increases of $ 736-528. 3 million,
or 32.9 %, in certificates of deposits, $ 493 . 7 million, or $3-122 . § 6%—m—eef&ﬁe&tes—ef—&epesﬁs4$—67—4—mﬂ+teﬁ—er—29—}
%, in interest- bearing demand deposits -and $ 66-13 . 8-0 million, or 446-10 . 8-5 %, in BaaS-noninterest - bearing brokered
deposits-and-$H12Smillen; 22 %in-brekered-deposits, partially offset by decreases of $ +78-64 . 3-5 million, or 42-5 . 82 %,
in money market accounts, $ 5428 . 9-3 million, or 29-4 . 6-8 %, in brokered noeninterest-—bearing-deposits ;and $ 23-1 . 5
million, or $2-7 . 3-2 %, in savings accounts. The increase in certificates of depesits-and-brokered-deposits was due primarily to
strong consumer and small business demand in 2023-2024 . The increase in interest- bearing demand deposits was due primarily
to growth in fintech partnership deposits. The irerease-decrease in BaaS-money market accounts was driven by general
customer withdraw activity which was due to larger - balance accounts that can experience volatility from time- to- time.
The decrease in brokered deposits was driven by using excess liquidity to paydown higher - cost payments-vetume-with-one

ef—etneﬁﬂteehjaaﬁfrers.—?heﬂﬂefeas&m—bfekefed—deposlts throughout was—due—te—the year -tssuanee—ef—}eﬁg-—term—bfekefeé

i i e primart i al-aetivity Unlnsured deposit balances represented 25 %
oftotal deposlts ﬁt—as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 —&ewn—ffeﬁa%%%—at—Beeember—}-l—E@Q—Z— These balances include
Indiana- based municipal deposits, which are insured by the Indiana Board for Depositories, as well as larger balance accounts
under contractual agreements that only allow withdrawal under certain conditions. After subtracting these types of deposits, the
adjusted uninsured deposit balance deereased-drops to 20 % as of December 31, 2024, compared to 19 % as of December 31,
2023 rdownfrom24-%as-of Peeember3+2622-. The following tables present contractual interest rates paid on time deposits,
their scheduled maturities, and the scheduled maturities for time deposits greater than $ 250, 000. Time Deposit Maturities at
December 31, 2823-2024 Period to Maturity Percentage of Total Certificate Accounts (dollars in thousands) Less than lyear > 1
yearto 2 years > 2 yearsto 3 yearsMore than3 yearsTotallnterest Rate: < 1. 00 % $ 64-85 , 307650 $ 9435 , +63-835 $ 47-34 ,
039-823 § — 53,6385 256-156 , 987143-308 6 . 8-6 % 1. 00 % — 1. 99 % +4-5 , 668381 9, 978 241 — 15, 600 0. 7 ;643254
62823:1493+-2-9% 2. 00 % — 2. 99 % 7+7 , 343 254 257-6; 247 2,87546-640 — 610142695968, 237 0. 3 % 3. 00 % — 3.
99 % 28-7 , 936-26-171 4 , 82627018 41 , +46-145-032 245 52 , 466 2 05719+H-05310-. 2 % 4. 00 % — 4. 99 % +275 , +42-227
66 , 267-56-961 83 , 988—963 26270 , 32—856—93—1—1—2—68—654—67—637 696, 788 29 . 73 % 5. 00 % —5.99 % 51, 099 955—
213—6-, 168-6-924 119, 404 71, 198 158, 759 1, 449, 285 60 . 3-9 % Total § 1, 332-480 , 424-696 $ +75-236 , §77-450 5 9&
231 , 749-897 $ 265429 , 964-641 $ 12 , 873-378 , 8+4-684 100. 0 % Time Deposlt Maturities Greater than $ 250, 000 ( deHars
amounts in thousands) December 3 1, 2023Matuarity-2024Maturity Period: 3 months or less $ 457126 , 444-949 Over 3 through
6 monthsH2-- months128 , 644-102 Over 6 through 12 menthst66-months237 , 658450 Over 12 menths273-months284 | -9
287 Total $ 7083-776 , 835-788 Federal Home Loan Bank Advances Although deposits are the primary source of funds for our
lending and investment activities and for general business purposes, we may use short- term advances from the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Indianapolis (the “ FHLB ) to manage liquidity needs and longer- term advances to supplement deposit growth
and manage interest rate risk. The following table is a summary of FHLB borrowings for the periods indicated. At or For The
Twelve Months Ended December 31, (dollars in thousands) 20232622Balanee-20242023Balance outstanding at end of period $
295,000 $ 614, 934 $-644;928-Average amount outstanding during pertedét4-period524 , 143 614 , 931 534344-Maximum
outstanding at any month end during period614, 935 614, 934 6+5:-928-Weighted average interest rate at end of period13. 39 %
3. 04 %2-82-% Weighted average interest rate during perteed3-period12 . 93 % 3 . 00 %2—45-% |Excludes the impact of
interest rate swaps. Refer to Note 18 to our consolidated financial statements for additional information about derivative
financial instruments. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities Accrued expenses and other liabilities deereased-increased $ -3

. 8 million, or 226 . 3-5 %, to $ 17. 9 million at December 31, 2024, compared to $ 14. 2 million at December 31, 2023 5
eempafed—te—$—1-4é—nﬂ-l-hen—&t—]9eeefﬁber—3-1%922— The deerease-increase was duc primarily to deereases-increases of $ 2 39
—2-million in accrued salary and benefits and $6-3 . 4-1 million in
aeefued—pfepefty—ta*es—varlous expenses and llablhtles pamally offset by inereases-a decrease of $ 3—1 —7—6 mllhon in the
reserve for unfunded Commltments 858 A as atton

management is the process used by the Company to manage the contmumg flow of funds necessary to meet 1ts financial
commitments on a timely basis and at a reasonable cost while also maintaining safe and sound operations. Liquidity,
represented by cash and investment securities, is a product of the Company”’ s operating, investing and financing activities. The
primary sources of funds are deposits, principal and interest payments on loans and investment securities, maturing loans and
investment securities, access to wholesale funding sources and collateralized borrowings. While scheduled payments and
maturities of loans and investment securities are relatively predictable sources of funds, deposit flows are greatly influenced by
interest rates, general economic conditions and competition. Therefore, the Company supplements deposit growth and enhances
interest rate risk management through borrowings and wholesale funding, which are generally advances from the Federal Home
Loan Bank and brokered deposits. The Company holds cash and investment securities that qualify as liquid assets to maintain
adequate liquidity to ensure safe and sound operations and meet its financial commitments. At December 31, 2623-2024 , on a
consolidated basis, the Company had $ 8-1 . 9-1 billion in cash and cash equivalents and investment securities available- for-
sale, and $ 22-54 . +-7 million in loans held- for- sale that were generally available for our cash needs. The Company can also



generate funds from wholesale funding sources and collateralized borrowings. At December 31, 2623-2024 , the Bank had the
ability to borrow an additional $ 1. 2-7 billion from the FHLB, the Federal Reserve and correspondent bank Fed Funds lines of
credit. The Company is a separate legal entity from the Bank and must provide for its own liquidity. In addition to its operating
expenses, the Company is responsible for paying any dividends declared to its common shareholders and interest and principal
on outstanding debt. The Company’ s primary sources of funds are cash maintained at the holding company level and dividends
from the Bank, the payment of which is subject to regulatory limits. At December 31, 2023-2024 , the Company, on an
unconsolidated basis, had $ +-13 . 6-0 million in cash generally available for its cash needs, which is in excess of its current
annual regular shareholder dividend and operating expenses. The Company uses its sources of funds primarily to meet ongoing
financial commitments, including withdrawals by depositors, credit commitments to borrowers, operating expenses and capital
expenditures. At December 31, 2023-2024 , approved outstanding loan commitments, including unused lines of credit and
standby letters of credit, amounted to $ #55-667 . 4-7 million. Certificates of deposits and brokered certificates of deposits
scheduled to mature in one year or less at December 31, 2023-2024 totaled $ 1. 3-5 billion . At December 31, 2024, capital
ratios for the Company and the Bank were above regulatory requirements for well- capitalized institutions. Refer to “
Note 14: Regulatory Capital Requirements ” for additional information regarding regulatory capital requirements .
Management is not aware of any other events or regulatory requirements that, if implemented, are likely to have a material effect
on either the Company’ s or the Bank”’ s liquidity. The following table presents the Company’ s significant contractual
obligations as of December 31, 2623-2024 . Payments Due In ( deHars-amounts in thousands) Note ReferencelLess than 1 yearl-
3 years3- 5 yearsMore than 5 yearsTotalDeposits and brokered deposits without stated maturityl 8 $ $2,493;959———2,
193554 ,959-521$ —$—$— $ 2, 554, 521 Certificates of deposits and brokered deposits181, 332-480 , 424-274-659 468 ,
626259-384 429 , 564-6-642 — 2 , 378 4661, 685 §73;-644-F HL B advaneest-advances1950 ;-29255;-663-166-, 000 +35-60 ,
000 424-35 , 93+-6+4-000 150 , 934-000 295, 000 Subordinated debt1 10 — — —107, 000 — 107, 000 Total contractual
obligations § 3;785386-$374626-$394,564-5238,331-54, 48-8—085 997—180 $ 528 384 $ 571 642 $ 150 000 $ 5 335

206 1 Amounts do not 1nclude as%ocrated interest payments.

repurchase program authorlzmg the repurchase ofup to $30. 0 mrlhon of the Company s outstanding common stock from time
to time on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. In October 2022, the Company’ s Board of Directors
increased the authorization to $ 35. 0 million. The Company repurchased a total of 855, 956 shares at an average price of $ 36.
31 per share under the program through December 19, 2022. On December 19, 2022, the Company' s Board of Directors
approved a new stock repurchase program to replace the prior program. The new program authorized the repurchase of up to $
25. 0 million of our outstanding common stock from time to time on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. The
stock repurchase authorization is-seheduted-to-expire-expired en-as of December 31, 2024. Under this program, the Company
repurchased 582-10 , 525-500 shares of common stock at an average price of $ 48-26 . 4895 per share -during 2023-2024 and
46-, 497-502, 525 shares of common stock at an average price of $ 18. 40 per share during 2023, and 46, 497 shares of

common stock atan average prlce of $ 24.42 per qhare —durmg 2022 ﬁ&s—e%Beeembeﬁ-l—Z@%—t-he—Gemp&nyhad%—}*é

Analy%l% contains ﬁnancral 1nf0rmat10n dctermlncd by mcthod% othcr than in accordance Wrth GAAP. N on- GAAP financial
measures, specifically tangible common equity, tangible assets, tangible book value per common share, tangible common equity
to tangible assets, average tangible common equity, return on average tangible common equity, total interest income- FTE, net
interest income- FTE, net interest margin- FTE, adjusted total revenue, adjusted noninterest income, adjusted noninterest
expense, adjusted income before income taxes, adjusted income tax provision (benefit) , adjusted net income, adjusted diluted
earnings per share, adjusted return on average assets, adjusted return on average shareholders’ equity and adjusted return on
average tangible common equity are used by the Company' s management to measure the strength of its capital and analyze
profitability, including its ability to generate earnings on tangible capital invested by its sharecholders. The Company also
believes that it is standard practice in the banking industry to present total interest income, net interest income and net interest
margin on a fully- taxable equivalent basis, as those measures provide useful information for peer comparisons. Although the
Company believes these non- GAAP financial measures provide a greater understanding of its business, they should not be
considered a substitute for financial measures determined in accordance with GAAP, nor are they necessarily comparable to
non- GAAP financial measures that may be presented by other companies. Reconciliations of these non- GAAP financial
measures to the most directly comparable GAAP financial measures are included in the following tables for the last three
completed fiscal years ended on December 31. (dollars in thousands, except share and per share data) At or For The Twelve
Months Ended December 31, 202326222024 Fotal----- 202420232022 Total cquity- GAAP $ 384, 063 $ 362, 795 $ 364,974 &
380;338-Adjustments: Goodwill (4, 687) (4, 687) (4, 687) Tangible common equity $ 379,376 $ 358, 108 $ 360, 287 $375;-65+
Total assets- GAAP $ 5,737,859 $ 5, 167, 572 $ 4, 543, 104 $4:2406;-994-Adjustments: Goodwill (4, 687) (4, 687) (4, 687)
Tangible assets $ 5,733,172 $ 5, 162, 885 $ 4, 538, 417 $4;206;307Total common shares outstanding8, 667, 894 8, 644, 451
9, 065, 883 95754;455-Book value per common share $ 44.31 $41. 97 $ 40. 26 $3899-Effect of goodwill (0. 54) (0. 54) (0.
52 3H0-+48-) Tangible book value per common share $ 43. 77 $ 41. 43 § 39. 74 $38-5+Total sharcholders’ equity to assets?
assets6 . 69 % 7 . 02 % 8. 03 % 9-Effect of goodwill (0 . 63-07 % ) Effeetofgoodwil-0. 08 %) (0. 09 %)6-—36-%) Tangible
common equity to tangible assets6. 62 % 6. 94 % 7. 94 %-8-93-% Total average equity- GAAP $ 377,215 $ 357, 800 $ 372,
844 $358,105-Adjustments: Average goodwill (4, 687) (4, 687) (4, 687) Average tangible common equity $ 372, 528 § 353,
113 $ 368, 157 $353;448-Return on average sharcholders' equity2-equity6 . 70 % 2 . 35 % 9. 53 % +3-Effect of goodwill0 . 44



08 % 0 Effeetofgoodwilto-. 03 % 0. 12 %-6-—37% Return on average tangible common equity2-equity6 . 78 % 2 . 38 % 9. 65
9513-61% Total interest income $ 291, 887 $ 239, 442 $ 156, 908 $433;:-883-Adjustments: Fully- taxable equivalent
adjustmentstS-adjustments14 , 650 5, 233 5, 355 5;453-Total interest income- FTE § 296,537 $ 244, 675 $ 162, 263 $439;
336-Net interest income $ 87,377 $ 74, 904 § 97, 093 $86;-556-Adjustments: Fully- taxable equivalent adjustmentsts
adjustments14 , 650 5, 233 5, 355 5;453-Net interest income- FTE § 92,027 $ 80, 137 $ 102, 448 $92,-889-Net interest
marginl. 65 % 1. 56 % 2. 41 % 2—+H-%Effect of fully- taxable equivalent adjustments10. 09 % 0. 11 % 0. 13 %-6—34-% Net
interest margin- FTE1. 74 % 1. 67 % 2. 54 %2-25% 1Assuming a 21 % tax rate (dollars in thousands, except share and per
share data) At or For The Twelve Months Ended December 31, 202320222024 Fotal---- 202420232022 Total Revenue- GAAP
$134,722 $ 101, 029 $ 118, 350 $H9,4006-Adjustments: Mortgage- related revenue — (65) Gain on sale-prepayment
of premtses—a-nd—equfpmeﬂt—F HLB advances (1, 829) — — Gain on termination of interest rate swaps (2, 523-904 )
Subordinated-debtredemptioneost-— — 8H0-Adjusted total revenue $ 129,989 $ 100, 964 § 118, 350 $HF-68FNoninterest
income- GAAP $ 47,345 $ 26, 125 § 21, 257 $32,-844-Adjustments: Mortgage- related revenue — (65) Gain on sale
prepayment of premises-and-eguipment FHLB advances (1, 829) — — Gain on termination of interest rate swaps (2, 523
904 ) — — Adjusted noninterest income $ 42, 612 $ 26, 060 $ 21, 257 $36;324-Noninterest expense- GAAP $ 90, 110 $ 79,
436 $ 73, 273 $-64,798-Adjustments: Mortgage- related costs — (3, 052) Acquisition- related expenses — — (273) 4633
IT Fermination-termination fee-fees —( 475-452 ) — — Nonrecurring consulting fee — — (875) —Write- down of Software
— — (125) —Discretionary inflation bonus — — (531) —Accelerated equity compensation — — (289) Anniversary
expenses (120) — — Adjusted noninterest expense $ 89,538 $ 76, 384 § 71, 180 $633460-Income before income taxes-
GAAP $27,542 $ 4, 940 $ 40, 100 $56;-572-Adjustments: 1 Mortgage- related revenue — (65) — —Mortgage- related eests3

- costs — 3 , 052 — —Gainensate-of premises-and-equipment———2;-523)-Partial charge- off of C & I participation teané—-
loan —6 , 914 Acquisition- related expenses — — 273 +63-1T Termination-termination fee-fees452 — 475-—

Nonrecurring consulting fee — — 875 —Write- down of Seftware-software — — 125 —Suberdinated-debtredemptionreost
——=8+6-Discretionary inflation bonus — — 531 —Accelerated equity compensation — — 289 Anniversary expenses120
— — Gain on prepayment of FHLB advances (1, 829) — — Gain on termination of interest rate swaps (2, 904) — —
Adjusted income before income taxes $ 23,381 $ 14, 841 § 42, 193 $-55-1Assuming a 21 % tax rate (dollars in thousands ,
497-Ineome-except share and per share data) At or For The Twelve Months Ended December 31, 202420232022Income
tax provision (benefit) - GAAP $ 2,266 $ (3, 477) $ 4, 559 $8;458-Adjustments: 1 Mortgage- related revenue — (14) — —
Mortgage- related eestsé4t—-- costs — 641 — Gairronsale-of premises-and-equipment———536)-Partial charge- off of C & |
participation eand— loan — 1 , 452 Acquisition- related expenses — — 57 34-1T Ferminattorrtermination fee-fees95 —
+80-Nonrecurring consulting fee — — 184 —Write- down of Seftware-software — — 26 —Suberdinated-debtredemption
eost——170-Discretionary inflation bonus — — 112 —Accelerated equity compensation — — 61 Anniversary expenses2S
— — Gain on prepayment of FHLB advances (384) — — Gain on termination of interest rate swaps (610) — —
Adjusted income tax provision $ benefit) $ 1,392 $ (1, 398) $ 4, 999 Net income- GAAP $ 25, 276 $ 8, 232-(51) —
Mortgage- related costs2 411 — — Partial char ge- off of C & [ participation fean-loanS —5-,462 —-I—T—tem—rnﬁﬁeﬁ—feesaéq-
— Gain on sale of premises and equipment — — (1,993) IT Termination fee — — 375 Acquisition- related expenses — —
216 129 Nonrecurring consulting fee — 691 — 694Write- down of seftware-Software — 99 — Subordinated debt
redemptlon cost — — 99—640 DlSCIQthHdIy inflation bonus — 419 — 4-1-9—Accele1dted equ1ty Compemdtlon ——228

(%%94)* Adjusted net income -$€-1—9-8-9—b 16, 239 $37, 194 $ 47 265 Dlluted average common shdres outstandms_é% —7-65—725
§-,858,890 9,595,115 9,976,261 Diluted earnings per share- GAAP $ 1 Assuming a 21 % tax rate (dollars in thousands, except
share and per share data) At or For The Twelve Months Ended December 3 1, 202320222024 Netineome—GAAR-$S;

202420232022Return on average assets0. 46 % 0. 417 17 % 0. 85 % Effect of -$—35%4—1—$—48—1—1~4—A:djﬁsﬁneﬁts~Meftgage
mortgage - related revenue-revenue0 . 00 % (51) — — Mortgage-...... Diluted earnings per share- GAAP $ 0. 00 % 95-$3-76

$4-82-Adjustments—Mortgage-—relatedrevente(0. 6———00 % Effect of Mortgage-mortgage - related costs0. 00 % 27—
—Effeetof gainon-sale-of premises-and-equipment———~C0. -1-9)—05 % 0. 00 % Effect of partml charoe off of C &1

participation loan0. 6

ﬂ&eﬁg&ge-—re}ated-reveﬂuee—()() % 0. 11 % 0. 00 % Effect of acqu1s1t10n- related expensesO ()() % 0 00 % 0. 01 % Effect of
IT termination fees0 mortgage—relatedeostsd- 65-01 % 0. 00 % 0. 00 % Effect of nonrecurring consulting fee gain-on-—sale
ef—pfeﬂﬁses—aﬂd-eqmpﬂ&eﬂte— 00 % 0. 00 % €0. 65-02 % y-Effect of discretionary inflation bonus0 pattiat-eharge—offof-C-&1

.00 % 0. 00 % 0. 01 % Effect of accelerated equity compensation0 aequisition-—related-expensesd
.00%0.00 % 0. ()1 % Effect of anniversary expenses0. 00 % 0. 00 % 0. 00 % Effect of H+terminationfee6-gain on

prepayment of FHLB advances (0 03 %) 0. 00 % 0. 00 % Effect of galn on termination of 1nterest rate swaps ( 0. 6+04 %

%92—3%92—2%92—1—Return—0n average shmeholdeu eqtrrt—y-z—equlty6 70 % 2]. 25 % 9.53 % -1-3—Effect of mortgage- related
revenue( . 44-00 % (0. 01 %) 0. 00 %% Effect of morts_age reldted costsO feveﬂue—fe—e-lé%-ﬁ— 00 % 0. 99%—E—ffeet—e~f

mertgage—related-eostsf—67 % 0. 00 % 6: 54
Effect of partial charge- off of C & I paItlupdtlon J:ezarﬂ-l—loano 00 % 1 52 % 0. 00 % Effect of acqu1s1t10n- related




expenses0. 00 % 0. 00 % 0. 06 % Effect of IT termination fees0. 09 % 0. 00 % 0. 00 % Effect of nonrecurring consulting
fee( aequisition——related-expensesd-. 00 % 0. 86-%-0-04-%Effeetof Hterminattonfeed--00 % 0. 19 % Effect of write- down
of software(. 00 % 0. +0-%4Effeet-ofnonreenrring-eonsulting-feedb-00 % 0. 19-03 % Effect of discretionary inflation bonus0.
00 % 0. 00 % 0. 11 % Effect of accelerated equity compensation(. 00 % 0. 00 % 0. 06 % Effect of anniversary expenses(.
03 % 0. 00 °% 0. 00 % Effect of swrite—down-gain on prepayment of seftware6-FHLB advances (0. 38 %) 0 . 00 % 0. 83-%96-
00 % Effect ot suberdrnated—&el:—rt—re&enmﬁeﬂ—ees{—galn on termination of interest rate swaps ( 0. 61 %) 0 00 %—9—99—%—9—1—8

00 % Adjusted return on average shareholders equﬁy4—equlty5 83 % 4 54 % 9. 98 %—1-3—2-9—% Return on average tanglble
common equtty2-equity6 . 78 % 2 . 38 % 9. 65 % +3-Effect of mortgage- related revenue0 . 6+00 % (0. 01 %) 0. 00 %
Effect of mortgage- related costs0 reverte(0-61H-%0-. 00 % 0. 80-%Effeet-of mortgage-related-eostsf—068 %06-066-% 0. 00 %
Effect of partial charge- off of C & I participation teant-loan0. 00 % 1 . 55 % 0. 00 % Effect of acquisition- related
expenses0. 00 % 0. 00 % 0. 06 % Effect of IT termination fees0. 10 % 0. 00 % 0. 00 % Effect of nonrecurring consulting
fee( gain-onsale-ofpremises-andequipmentd-. 00 % 0. 00 % (0. 56-19 % yEffect of aequisition-write - related-expensest-down
of software0 00 % 0. 96%—9—94—%—Effeet—ef—l—l"—tef&nﬂaﬁen—fee9—00 % 0. 60-%-0-—16-%Effeetof nonteeurring-eonsulting

€ vrtte § are —03 96-0-00-% Effect of subordinated debt redemption
costO 00 % O 00 % 0 -1-8—00 % Eﬁect of dlseretronary 1nﬂat10n bonus0. 00 % 0. 00 % 0. 11 % Effect of accelerated equity
compensation0. 00 % 0. 00 % 0. 06 % Effect of anniversary expenses0. 03 % 0. 00 % 0. 00 % Effect of aeeelerated-eguity
eompensationd-gain on prepayment of FHLB advances (0. 39 %) 0 . 00 % 0. 66-00 % Effect of gain on termination of
interest rate swaps (0. 62 %) 0. 00 % 0. 00 % Adjusted return on average tangible common eguity4-equity5 . 90 % 4 . 60 %
10. 10 %43-37% Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates ACL Adeptionrof new-aceountingstandardsASH26+6- Loans
Management considers +3-OnJantary12623-the Company-adopted-ASU-26+6-policies related to the ACL - 63-loans to be
crltlcal to the Frnanet&l—ﬁnanclal statement presentatnon {nsﬁﬂments—ereéﬂesses-(iA—S%%él)—Measufe&wﬁt—e-ﬁere&ﬁ

losses on loans 1ncludes act1v1ty related to allowances calculated in accordance with Accountmg Standards Codification
(“ ACEE-ASC ) 326 ineludes$23-millionrelatedtetoans-, Financial Instruments $3--9-mittionrelated-to-off-- balaneesheet
ereditCredit Losses expostres-and-$-0-. 3-millionrelated-to-held—to—maturity-debtseeurities—ACk—Eeans-The ACL for loans
represents management' s estimate of all expected credit losses over the expected life of the Company’ s existing loan portfolio.
Management estimates the ACL balance using relevant available information about the collectability of cash flows, from
internal and external sources, including historical information relating to past events, current conditions, and reasonable and
supportable forecasts of future economic conditions. When the Company is unable to forecast future economic events,
management may revert to historical information. Accrued interest receivable on loans tetated-$20-9-mithenas-of Deeember
3452623-and-is excluded from the estimate of credit losses. The Company made the accounting policy election to not measure
an ACL for accrued interest receivable. Accrued interest deemed uncollectible will be written off through interest income. ACL-
Loans- Collectively Evaluated The ACL is measured on a collective pool basis when similar risk characteristics exist. The
Company utilized a discounted cash flow (“ DCF ’) method to estimate the quantitative portion of the allowance for credit losses
for loans evaluated on a collective pooled basis. For each segment, a loss driver analysis was performed in order to identify loss
drivers and create a regression model for use in forecasting cash flows. In creating the DCF model, the Company has established
a one- year reasonable and supportable forecast period with a one- year straight line reversion to the long- term historical
average for most segments . Due to its mintmeat-limited loss history, the Company elected to use peer data for a more
reasonable calculation. Key inputs into the DCF model include loan- level detail, including the amortized cost basis of
individual loans, payment structure, loss history, and forecasted loss drivers. The Company utilizes a third party to provide
economic forecasts under various scenarios, which are assessed quarterly considering the scenarios in the context of the current
economic environment and loss risk. Expected credit losses are estimated over the contractual term of the loans and adjusted for
prepayments when appropriate. The contractual term excludes extensions, renewals, and modifications unless the extension or
renewal options are included in the original or modified contract at the reporting date and are not unconditionally cancellable by
the Company. Additional key assumptions in the DCF model include the probability of default (*“ PD ), loss given default (“
LGD ”), and prepayment / curtailment rates. The Company utilizes the model- driven PD and a LGD derived from a method
referred to as Frye Jacobs. The Frye Jacobs method is a mathematical formula that traces the relationship between LGD and PD
over time and projects the LGD based on the level of PD forecasted. In all cases, the Frye Jacobs method is utilized to calculate
LGDs during the forecast period, reversion period and long- term historical average. Prepayment and curtailment rates were
calculated through third party analysis of the Company’ s own data. Qualitative factors for the DCF and weighted- average
remaining maturity methodologies include the following: * Changes in lending policies and procedures, including changes in
underwriting standards and collections, charge- offs and recovery practices « Changes in international, national, regional and
local conditions ¢ Changes in the nature and volume of the portfolio and terms of loans ¢ Changes in the experience, depth and
ability of lending management ¢ Changes in the volume and severity of past due loans and other similar conditions ¢« Changes in



the quality of the organization’ s loan review system ¢ Changes in the value of underlying collateral for collateral dependent
loans « The existence and effect of any concentrations of credit and changes in the levels of such concentrations ¢ The effect of
other external factors (i. e. competition, legal and regulatory requirements) on the level of estimated credit losses ACL- Loans-
Individually Evaluated Loans that do not share risk characteristics are evaluated on an individual basis and are excluded from
the collective evaluation. The Company has determined that any loans which have been placed on nonaccrual status will be
individually evaluated. Individual analysis will establish a specific reserve for loans, if necessary. Specific reserves on
nonaccrual loans are typically based on management’ s best estimate of the fair value of collateral securing these loans, adjusted
for selling costs as necessary. ACL- Off- Balance Sheet Credit Exposures The Company estimates expected credit losses over
the contractual period in which the Company is exposed to credit risk via a contractual obligation to extend credit, unless that
obligation is unconditionally cancellable by the Company. The allowance on off- balance sheet credit exposure is recorded as a
liability and adjusted as a provision for credit loss expense. The estimate includes consideration of the likelihood that funding
will occur and an estimate of expected credit losses on commitments expected to be funded over its estimated life. Funding rates
are based on a historical analysis of the Company’ s portfolio, while estimates of credit losses are determined using the same
loss rates as funded loans. At-Allowance for Loan Losses Management believes the allowance for loan losses is a critical
accounting policy that requires the most significant judgments and assumptions used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements.An estimate of potential losses inherent in the loan portfolio is determined and an
allowance for the-those time-ef-adoption-losses is established by considering factors including historical loss rates . the
expected cash flows, estimated reserve-was-$-0-collateral values,and other qualitative factors . 3—ﬂ‘l-l-l'l-leﬁ—l'ﬂﬁ-p&ﬁ‘l‘1‘teﬁt—The
allowance for loan losses represents management’ s best estimate of Geodwill-losses inherent in the existing loan portfolio
As—a—resul-t—ef—a—pfevteﬁs—aeqtustt-reﬂ—The allowance for loan losses is 1ncreased by the provision Cempany;goodwilan
angible-a vith-an-ind - v valuated-for impairment-anaually-loan
losses charged to expense and reduced by loans charged off ﬂﬂless—there—are-faetefs—pfeseﬁt—that—mdwate—ﬁaeteﬂ&al

s f recoveries tneeme—and—e*peﬂse
ente%mte—etu&repeﬁed—meeme—&nd—ta*&ble—meeﬂ&e— Management evaluates the allowance Deferred-tax-assets-and-tabilities
are—estab-hshed—for t-hese—ttems—as—loan losses quarterly If they— the underlying assumptions later prove arise-Froman
viewed-t0 be inaccurate determine-ifthey-are-realizabte-based on subsequent
loss evaluatlons, the allowance for loan losses is adjusted.Management estimates the appropriate level of allowance for
loan losses by separately evaluating impaired and non- impaired loans.A specific allowance is assigned to an impaired
loan when expected cash flows or collateral do not justify the carrying amount of the loan.The methodology used to
assign an allowance to a non- impaired loan is more subjective.Generally,the allowance assigned to non- impaired loans
is determined by applying historical fevel-oftaxable-ineome-loss rates to existing loans with similar risk characteristics .
estimates-of future-taxable-ineome-adjusted for qualitative factors including changes in economic and business conditions
the-reversals-of deferred-taxtiabilittes-In-most-eases-, therealizationr-unemployment rates,concentrations of credit,changes in
the deferred-tax-assetnature and volume of the portfolio,terms of loans,risk grades,trends in charge- offs and
recoveries,trends in delinquencies,nonaccrual loans,and impaired loans,and changes in lending policies and
procedures.Because the economic and business climate in any given industry or market,and is-its based-impact on future
any given borrower,can change rapidly,the risk profile of the loan portfolio is periodically assessed and adjusted when
appropriate.Notwithstanding these procedures,there still exists the profitability— -- possibility +f<we-were-that the
assessment could prove to expeﬂeﬁee—net—epefatrng—be s1gn1ﬁcantly 1ncorrect and that an immediate adjustment to the
allowance for loan losses : d-tax-assets-would be required evaluated

for-a-potential-valuationreserve- Recent Accountms_ Plonouncements Reler to Note 22-23 to our consolidated financial
statements.Off- Balance Sheet Arrangements In the ordinary course of business,we may enter into financial transactions to
extend credit,engage in interest rate swaps or other forms of commitments that may be considered off- balance sheet
arrangements.Interest rate swaps were arranged to receive hedge accounting treatment and were classified as either fair value or
cash flow hedges.Fair value hedges were purchased to convert certain fixed rate assets to floating rate.Cash flow hedges were
used to convert certain variable rate liabilities into fixed rate liabilities. At December 31, 2023-2024 and-,we had no interest
rate swaps that were class1ﬁed as either falr value or cash ﬂow hedges At December 31, %92—2—2023 ,we had interest rate

million. Reler to Note 18 to our consohdqted f1mnc1dl stqtements for dddltlondl information about dem ative financial
instruments.ltem 7A.Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk Market risk is the risk of loss arising from
adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments due to changes in interest rates,foreign exchange rates and equity
prices.The primary source of market risk for the Company is interest rate risk,which can be defined as the risk to earnings and
the value of our equity resulting from changes in market interest rates.Interest rate risk arises in the normal course of business to
the extent that there are timing and volume differences between the amount of interest- earning assets and the amount of
interest- bearing liabilities that are prepaid,withdrawn,re- priced or mature in specified periods.We seek to achieve consistent
growth in net interest income and equity while managing volatility arising from shifts in market interest rates. We monitor the
Company’ s interest rate risk position using income simulation models and economic value of equity (“ EVE ) sensitivity
analysis that capture both short- term and long- term interest rate risk exposure.Income simulation involves forecasting net



interest income (“ NII ”) under a variety of interest rate scenarios.We use EVE sensitivity analysis to understand the impact of
changes in interest rates on long- term cash flows,income and capital. EVE is calculated by discounting the cash flows for all
balance sheet instruments under different interest- rate scenarios.Modeling the sensitivity of NII and EVE to changes in market
interest rates is highly dependent on the assumptions incorporated into the modeling process,especially those pertaining to non-
maturity deposit accounts.These assumptions are reviewed and refined on an ongoing basis by the Company.We continually
model our NII and EVE positions with various interest rate scenarios and assumptions of future balance sheet composition.We
utilize implied forward rates as its base case scenario which reflects market expectations for rate nereases-changes over the
next 24 months.Presented below is the estimated impact on our NII and EVE position as of December 31, 2623-2024 ,assuming
a static balance sheet and instantaneous parallel shifts in interest rates:% Change from Base Case for Instantaneous Parallel
Changes in RatesImplied Forward Curve- 200 Basis PointsImplied Forward Curve- 100 Basis PointsBase Implied Forward
Curvelmplied Forward Curve 50 Basis PointsImplied Forward Curve 100 Basis PointsNII- Year +26-18 . 32-88 % 1+6-5 . $3-04
% N/ A (43 .5+10 %) (86 . 8630 %) NII- Year 243-223 . 01 94-%38H-%29-04-%24-52-"% 20. 69 +7+%EVE26:38% 10.
6212 % 12.65 % 8.89 % EVE23.73 % 14.33 % N / A (6-8 . 93-32 %) (43-17 . 75-04 %) To supplement the instantaneous
rate shocks required by regulatory guidance,we also calculate our interest rate risk position assuming a gradual change in market
interest rates.This gradual change is commonly referred to as a “ rate ramp ” and evenly allocates a change in interest rates over
a specified time period.Presented below is the estimated impact on our NII and EVE position as of December 31, 2623-2024
,assuming a static balance sheet and gradual parallel shifts in interest rates over a twelve- month period:% Change from Base
Case for Gradual Changes in RatesImplied Forward Curve- 200 Basis PointsImplied Forward Curve- 100 Basis PointsBase
Implied Forward Curvelmplied Forward Curve 50 Basis PointsImplied Forward Curve 100 Basis PointsNII- Year ++12 . 78-92
%41 .46-60 % N/ A (21 .43-17 %) (42 . 92-32 %) NII- Year 244-76-%3844-%29-64-%2318 %1718 % EVE24-22-224
Yo+ 8519 % 20.94 % 16.11 % 12.53 % 8.91 % EVE21.86 % 13.31 % N/ A (7. 6759 %) (15. 39-59 %) The NII and EVE
figures presented in both tables above are reflective of a static balance sheet,and do not incorporate either balance sheet growth
or strategies to increase net interest income while managing volatility arising from shifts in market interest rates.As such,it is
likely that actual results will differ from what is presented in the tables above.Balance sheet strategies to achieve such objective
may include:e Increasing the proportion of low- duration or variable- rate loans to total loans,including organic growth in
SBA,construction or C & I lending * Selling longer- term fixed rate loans ¢ Increasing the proportion of lower cost non- maturity
deposits to total deposits * Extending the duration of wholesale funding ¢ Executing derivative strategies to synthetically extend
liability or shorten asset duration * Repositioning the investment portfolio to manage its duration Item 8.Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data The consolidated financial statements and notes thereto required pursuant to this Item begin on page F-
1 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K.Item 9.Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure Item 9A.Controls and Procedures Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures The Company maintains
disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information the Company is required to disclose in reports
that the Company files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded,processed,summarized and reported within the time
period specified in SEC rules and forms.These controls and procedures are also designed to ensure that such information is
accumulated and communicated to management,including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer,as
appropriate,to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.In designing and evaluating disclosure controls and
procedures,the Company has recognized that any controls and procedures,no matter how well designed and operated,can
provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives.Management is required to apply judgment in
evaluating its controls and procedures.The Company performed an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation
of management,including the Company’ s principal executive officer and principal financial officer,to assess the effectiveness of
the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures under the Exchange Act.Based on that evaluation,our
management,including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer,concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of December 31, 2023-2024 .Report of Management' s Assessment of Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting for the Company,including accounting and other internal control systems that,in the opinion of management,provide
reasonable assurance that (1) transactions are properly authorized,(2) the assets are properly safeguarded,and (3) transactions are
properly recorded and reported to permit the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. The Company’ s management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’ s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2623-2024 .In making this assessment,management used the criteria
set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013).Based on that assessment,management concluded that,as of December 31, 2623-2024 ,the Company’ s
internal control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria.The Company’ s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2623-2024 has been audited by FORVAS-Forvis Mazars ,LLP.an independent registered public
accounting firm,as stated in its report appearing on page F- 2.Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting There has
been no change in the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2623-2024
,that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect,the Company' s internal control over financial
reporting.Item 9B. Other lnformatlon None of our dlrectors or ofﬁcers (as defined in Rule 16a- 1 (f) of the Securltles Exchange
Act)adopted 5 edsor-terminated-any-eontraetinstraetion en-plan ha




Seeurities Exehange-Aetj-adopted;modifted-, or terminated any contract,instruction,or written plan for the purchase or sale of our
securities that was intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5- 1 (c) of the Securities Exchange Act or
any non- Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangement (as defined in Item 408 (c) of Regulation S- K) during the fiscal quarter ended
December 31, 2623-2024 .Item 9C.Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections Not Applicable. PART
III Certain information required by Part III is incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2624-2025
Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “ Proxy Statement ”),which we intend to file with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A
within 120 days after December 31, 2623-2024 .Except for those portions specifically incorporated by reference from our Proxy
Statement,no other portions of the Proxy Statement are deemed to be filed as part of this report.Item 10.Directors,Executive
Officers and Corporate Governance Information about our Executive Officers Our executive officers are as
follows:NameAgePositionDavid B. Beeker76Chairman-Becker71Chairman ,Chief Executive Officer and DirectorNicole S.
Forehd9Prestdent-LorchS0President ,Chief Operating Officer and SecretaryKenneth J. bevikS4Exeeuntive-LovikSSExecutive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer David B.Becker has served as our Chairman of the Board since 2006,as our Chief
Executive Officer since 2007,and as our President from 2007 to June 2021.Mr.Becker is the founder of the Bank and has served
as an officer and director of the Bank since 1998.Nicole S.Lorch has served as Secretary since June of 2022 and as President and
Chief Operating Officer since June 2021.Previously,she served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer since
January 2017.Ms.Lorch joined the Company as Director of Marketing in 1999 and served as Vice President,Marketing &
Technology from 2003 to 2011 and Senior Vice President,Retail Banking from 2011 to January 2017.She previously served as
Director of Marketing at Virtual Financial Services,an online banking services provider,from 1996 to 1999.Kenneth J.Lovik has
served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since January 2017.Mr.Lovik joined the
Company in August 2014 as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.Previously,he served as Senior Vice
President,Investor Relations and Corporate Development,at First Financial Bancorp,a publicly traded bank holding company
headquartered in Cincinnati,Ohio,from February 2013 to May 2014.Prior to that,he served as its Vice President,Investor
Relations and Corporate Development,from 2010 to February 2013.Before First Financial Bancorp,he was an investment banker
at Milestone Advisors LLC,Howe Barnes Hoefer & Arnett,Inc.and A.G.Edwards & Sons,Inc.Executive officers are elected
annually by our Board of Directors and serve a one- year petioe-term or until their successors are elected.None of the above-
identified executive officers are related to each other or to any of our directors.Code of Business Conduct and Ethics We have
adopted a code of business conduct and ethics that applies to all of our directors and officers and other employees,including our
principal executive officer and principal financial officer.This code is publicly available through the Corporate Governance
section of our website at www.firstinternetbancorp.com.To the extent permissible under applicable law,the rules of the SEC or
Nasdagq listing standards,we intend to post on our website any amendment to the code of business conduct and ethics,or any
grant of a waiver from a provision of the code of business conduct and ethics,that requires disclosure under applicable law,the
rules of the SEC or Nasdaq listing standards. Insider Trading Policy We have adopted insider trading policies and
procedures governing the purchase,sale,and / or other dispositions of the Company' s securities by directors,officers and
employees that are reasonably designed to promote compliance with insider trading laws,rules and regulations,and any
listing standards applicable to the Company.A copy of the Company' s Trading Policy has been filed as Exhibit 19 to this
Annual Report on Form 10- K. The disclosures in the Proxy Statement under the headings *“ Proposal 1- Election of
Directors,” *“ Corporate Governance,” “ Shareholder Proposals for 2624-2025 Annual Meeting,” and,if applicable “ Delinquent
Section 16 (a) Reports ” are incorporated into this Item by reference.Item 11.Executive Compensation Incorporated into this
Item by reference is the information in the Proxy Statement regarding the compensation of our named executive officers
appearing under the heading ““ Executive Compensation ” (excluding information under the caption *“ Pay versus Performance
”),the information regarding compensation committee interlocks and insider participation under the heading *“ Corporate
Governance ” and the information regarding compensation of non- employee directors under the heading *“ Director
Compensation.” Item 12.Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
Incorporated into this Item by reference is the information in the Proxy Statement appearing under the headings “ Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management ” and “ Equity Compensation Plan Information.” Item 13.Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions,and Director Independence Incorporated into this Item by reference is the information in
the Proxy Statement regarding director independence and related person transactions under the heading *“ Corporate
Governance.” Item 14.Principal Accountant Fees and Services Incorporated into this Item by reference is the information in the
Proxy Statement under the heading “ Audit Matters.” The independent registered public accounting firm is FORVES-Forvis
Mazars ,LLP (Public Company Accounting Oversight Board Firm ID No.686) located in Indianapolis,Indiana. PART IV Item
15.Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules (a) Documents Filed as Part of this Annual Report on Form 10- K:1.See our
financial statements beginning on page F- 1.(b) Exhibits:Exhibit No.Description3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation of First Internet Bancorp (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to current report on Form 8- K filed May
21,2020) 3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of First Internet Bancorp (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to current report
on Form 8- K filed May 21,2020) 4.1Description of Securities Registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of
19344 .2Subordinated Indenture,dated as of September 30,2016,between First Internet Bancorp and U.S.Bank National
Association,as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to current report on Form 8- K filed on September 30,2016)
4.3Second Supplemental Indenture,dated as of June 12,2019,between First Internet Bancorp and U.S.Bank National



Association,as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to current report on Form 8- K filed on June 12,2019) 4.4Third
Supplemental Indenture,dated as of October 26,2020,between First Internet Bancorp and U.S.Bank National Association,as
trustee (including form of 6.0 % Fixed- to- Floating Rate Subordinated Notes due 2030) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.2 to current report on Form 8- K filed October 26,2020) 4.5Fourth Supplemental Indenture,dated as of August
16,2021,between First Internet Bancorp and U.S.Bank National Association,as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2
to current report on Form 8- K filed August 16,2021) 4.6Form of Global Note representing 6.0 % Subordinated Notes due 2026
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit A included in Exhibit 4.2 to current report on Form 8- K filed on September 30,2016)
4.7Form of 3.75 % Fixed- to- Floating Rate Subordinated Note due September 1,2031 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A- 1
and Exhibit A- 2 included in Exhibit 4.2 to current report on Form 8- K filed on August 16,2021) 10.1 First Internet Bancorp
2013 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed
April 9,2013) * 10.2First Internet Bancorp 2011 Directors’ Deferred Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
registration statement on Form 10 filed November 30,2012) * 10.3 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement among First
Internet Bank of Indiana,First Internet Bancorp and David B.Becker dated March 28,2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31,2012) * Exhibit No.Description10.4 Amendment to
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement among First Internet Bank of Indiana,First Internet Bancorp and David
B.Becker dated April 20,2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to current report on Form 8- K filed April 25,2022) *
10.5 Employment Agreement among First Internet Bank of Indiana,First Internet Bancorp and Nicole S.Lorch dated April
20,2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to current report on Form 8- K filed April 25,2022) * 10.6Employment
Agreement among First Internet Bank of Indiana,First Internet Bancorp and Kenneth J.Lovik dated April 20,2022 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to current report on Form 8- K filed April 25,2022) * 10.7First Internet Bancorp Annual Bonus Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to quarterly report on Form 10- Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,2017) *
10.8Form of Subordinated Note Purchase Agreement,dated as of October 26,2020,between First Internet Bancorp and the
purchaser thereunder (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to current report on Form 8- K filed October 26,2020) 10.9Form
of Management Incentive Award Agreement- Restricted Stock Units under 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to quarterly report on Form 10- Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,2022) * 10.10Form of
Management Incentive Award Agreement- Restricted Stock Units (performance based) under 2013 Equity Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to quarterly report on Form 10- Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,2021) *
10.11Form of Subordinated Note Purchase Agreement,dated August 16,2021,by and among First Internet Bancorp and the
Purchasers * (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to current report on Form 8- K filed August 15,2021) 10.12First Internet
Bancorp 2022 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to current report on Form 8- K filed May
17,2022) * 10.13Form of Non- Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Agreement under 2022 Equity Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to quarterly report on Form 10- Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30,2023) *
10.14Form of Management Incentive Award Agreement- Restricted Stock Units under 2022 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to quarterly report on Form 10- Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,2023) * 24+-19Insider
Trading Policy21 .1List of Subsidiaries23.1Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm24.1Powers of
Attorney31.1Rule 13a- 14 (a) / 15d- 14 (a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer31.2Rule 13a- 14 (a) / 15d- 14 (a)
Certification of Chief Financial Officer32.1Section 1350 Certifications97Compensation Recoupment Policy (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 97 to Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31,2023) PoteytoHFinanetal-—-----
101Financial statements from the Annual Report on Form 10- K of First Internet Bancorp for the period ended December 31,
2623-2024 .filed with the SEC on March +3-12 , 2824-2025 ,formatted in inline extensible Business Reporting Language
(XBRL):(i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-(ii) the Consolidated Statements of
Income for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;and-2024-,(iii) the Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;ard-2024-,(iv) the Consolidated
Statements of Shareholders’” Equity for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;ard-2624-,(v) Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;ard-2624-,and (vi) Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.104Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit
101) * Management contract,compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed
as an exhibit.Item 16.Form 10- K Summary.SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934,the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned,thereunto duly authorized,on March 43-12 , 2624-2025 .FIRST INTERNET BANCORP By:/ s / David B.Becker
David B.Becker,Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,this
Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on March 43
12, 2624-2025 ./ s / David B.Becker / s / Kenneth J.LovikDavid B.Becker,Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer) Kenneth J.Lovik,Executive Vice President andChief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer) * * Aasif M.Bade,Director Joseph A.Fenech,Director * * Justin P.Christian,Director Jean
L.Wojtowicz,Director * * Ann Colussi Dee,Director John K.Keach,Jr. ,Director * Michele L.Raines ,Director * David
B.Becker,by signing his name hereto,does hereby sign this document on behalf of each of the above- named directors of the
Registrant pursuant to powers of attorney duly executed by such persons.By:/ s / David B.BeckerDavid B.Becker,Attorney- in-
Fact Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm To the Shareholders,Board of Directors and Audit Committee
Fishers,Indiana Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of First Internet Bancorp (the “ Company ) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, and-the related consolidated
statements of income,comprehensive income,shareholders’ equity,and cash flows for each of the years in the three- year period
ended December 31, 2623-2024 ,and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “ financial statements ).In our opinion,the




consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly,in all material respects,the financial position of the Company
as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the
three- year period ended December 31, 2823-2024 ,in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.We also have audited,in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) (“ PCAOB ”),the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2823-2024 ,based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 43-12 , 2824-2025 ,expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. Emphasis
ef—M-&tteieChange in Accounting Principle As discussed in Note | ;-and Note 4 sandNete22-to the consolidated financial
statements,in 2023,the Company changed its method of accounting for credit losses on financial instruments due to the adoption
of Accounting Standards Codification Topic 326:Financial Instruments — Credit Losses -Our-epintonis-notmodified-with
respeet-to-this-matter— Basis for Opinion These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’ s management.Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s financial statements based on our audits.We are a public accounting
firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the
U.S.federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB.Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement,whether due to error or fraud.Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,whether due to error or fraud,and performing procedures that respond to those
risks.Such procedures include examining,on a test basis,evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.Critical Audit Matters The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current- period
audit of the financial statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that:(1)
relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially
challenging,subjective,or complex judgments.The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our
opinion on the financial statements,taken as a whole,and we are not,by communicating the critical audit matters
below,providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they
relate.Allowance for Credit Losses (ACL) — Loans — Qualitative Adjustments Critical Audit Mater Description As
described in Note 4 to Berrowers-Experieneing-on-the consolidated Finanetal-financial fnstraments-statements . as
amended;whichreplaces-the meurredHoss-methodotogy-with-amrexpeeted-Company’ s consolidated allowance for credit foss
losses ( ACL “-€E€E>-) methodelogy-As-of-was $ 44,769,000 at December 31, 2623-2024 5~ The Company also describes in
Note 1 of the ACE-enteanswas$38,774,000-consolidated financial statements the « Allowance for Credit Losses ”
accounting policy around this estimate .The ACL for loans represents management' s estimate of all expected credit losses
over the expected life of the Company’ s existing loan portfolio.Management estimates the ACL balance using relevant
available information about the collectability of cash flows,from internal and external sources including historical information
relating to past events,current conditions,and 1eas0nable and supportable forecasts of future econonuc conditions “When-the
e-Ceonome-eve 8 histortealinfermation—. The Company utilized
a d1sc0unted cash flow ( DCF ”) method to estimate the quant1tat1ve portlon of the allowance for credit losses for loans
evaluated on a collective pooled basis.Due to its minimal loss history,the Company elected to use peer data for a more
reasenable-accurate calculation. The Company also includes qualitative adjustments to the allewanee-ACL based on factors and
considerations that have not otherwise been fully accounted for.We have identified auditing the qualitative adjustments as a
critical audit matter as management’ s determination of the qualitative adjustments used in the ACL is subjective and involves
significant management judgments;and our audit procedures related to the quahtatlve adjustments 1nvolved a hlgh degree of
auditor judgment and required significant audit effort sine v s ; The
primary procedures we performed to address this critical audlt matter 1ncluded fl:est-l-ng—We obtalned an understandlng of the
Company’ s process for establishing the ACL,including the key qualitative factor adjustments applied to the ACL.e

Evaluated the des1gn and tested the operatmg effectlveness of key controls over the-guatitative-adjustments-ased-in-the ACE
d 0 de sniftean s1gn1f1cant assumptlons and Judgments apphed in the development

appllcatlon of the quahtatwe adjustments used =

segments-in the ACL calculation — Assessed Substantively-testi g he-gatitative-ad;
used—rﬂ—theﬁ@lresﬁm&te—rﬂelud-mg—e—Testmg—management S process for developmg the quahtatlve adjustments ;-and
determining the reasonableness of the qualitative adjustments applied in the ACL estimate which included assessing the
relevance and reliability of data used to develop the qualitative adjustments sinelading-evatuating-theirjudgments-and

assumptionsforreasonableness- Our Ameng-otherproeedures;ourcvaluation considered evidence from internal and external
sources. ~Anatyttealty-» Evaluated the reasonableness of the overall ACL and related qualitative adjustments to

determine whether the ACL appropriately reflects expected credlt losses by assessmg trends in relevant factors and
evaluating the relationship of those trends to the overall ACL guatitativ Aststeney;testing
reasonableness;-and obtaining-evideneefor-signifieantehanges-related qualitative adjustments applled to the ACL ~TFesting
¢ Evaluated the mathematical accuracy of the qualitative adjustments applied to the loan segments in the ACL calculation./ s /
FORWS-Forvis Mazars .. LP We have served as the Company' s auditor since 2004. Marelh+43-To the Shareholders , 2624
Board of Directors,and Audit Committee Opinion on the Internal Control Over Finanetat-Financial Diffieutty-Coneurrent
Reporting We have audited First Internet Bancorp’ s (the “ Company ”) internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2024 based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework: (2013) issued by the




Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on
criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework (2013) lssued by COSO We also have audlted in
accordance with the guatitativ g ;

Pubhc Company Accountmg Overqlght Boald (Unlted Statei) (- PCAOB ”) the con%ohdated ﬁnancml itatements of the
Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2623
2024 ,and our report dated March +3-12 , 2624-2025 ,expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.The
Company’ s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,included in the accompanying Report of Management’ s
Assessment of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the
PCAOB.Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting,assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.Our audit also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.Definitions and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting A company’ s internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of reliable financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.A
company’ s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that,in reasonable detail,accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,use,or disposition of the company’ s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.Because of its inherent limitations,internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements.Also,projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. March 12,2025 F- 3 First Internet Bancorp (Amounts in thousands except share data) December
31, 20232022 Assets-20242023 Assets Cash and due from banks $ 9,249 § 8,269 $47426-Interest- bearing demand depesits397
deposits457 ,161 397 ,629 239426-Total cash and cash eguivatents465-equivalents466 ,410 405 898 256;552-Securities
available- for- sale- at fair value (amortized cost of $ 626,854 and $ 513,315 in 2024 and 2023 and-$436-, respectively +83-in
2022-) 587,355 474,855 390,384-Sccurities held- to- maturity- at amortized cost,net of allowance for credit losses of $ 0. 2
million and $ 0. 3 million in 2024 and 2023 ,respectively, (fair value of $ 228,851 and $ 207,572 in 2024 and 2023 and-$168
, respectively 483-in2622-) 249,796 227,153 +89;368-Loans held- for- sate-sale54 €me}ude34$—9— 695 HO-atfairvaluein 2622y
22,052 2455H+eans3-Loans4 ,170,646 3 .840,220 3;499:4604+-Allowance for credit losses- loans ( 44,769) ( 38,774) B3
Net teans3-loans4 ,125,877 3 801,446 3;:467664-Accrued interest reeetvable26-receivable28 ,180 26 ,746 245669-Federal
Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis stock28,350 28,350 Cash surrender value of bank- owned lifc instranee48-insurance41 ,394
40 ,882 39;859-Premises and equipment, aret?3-net71 ,453 73 463 72H4-Goodwill4,687 4,687 Servicing asset,at fair valaeld
valuel6 ,389 10 ,567 6;255-Other real estate ewned3#5-owned272 —375 Accrued income and other assets5+-assets63 ,001 51
,098 44;894-Total assets $ 5, 737,859 $ 5, 167,572 $4:543;304-Liabilities and shareholders’ equity Liabilities Noninterest-
bearing deposits $ 136,451 $ 123,464 $375;:3+5-Interest- bearing depesits3-deposits4 ,796,755 3 ,943,509 3;265;930-Total
deposits4, 933,206 4, 066,973 35444245-Advances from Federal Home Loan Banké+4-Bank295,000 614 ,934 614,928
Subordinated debt,net of unamortized diseennts—- discount and debt issuance costs of $ 1,850 and $ 2,162 in 2024 and 2023
and-$2- 468-in2622104-respectively105,150 104 838 +04;532-Accrued interest payable3-payable2 ,495 3 848 2;943-Accrued
expenses and other Habtitiest4-liabilities17 ,945 14 184 +4;542-Total Habilities4-liabilities5 ,353,796 4,804,777 4178436
Commitments and ContingenciesShareholders’ equity Preferred stock,no par value;4,913,779 shares authorized;issued and
outstanding- none — — Voting common stock,no par value;45,000,000 shares authorized;8, 667,894 and 8, 644,451 and
9;065;883-shares issued and outstanding in 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respeetivelyt84-respectively186 ,094 184 700 +92;935
Nonvoting common stock,no par value;86 . 221 shares authorized;issued and outstanding- none — — Retained earrings267—
earnings230 ,622 207 470 265;675-Accumulated other comprehensive loss ( 32,653) (29,375 3H33;636-) Total shareholders’
equity362-equity384 ,063 362 ,795 364;974-Total liabilitics and sharcholders” equity $ 5, 737,859 $ 5, 167,572 $-4;543;104-Sce
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F- 4 (Amounts in thousands except share and per share data) Year Ended December
31, 20232022202 Hnterest---- 202420232022Interest income Loans $ 233,844 $ 192,337 $ 140,600 $423:467Securities —
taxablel}7-taxable26 ,742 17 ,189 10,711 #996-Securities — non- taxable3, 775 3, 532 1,767 5647-Other earning assets26
assets27 ,526 26 ,384 3,830 +429-Total interest ineeme239-- income291 ,887 239 442 156,908 433;883-Interest expense



Bepeositst43-Deposits183 ,150 143 363 41,832 20:822-Other borrowed funds21, 360 21, 175 17,983 +%4505-Total interest
expenset64-expense204 ,510 164 538 59,815 4%432F-Net interest ineomeF4- income87 ,377 74 ,904 97,093 86;556-Provision
for credit losses- teanst5-loans18 ,815 15 454 4,977 +5630-Benefit for credit losses- debt securities held- to- maturity ( 139) (
42) — —(Benefit) Provisten-provision for credit losses- off- balance sheet eommitmentst— commitments (1,606) 1 241 —
— Net interest income after provision for credit tesses58-losses70 ,307 58 251 92,116 85;526-Noninterest income Service
charges and fees85+-fees959 851 1,071 H5-H4-Loan servicing revente3-revenue6 ,188 3 833 2,573 45934~ oan servicing asset
revaluation ( 2,537) ( 1,463) (1,639 3669-) Mortgage banking aetivities?6-- activities — 76 5,464 +5;856-Gain on sale of
toans26-loans33,329 20 ,526 11,372 H-Other9 , 406 598-Gainon-sate-of premises-and-equipment——2 ;523-Other2-,302
2,416 +5694-Total noninterest ineome26-income47 ,345 26 ,125 21,257 32:844-Noninterest expense Salaries and employee
benefits45- benefits51 ,756 45 ;322 41,553 38;223-Marketing,advertising and promotion2 ,589 2,567 3,554 3;:26+Consulting
and professional fees3, 744 3, 082 4,826 4;654-Data processing2, 448 2, 373 1,989 +;649-Loan expenses5S, 947 5, 756 4,435
ZH2-Premises and equipmentto-equipment11 ,902 10 ,599 10,688 #663-Deposit insurance premitm3-premiumsS ,000 3 880
1,152 £243-6ther5-Other6 ,724 5 .857 5,076 4;223-Total noninterest expense79- expense90 ,110 79 .436 73,273 65798
Income before income taxes4-taxes27 ,542 4 940 40,100 56;572-Income tax provision (benefit) previston2,266 (3,477) 4,559
8458 Net income $ 25,276 $ 8,417 $ 35,541 $4834-Income per share of common stock Basic $ 2.91 $ 0.95 $ 3.73 $4-85
Dilutedd-Diluted2 .88 0 .95 3.70 4-82-Weighted- average number of common shares outstanding Basic8, 690,416 8, 837,558
9,530,921 9;848;883-Diluted8 ,765,725 8 ,858,890 9,595,115 9;9%#6;26+-Dividends declared per share § 0.24 $ 0.24 $ 0.24 F- 5
(Amounts in thousands) Year Ended December 31, 202320222024 Net-202420232022Net income $ 25,276 $ 8,417 $ 35,541 $
48;H4-Other comprehensive (loss) income fessy-Securities available- for- saleNet unrealized holding (losses) gains essesy-on
securities available- for- sale recorded within other comprehensive income before income tax7 tax (1,039) 7 ,339 (42,3363
4;087) Income tax (benefit) provision ( berefit-800 ) 1,682 (9,060 3H5664-) Net effect on other comprehensive (loss) income (
1055239 ) 5,657 (33,276 3¥3;623-) Securities held- to- maturityReclassification of securities from available- for- sale to held- to-
maturity — — (5,402) —Amortization of net unrealized holding losses on securities transferred from available- for- sale to
held- to- matarity?7#8-- maturity789 778 844 —Income tax provision (benefit) 90 198 (1,039) —Net effect on other
comprehensive income (loss) 699 580 (3,519) —Cash flow hedgesNet unrealized holding €losses Jgatns-on cash flow hedging
derivatives recorded within other comprehensive income before income tax ( 1,082) ( 2,566) 19,091 H-Reclassification of gain
on termination of interest rate swaps (2 , +38-904) — — Income tax (benefit) provision ( 248) ( 590) 4,893 +958-Net effect
on other comprehensive (loss) income ( 3,738) ( 1,976) 14,198 9:386-Total other comprehensive (loss) income (4oss-3,278 )
4,261 (22,597) 6;457-Comprehensive income $ 21,998 $ 12,678 $ 12,944 $-54;27-See Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements F- 6 Voting

andNonvotingCommonStockRetainedEarnings AccumulatedOtherComprehensiveLossTotalShareholders’
EquityBalance,January 1, 20242022 $ 224-218 , 488-946 $ 126;732-$-(17-172 , 431 +96)-5 330-(11 , 944-039) $ 380,338 Net
income — 48-35,541 — 35,541 Other comprehensive loss — — (22,597) (22,597) Dividends declared ($ 0.24 per share) —
(2,297) — (2,297) Repurchased shares of common stock (779,956) (27,780) — — (27,780) Recognition of the fair value of
share- based compensation2,035 — — 2,035 Deferred stock rights and restricted stock units issued in lieu of cash
dividends payable on outstanding deferred stock rights and restricted stock units21 — — 21 Common stock redeemed
for the net settlement of share- based awards (287) —_—— (287) Balance,December 31 2022 $ 192,935 $ 205,675 $ (33, 636)
$ 364 974 Impact of adoptlon of Pivide S0~

S S 6755 S364-074 adeptionefnew dccountmg stdnddrds 1 — (4 491) — (4, 491)
Net income — 8 417 — 8 417 Other Comprehenslve income — — 4,261 4,261 Div 1dends declared ($ 0. 24 per share) — (2 131)

(92) ——1(92) Recognition of the fair value of share— based compensationl.258 i 1.258 Deferred stock rights and restricted
stock units issued in lieu of cash dividends payable on outstanding deferred stock rights and restricted stock units9 — — 9
Common stock redeemed for the net settlement of share- based awards (162) — — (162) Balance,December 31,2023 $ 184,700
$ 207,470 $ (29,375) $ 362,795 Net income — 25,276 — 25,276 Other comprehensive loss — — (3,278) (3,278) Dividends
declared ($ 0.24 per share) — (2,124) — (2,124) Repurchased shares of common stock (10,500) (283) — — (283)
Recognition of the fair value of share- based compensation1,814 — — 1,814 Deferred stock rights and restricted stock
units issued in lieu of cash dividends payable on outstanding deferred stock rights and restricted stock unitsS — —5
Common stock redeemed for the net settlement of share- based awards (142) — — (142) Balance,December 31,2024 $§
186,094 $ 230,622 $ (32,653) $ 384,063 | Reflects the impact of adopting Accounting Standards Update (*“ ASU ) 2016- 13.F-
7 (Amounts in thousands) Year Ended December 31, 20232022202+Operating—--- 2024202320220perating activities Net
income $ 25,276 $ 8,417 $ 35,541 $48;H4-Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:Depreciation and amertizattenS-amortization8 ,460 5,748 8,729 &FF5-Increase in cash surrender value of bank-
owned life insurance (1, 100) (1, 023) (959 3948-) Provision for credit fossest6-losses17 ,070 16 653 4,977 56306-Share- based
compensation expensel, 814 1, 258 2,035 2393-Loans originated for sale ( 517,675) ( 328,146) (518,870 384467 Proceeds



from sale of loans originated for sate342-sale510,002 342 ,684 558,817 832;689-Gain on sale of loans ( 33,329) ( 20,997)
(17,473) Gain on sale of other real estate owned ( 27 29;464+-) — — Decrease in fair value of loans held- for- salet43-sale —
143 184 H8-Loss ( gain) on derivatives4,771 (384) (2,569) Gain Hess-on dettvatives-prepayment of FHLB advances ( 384
1,829 ) — — Gain on termination of interest rate swaps (2, 569-904 ) :;513-Settlement-of dertvatives—— — (5859-Gain on
bank- owned life insurance sale-efpremises-and-equipment———( 149 2;523-) — — Net change in servicing asseti-asset2
,537 1,463 1,639 +5069-Net deferred income tax ( 1,357) (4,353) 4,632 25434-Net change in other assets ( 3,932) (6,625) 9,815
F628-Net change in other habilittes-liabilities5 ,364 (3,158) (3,775 3H924-) Net cash provided by operating aetivittestH-
activities12 ,992 11 ,680 82,723 54;846-Investing activities Net loan activity,excluding sales and purchases ( 201,768) ( 67,851)
(214,761) 3+6;802-Proceeds from sales of other real estate ewned-owned623 — 1,188 —Net proceeds from sales of portfolio
loans — — 14,466 245693-Maturities of securities available- for- sale53-sale78,378 53 ,142 80,223 +66;260-Purchase of
securities available- for- sale ( 193,944) ( 130,772) (12,969 H282;226-) Maturities and calls of securities held- to- matarity9--
maturity31,957 19,104 7,902 §;525-Purchase of securities held- to- maturity (53, 977) (83, 573) (41,246) —Redemption of
Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis stock — — 431 —Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis stock — —
(3,131) —Netproeeeds-Proceeds from sale-bank owned life insurance737 — — Purchase of premises and equipment (2 —

—38-, 592) Hé-Purechase-of premises-and-equipment(5,367) (17,517 H29;892-) Loans purchased ( 142,001) ( 284,722)
(412 109) Purchase of equnty investments (-1-68—13 4%8—583 )9t-he1%(4 464) (3 510) Net cash used in investing actlvmes (4

Repurcha%e of common stock ( 283) ( 9 340) (27 780 )—(4—4%6—) Proceedq from advance% from Fedelal Home Loan Banld#5
Bank430,000 475 ,000 615 5680-446-,000 Repayment of advances from Federal Home Loan Bank ( 750,000) ( 475,000)
(515,000) £446;600)>-Other,net ( 182) ( 153) (287 344+-) Net cash provided by ased-m)-financing aetivitiesét2-activities543
,690 612,169 331,902 (#5;560)-Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equtvalentst49-equivalents60 ,512 149 346 (186,408)
23:354-Cash and cash equivalents,beginning of year256-year405,898 256 ,552 442,960 449;866-Cash and cash equivalents,end
of year $ 466,410 $ 405,898 $ 256,552 $442,960-Supplemental disclosures of cash flows information Cash paid during the year
for interesti63-interest205,863 163 604 58,920 46;748-Cash paid during the year for taxes939-taxes684 939 2,005 #6045
Loans transferred to other real estate ewned375—-- owned523 375 — +488-Loans transferred to held- for- sale from portfolio —
— 14,049 26;4+45-Cash dividends declared,not paid5+9-paid520 519 544 585-Securities purchases settled in subsequent petted2
- period — 2,632 2,997 —Transfer of available- for- sale mortgage- backed securities to held- to- maturity mortgage- backed
securities at fair value — — 96,220 —F- 8 First Internet Bancorp Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Tabular dollar
amounts in thousands except per share data) Note 1:Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies The
accounting policies of First Internet Bancorp and its subsidiaries (the “ Company ”) conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“ GAAP ”).A summary of the Company’ s significant accounting policies
follows:Description of Business The Company was incorporated on September 15,2005,and consummated a plan of exchange
on March 21,2006,by which the Company became a bank holdlng company and 100 % owner of First Internet Bank of Indiana
(the *“ Bank ) 7Fh d d 0 .The Bank
offers a wide range of commercml small bu%lne%i consumer and munlclpal bankmg ploduct@ and services. The Bank conducts its
consumer and small business deposit operations primarily through digital channels on a nationwide basis and has no traditional
branch offices.The Bank is subject to competition from other financial institutions.The Bank is regulated by certain state and
federal agencies and undergoes periodic examinations by those regulatory authorities. The Bank has three wholly owned
subsidiaries.JKH Realty Services,LLC was established on August 20,2012 as a single member limited liability company wholly
owned by the Bank to manage other real estate owned properties as needed.First Internet Public Finance Corp.,a wholly- owned
subsidiary of the Bank,was incorporated on March 6,2017 and was established to provide municipal finance lending and leasing
products to government entities and to purchase,manage,service,and safekeep municipal securities.SPF15,Inc.,a wholly- owned
subsidiary of the Bank,was incorporated on August 31,2018 and was established to acquire and hold real estate.Principles of
Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its direct and indirect
subsidiaries.All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.The Company’ s
business activities are currently limited to one reporting unit and reportable segment,which is commercial banking. The
Company also evaluates its relationships with other entities to identify whether they represent a variable interest entity
(“ VIE ”).The Company is considered to hold a controlling financial interest in a VIE when it is the primary
beneficiary.A primary beneficiary has both:1) the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the entity’
s economic performance;and 2) and the obligation to absorb losses of,or the right to receive benefits from,an entity that
could potentially be significant to the entity.The Company considers all of its economic interests in the VIE when
determining whether it has the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits from the VIE.Certain equity
investments held by the Company meet the criteria of a VIE.See Note 3 for additional information on the Company’ s
equity investments and VIEs.Segment Information The Company operates as a single reportable segment.While there
are several lines of business within the operating segment,they are closely interrelated and cannot operate
independently.Accordingly,the Chief Operation Decision Maker (“ CODM ”) evaluates operations and financial
performance on a Company- wide basis and all of the Company’ s operations are aggregated in one reportable operating
segment.See Note 22 for additional segment information. Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. The Company utilizes processes that involve the use of significant
estimates and the judgment of management in determining the amount of the Company’ s allowance for credit losses (* ACL *)




vatty ; ; wied Actual re%ult% Could drffer frorn those estimates. F- 9 The Company
clasqrﬁei its securities in one of three categories and accounts for the investments as follows:e Securities that the Company has
the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as “ held- to- maturity ” and reported at amortized cost.*
Securities that are acquired and held principally for the purpose of selling them in the near term with the objective of generating
economic profits on short- term differences in market characteristics are classified as ““ trading securities ” and reported at fair
value,with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings. The Company had no securities classified as “ trading securities ” at
December 31, 2024 or 2023 o+2622-. =9 Securities not classified as either *“ held- to- maturity ” or *“ trading securities ” are
classified as ““ available- for- sale ”” and reported at fair value,with unrealized gains and losses,after applicable taxes,excluded
from earnings and reported in a separate component of shareholders’ equity.Interest and dividend income,adjusted by
amortization of premium or discount,is included in earnings using the effective interest rate method.Purchases and sales of
securities are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets on the trade date.Gains and losses from the sale or disposal of
securities are recognized as of the trade date in the consolidated statements of income for the period in which securities are sold
or otherwise disposed of.Gains and losses on sales of securities are determined using the specific- identification method.Loans

Held- for- Sale Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market under-best—efforts-prietng-agreements-arc carried

at the lower of cost or falr value in the aggregate N et unrealized lo%seq if any,are recognrzed through a valuation allowance by

reeognizedH-noninterest income. Garn% and 10§%e§ on loan sales are recorded in noninterest income, and drrect loan orrgrnatron
costs and fees are deferred at origination of the loan and are recognized in noninterest income upon sale of the loan.Revenue
Recognition The Company recognizes revenues as they are earned based on contractual terms,as transactions occur,or as
services are provided and collectability is reasonably assured.The Company' s principal source of revenue is interest income
from loans and leases and investment securities.Interest income on loans is accrued as earned using the interest method based on
unpaid principal balances , except for interest on loans in nonaccrual status.Interest on loans in nonaccrual status is recorded as a
reduction of loan principal when received.Premiums and discounts are amortized using the effective interest rate method.Loan
fees,net of certain direct origination costs,primarily salaries and wages,are deferred and amortized to interest income as a yield
adju%tment over the life of the loan. The Company also earns nonrntere%t income thr ough a Varrety of ﬁnancral and tr ansaction
services provided to commercial and consumer clients such as : AT54
and-sales of the government- guaranteed portion of U.S.Small Busrneqs Admrnr%tratron loanq SBA serv1c1ng revenue,deposit
account,debit card,mortgage banking and portfolio loan sales .Revenue is recorded for noninterest income based on the
contractual terms for the service or transaction performed.In certain circumstances,noninterest income is reported net of
associated expenses.Loans that management intends to hold until maturity are reported at their outstanding principal balance
adjusted for unearned income,charge- offs,the allewaneefor-eredittosses~ACL 2 any unamortized deferred fees or costs on
originated loans,unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased loans and any carrying value adjustments related to
terminated interest rate swaps associated with loans. F- 10 For loans recorded at cost,interest income is accrued based on the
unpaid principal balance.Loan origination fees,net of certain direct origination costs,as well as premiums and discounts,are
recorded in accordance with our revenue recognition policy. F==ASU 2016-63-13 On January 1, 2023 , the Company adopted
ASU 20222016 - 03 92-Financial Instruments- Credit osses-losses ( “ ASC 326 ” ). Froubled-Debtrestrueturings-and
Vintage-Diselosures-Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments , Z-as amended , which replaces the incurred
loss methodology with an expected credit loss (“ CECL ) methodology . The update—elmﬁa’eed-CECL estimate is
applicable to financial assets measured at amortized cost, including loan receivables and held- to- maturity debt
securities. It also applies to off- balance sheet credit exposures, including loan commitments, standby letters of credit,
financial guarantees and other similar instruments. Additionally, ASC 326 resulted in changes to the accounting guidanee
for troubled-available- for- sale debt restrueturings-securities. The Company adopted ASC 326 for all financial assets
measured at amortized cost, available- for- sale securities and off- balance sheet credit exposures. Results for reporting
periods beginning after January 1, 2023 are presented under ASC 326, while prior period amounts continue to be
reported in accordance with previously applicable U. S. GAAP. The Company recorded a net decrease to retained
earnings of $ 4. 5 million as of January 1, 2023 for the cumulative effect of adopting ASC 326. The net adjustment to
allowance for credit losses (“ FPRs-ACL ") includes $ 2. 3 million related to by-ereditors;-whilte-enhaneing-diselostre
requirenents-for-eertainloanloans refinaneings-and-restruetaringsby-, $ 1. 9 million related to off- balance sheet ereditors—--
credit whena-berrower-is-experieneing-finanetal-diffienlty-exposures and $ 0. 3 million related to held- to- maturity debt

securities . ACL- Available- For- Sale (“ AFS ) Debt Securities For AFS debt securities in an unrealized loss position, the
Company first assesses whether it intends to sell, or it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell, the security before
recovery of its amortized cost basis. If either of the criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is met, the security’ s
amortized cost basis is written down to fair value through income. For AFS debt securities that do not meet the aforementioned
criteria, the Company evaluates whether the decline in fair value has resulted from credit losses or other factors, such as interest
rates or market conditions. In making this assessment, management considers the extent to which fair value is less than
amortized cost, any changes to the rating of the security by a rating agency and any adverse conditions specifically related to the
security, among other factors. If this assessment indicates that a credit loss exists, the present value of cash flows expected to be
collected from the security are compared to the amortized cost basis of the security. If the present value of cash flows expected
to be collected is less than the amortized cost basis, a credit loss exists and an ACL aHewaneeforeredittosses-is recorded.
Changes in the ACL are recorded as a provision for, or recovery of, credit loss expense. Losses are charged against the
allowance when management believes that uncollectibility of an AFS debt security is confirmed or when either of the criteria




eeﬁse-l-td&ted—ba-laﬂee—sheet— ACL Held To Maturlty (“HT™M ”) Debt Securme% Management measures expected credlt loqseq
on HTM debt securities on a collective basis by major security type. Accrued interest receivable on HTM debt securities are
totaled - $12-millterrat Deeember 31,2623 -and4s-cxcluded from the estimate of credit losses. The Company made the
accounting policy election to not measure an ACL for accrued interest. Accrued interest deemed uncollectible will be written off
through interest income. The HTM securities portfolio includes municipal securities, residential mortgage- backed- securities,
commercial mortgage- backed securities and corporate securities. All residential and commercial mortgage- backed securities
are U. S. government issued or sponsored and substantially all municipal and corporate securities are rated investment grade or
above. The estimate of expected credit losses considers historical credit loss information that is adjusted for current conditions
and reasonable and supportable forecasts. At the time of adoption, the...... was $ 0. 3 million. F- 11 Accrued interest receivable
on loans are tetaled-$26-9-mithemandis-cxcluded from the estimate of credit losses. The Company made the accounting
policy election to not measure an ACL for accrued interest receivable. Accrued interest deemed uncollectible will be written off
through interest income. The ACL is measured on a collective pool basis when similar risk characteristics exist. The Company
utilizes a discounted cash flow (“ DCF ) method to estimate the quantitative portion of the allowance for credit losses
for loans evaluated on a collective pooled basis. For each segment, a loss driver analysis is performed in order to identify
loss drivers and create a regression model for use in forecasting cash flows. In creating the DCF model, the Company has
established a one- year reasonable and supportable forecast period with a one- year straight line reversion to the long- term
historical average. Due to 1t§ ﬂa-rﬂ-rma-l—llmlted 10%9 hlqtory, the Company elected to use peer data for a more eeﬁseﬁ&ﬁve
accurate calculation —Ad y ; y g

followmg Changeq in the quahty of the Company’ s loan review %yitem F-12 The Company estimates expected credit losses
over the contractual period in which the Company is exposed to credit risk via a contractual obligation to extend credit, unless
that obligation is unconditionally cancellable by the Company. The ACL for off- balance sheet credit exposure is recorded as a
liability and adjusted as a provision for credit loss expense. The estimate includes consideration of the likelihood that funding
will occur and an estimate of expected credit losses on commitments expected to be funded over its estimated life. Funding rates
are based on a historical analysis of the Company’ s portfolio, while estimates of credit losses are determined using the same
loss rates as funded loans. Regwlatery-Capital-As permitted by the federal banking regulatory agencies, the Company has elected
the option to delay the impact of the day one adoption of ASC 326. Refer to “ Note 14 —: Regulatory Capital Requirements ™ for
details of the phase- in transition adjustments. Modified Loans to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty The
Coneurrent-with-the-adeptionrof ASH2046-03the-Company adeptedASH-2622-02--may make modifications to certain
loans in order to alleviate temporary difficulties in the borrower’ s Finanetal-financial Instruments—Credit-condition and /
or constraints on the borrower’ s ability to repay the loan, and to minimize potential Fesses-losses (ASE326)—Froubled
-Bebt—Resﬁﬁe’fufmgs—aﬁd—\#mtage—Btse{eswes-to the Company. Modifications may include changes in the amortization
terms of the loan , >reductions in interest rates, acceptance of interest only payments, and / or reductions to the
outstanding loan balance. Such loans are typically placed on nonaccrual status when there is doubt concerning the full
repayment of principal and interest or the loan as-has been dellnquent &mended#he—update—e}ﬁmnated-&xe—aeeetmtmg

guidanee-for a period of 90 days
for— or eertaitrmore. These loans may be returned to accrual status When all contractual amounts past due have been

brought current, and the borrower’ s performance under the modified terms of the loan refinaneings-agreement and
fesﬁﬁeﬁ&rﬂgs—byefedﬁefs—wheﬁ—a—beﬁmﬁeﬁthe ultimate collectability of all contractual amounts due under the modified
terms is experteneing-finanetat-diffientty-no longer in doubt . Provision for Credit Losses A provision for estimated credit
losses is charged to income based upon management’ s evaluation of the potential losses. Such an evaluation, which includes a
review of all loans for which full repayment may not be reasonably assured, considers, among other matters, the estimated net
realizable value of the underlying collateral, as applicable, economic conditions, loan loss experience, and other factors that are
particularly susceptible to changes that could result in a material adjustment in the near term. While management attempts to use
the best information available in making its evaluations, future alewanee-ACL adjustments may be necessary if economic
conditions change substantially from the assumptions used in making the evaluations. Nonaccrual Loans Any loan which
becomes 90 days delinquent or for which the full collection of principal and interest may be in doubt will be considered for
nonaccrual status. At the time a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, all accrued but unpaid interest will be reversed from interest
income. Placing a loan on nonaccrual status does not relieve the borrower of the obligation to repay interest. A loan placed on
nonaccrual status may be restored to accrual status when all delinquent principal and interest has been brought current, and the
Company expects full payment of the remaining contractual principal and interest. Individually Evaluated Loans A loan is
individually evaluated, when, based on current information or events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect
all amounts due (principal and interest) according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Payments with delays not
exceeding 90 days outstanding generally are not individually evaluated. Certain nonaccrual F- 13 and substantially all
delinquent loans more than 90 days past due may be individually evaluated. Generally, loans are placed on nonaccrual status at
90 days past due and accrued interest is reversed against earnings, unless the loan is well secured and in the process of




collection. The accrual of interest on individually evaluated and nonaccrual loans is discontinued when, in management’ s
opinion, the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due. F3-Accounting Standards Codification (“ ASC ”)
Topic 310, Receivables, requires that individually evaluated loans be measured based on the present value of expected future
cash flows discounted at the loans’ effective interest rates or the fair value of the underlying collateral, less costs to sell, and
allows existing methods for recognizing interest income. Policy for Charging Off Loans The Company’ s policy is to charge off
a loan at any point in time when it no longer can be considered a bankable asset, meaning collectible within the parameters of
policy. A secured loan is generally charged down to the estimated fair value of the collateral, less costs to sell, no later than
when it is 120 days past due as to principal or interest. An unsecured loan generally is charged off no later than when it is 180
days past due as to principal or interest. A home improvement loan generally is charged off no later than when it is 90 days past
due as to principal or interest. Federal Home Loan Bank (“ FHLB ”) of Indianapolis Stock Federal law requires a member
institution of the FHLB system to hold common stock of its district FHLB according to a predetermined formula. This
investment is stated at cost, which represents redemption value, and may be pledged as collateral for FHLB advances. Premises
and Equipment Premises and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed on the
straight- line method over the estimated useful lives, which range from three to five years for software and equipment, ten years
for land improvements, and 39 years for buildings. Other Real Estate Owned Other real estate owned represents real estate
acquired through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure and is recorded at its fair value less estimated costs to sell. When
property is acquired, it is recorded at its fair value at the date of acquisition with any resulting write- down charged against the
ACL. Any subsequent deterioration of the property is charged directly to operating expense. Costs relating to the development
and improvement of other real estate owned are capitalized, whereas costs relating to holding and maintaining the property are
charged to expense as incurred. Derivative Financial Instruments The Company uses derivative financial instruments to help
manage exposure to interest rate risk and the effects that changes in interest rates may have on net income and the fair value of
assets and liabilities. The Company enters into interest rate swap agreements as part of its asset liability management strategy to
help manage its interest rate risk position. Additionally, prior to the Company’ s decision to exit its consumer mortgage business
in the first quarter 2023, we entered into forward contracts related to our mortgage banking business to hedge the exposures we
had from commitments to extend new residential mortgage loans to our customers and from our mortgage loans held- for- sale.
The forward contracts were entered into in order to economically hedge the effect of changed interest rates resulted-resulting
from the Company’ s commitment to fund the loans. Designating an interest rate swap as an accounting hedge allows the
Company to recognize gains and losses in the income statement within the same period that the hedged item affects earnings.
The Company includes the gain or loss on the hedged items in the same line item as the offsetting loss or gain on the related
interest rate swaps. For derivative F- 14 instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, any gains or losses
related to changes in fair value are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax. The fair value of interest rate
swaps with a positive fair value are reported in accrued income and other assets in the consolidated balance sheets while interest
rate swaps with a negative fair value are reported in accrued expenses and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. ¥~
+4-The interest rate lock commitments (“ IRLCs ”) and forward contracts are not designated as accounting hedges and are
recorded at fair value with changes in fair value reflected in noninterest income in the consolidated statements of income. The
fair value of derivative instruments with a positive fair value are reported in accrued income and other assets in the consolidated
balance sheets, while derivative instruments with a negative fair value are reported in accrued expenses and other liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheets. Fair Value Measurements The Company records or discloses certain assets and liabilities at fair
value. ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements are
classified within one of three levels in a valuation hierarchy. ASC Topic 820 describes three levels of inputs that may be used to
measure fair value: Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level 2 Observable inputs other than
Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities
Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the
assets or liabilities There were no transfers that occurred and, therefore, recognized, between any of the fair value hierarchy
levels at December 31, 2024 or 2023 or2022-. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities reflect the impact of temporary
differences between amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the basis of such assets and liabilities
as measured by tax laws and regulations. Deferred income tax expense or benefit is based upon the change in deferred tax assets
and liabilities from period to period, subject to an ongoing assessment of realization of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets
are reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of evidence available, it is more likely than not that some portion
or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company files income tax returns in the U. S. federal, Indiana, and other
state jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U. S. federal, state and local examinations by tax
authorities for years before 2019. ASC Topic 740- 10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected
to be taken in a tax return. It also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim
periods, disclosure and transition. The Company did not identify any material uncertain tax positions that it believes should be
recognized in the consolidated financial statements. F- 15 Earnings Per Share Earnings per share of common stock is based on
the weighted average number of basic shares and dilutive shares outstanding during the year. The following is a reconciliation
of the weighted average common shares for the basic and diluted earnings per share computations. Year Ended December 31,
202320222024 Baste—--- 202420232022Basic carnings per shareNet income available to common shareholders $ 25,276 $ 8,
417 $ 35, 541 $48;HH4-Weighted average common shares8, 690, 416 8, 837, 558 9, 530, 921 9;-948;-983-Basic carnings per
common share $ 2. 91 $ 0. 95 § 3. 73 $4—85-Diluted earnings per shareNet income available to common shareholders $ 25, 276



$8,417 $ 35, 541 $-484H4-Weighted average common shares8, 690, 416 8, 837, 558 9, 530, 921 95-948;-883-Dilutive effect of
equity eempensation2d-compensation75 , 309 21 , 332 64, 194 58478 Weighted average common and incremental shares§,
765, 725 8, 858, 890 9, 595, 115 95976, 26+-Diluted earnings per common sharel $ 2. 88 $ 0. 95 $ 3. 70 $4—82-1 Potential
dilutive common shares are excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share in the periods where the effect would
be antidilutive . There were no antidilutive shares for the year ended December 31, 2024 . Excluded from the computation
of diluted earnings per share were weighted average antidilutive shares totaling 20, 797 ;-and 2, 646 ard-28-for the years ended
December 31, 2023 ;and 2022 and2024- respectively. Share- based Compensation The Company has a share- based
compensation plan using the fair value recognition provisions of ASC Topic 718, Compensation- Stock Compensation. The
plan is described more fully in Note 11. Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income (loss).
Other comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealized gains and losses on securities available- for- sale, unrealized gains and
losses on the transfer of securities available- for- sale to securities held- to- maturity, and unrealized gains and losses on cash
flow hedges. Reclassification adjustments have been determined for all components of other comprehensive income (loss)
reported in the consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity. Cash and cash equivalents are defined to include cash on- hand,
noninterest and interest- bearing amounts due from other banks and federal funds sold. Generally, federal funds are sold for one-
day periods. The Company reports net cash flows for customer loan transactions and deposit transactions. Bank- Owned Life
Insurance Bank- owned life insurance policies are carried at their cash surrender value. The Company recognizes tax- free
income from the periodic increases in the cash surrender value of these policies and from death benefits. F- 16 Goodwill is
tested at least annually for impairment. If the implied fair value of goodwill is lower than its carrying amount, goodwill
impairment is indicated and goodwill is written down to its implied fair value. Subsequent increases in goodwill value are not
recognized in the consolidated financial statements. F=46-Servicing Asset The servicing asset is related to small business
lending loans sold. The servicing asset is recognized at the time of sale when servicing is retained and the income statement
effect is recorded in loan servicing revenue. Servicing assets are recorded at fair value in accordance with ASC 860. Fair value
is based on a third- party valuation model that calculates the present value of net servicing revenue. Note 2: Cash and Cash
Equivalents At December 31, 2823-2024 , the Company’ s interest- bearing and noninterest- bearing cash accounts at other
institutions exceeded the limits for full FDIC insurance coverage by $ 8-1 . 6-1 million. In addition, approximately $ 382-440 . 2
8 million and $ 15. 7 —8-million of cash was held by-at the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago and the FHLB of Indianapolis,
respectively, which are not federally insured. The Federal Reserve Act authorizes the Federal Reserve Board to establish reserve
requirements within specified ranges for the purpose of implementing monetary policy on certain types of deposits and other
liabilities of depository institutions. On March 15, 2020, the Federal Reserve Board reduced requirement ratios to zero percent
effective March 26, 2020. As such, the Company is not currently required to maintain reserve funds in cash and / or on deposit
with the Federal Reserve Bank. Note 3: Securities The following tables summarize securities available- for- sale and securities
held- to- maturity as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-. December 31, 2622-2024 Amortized CostGross UnrealizedFair
ValueGainsLossesSecurities available- for- sale U. S. Government- sponsored agencies $ 83, 811 $ 487 $ (1, 482) $ 82, 816
Municipal securities 67, 441 — (3, 787) 63, 654 Agency mortgage- backed securities- residential1300, 914 460 (31, 733)
2609, 641 Agency mortgage- backed securities- commercial64, 214 276 (1, 159) 63, 331 Private label mortgage- backed
securities- residential46, 623 186 (988) 45, 821 Asset- backed securities23, 802 62 (43) 23, 821 Corporate securities40, 049
71 (1, 849) 38, 271 Total available- for- sale $ 626, 854 $ 1, 542 $ (41, 041) $ 587, 355 F- 17 December 31, 2024 Amortized
CostGross UnrealizedFair ValueAllowance for Credit LossesNet Carrying Value GainsLossesSecurities held- to-
maturity Municipal securities $ 12, 846 $ — $ (921) $ 11, 925 $ (3) $ 12, 843 Agency mortgage- backed securities-
residential201, 840 102 (17, 530) 184, 412 — 201, 840 Agency mortgage- backed securities- commercialS, 705 — (1, 157)
4,548 — 5, 705 Corporate securities29, 559 — (1, 593) 27, 966 (151) 29, 408 Total held- to- maturity $ 249, 950 $ 102 $
(21,201) $ 228, 851 $ (154) $ 249, 796 1 Includes $ 0. 3 million of additional premium related to terminated interest rate
swaps associated with agency mortgage- backed securities- residential as of December 31, 2024 . December 31, 2023
Amortized CostGross UnrealizedFair Value GainsLossesSecurities available- for- sale U. S. Government- sponsored agencies $
96, 404 $ 402 $ (1, 629) $ 95, 177 Municipal seeurities-securities69 69-, 494 356 (1, 404) 68, 446 Agency mortgage- backed
securities- residential 1237, 798 101 (31, 250) 206, 649 Agency mortgage- backed securities- commercial40, 2159 (1, 339) 38,
885 Private label mortgage- backed securities- residential21, 742 144 (1, 107) 20, 779 Asset- backed securities8, 071 17 (7) 8,
081 Corporate securities39, 591 25 (2, 778) 36, 838 Total available- for- sale $ 513,315 $ 1, 054 $ (39, 514) $ 474, 855
December 31, 2023 Amortized CostGross UnrealizedFair ValueAllowance for Credit LossesNet Carrying Value
GainsLossesSecurities held- to- maturity Municipal securities $ 13, 892 $ 1 $(853) $ 13,040 $ (3) $ 13, 889 Agency mortgage-
backed securities- residential 166, 750 4 (14, 112) 152, 642 — 166, 750 Agency mortgage- backed securities- commercial5, 767
— (1, 246) 4, 521 — 5, 767 Corporate securities41, 037 — (3, 668) 37, 369 (290) 40, 747 Total held- to- maturity $ 227, 446 $
5%(19,879) $207,572 $ (293) $ 227, 153 1 Includes $ 0. 4 million of additional premium related to terminated interest rate
swaps associated with agency mortgage- backed securities- residential as of December 31, 2023. F=4FAccrued interest
receivable on AFS and HTM securities at December 31, 2623-2024 was $ 2. 8 million and $ 1. 1 million, respectively,
compared to $ 2. 9 million and $ 1. 2 million, respectively , at December 31, 2023 , and is included in accrued interest
receivable on the eendensed-consolidated balance sheet. The Company elected to exclude all accrued interest receivable from
securities when estimating credit losses. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, ©ver-over 92 % and 95 % , respectively, of
mortgage- backed securities (including both AFS and HTM) held by the Company are issued by U. S. government- sponsored
entities and agencies. These securities are either explicitly or implicitly guaranteed by the U. S. government and have a long
history of no credit losses; therefore, the Company did not record an ACL on these securities. Additionally, the Company
evaluated credit impairment for individual AFS securities that are in an unrealized loss position and determined that the
unrealized losses are unrelated to credit quality and are primarily attributable to F- 18 changes in interest rates and volatility in



the financial markets. As the Company does not intend to sell the AFS securities that are in an unrealized loss position, and it is
unlikely that it will be required to sell these securities before recovery of their amortized cost basis, the Company did not record

an ACL on these securities. The fraeeerdanee-with-the-adoption-of-ASE326;-the-Company also evaluated its HTM securities

that are in an unrealized loss position and considered issuer bond ratings, historical loss rates for bond ratings and economic

forecasts. The As-aresult-the-Companyreeordedinaninitial- A CL inretained-earningsof $-0-3-mithon-on HTM Jenuaryts
%92—3—'Phe—€eﬂap&ny-feeva-}u&ted—t-hese—qecurltle< at December 31, 2024 and 2023 a-nd—deteﬂfnrled-rle—fxéd-r&eﬁalﬁelrwaq

%92—2—respect1vely F—&The carrying Value ot §eCLlr1t16§ at December 31, %92—3—2024 is shown below by thelr contractual
maturity date. Actual maturities will differ because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without
call or prepayment penalties. Available- for- SaleAmortizedCostFairValueWithin one year $ $56-10, 725 $ $49-10, 684 One to
five years3t-years24 , 464+-3+017 23 , 865-988 Five to ten years69-years70 , 553-67-946 68 . +26-040 After ten yearsto3
years8S , 5851066-613 82 , 927265029 191 , 485-266-301 184 , 46+741 Agency mortgage- baeked securities- restdenttal237—
residential300 , 798-206-914 269 , 649-641 Agency mortgage- backed securities- eommeretal46-- commercial64 , 24538214
63 , 885-331 Private label mortgage- backed securities- residential2t-residentiald6 , 74226-623 45 , 779-821 Asset- backed
seeuritiesS-securities23 , 671-8-802 23 , 68+821 Total § 543-626 , 3+5-854 § 474-587 , 855-355 Held- to- Maturity
AmortizedCostFairValueWithin one year $ 995-1, 808 $ 9871, 796 One to five yearsé-years24 , +29-5-721 24 , 952-071 Five to
ten years43-yearsl2 . 8§56-39-381 11 , 967013 After ten years3, 949-495 3, 563-54-011 42 , 92956405 39 , 499—891 Agency
mortgage- backed securities- restdential66—- residential201 , 756-152-840 184 . 642-412 Agency mortgage- backed securities-
commercial5, 767705 4, 524-548 Total $ 227249 , 446-950 $ %97—228 572-851 There were no gross realized gains or losses
resulting from the sale of AFS securities recognized during the twelve months ended December 31, 2023-2024 , December 31,
20222023 and December 31, 20242022 . As of December 31, 2023-2024 | the fair value of AFS-securities pledged as collateral
was $ 662-795 . +-0 million. The Company pledged these securities to both the FHLB and the Fed Discount Window to increase
the Company’ s borrowing capacity and provide collateral for existing FHLB advances. Certain investments in debt securities
are reported in the consolidated financial statements at an amount less than their historical cost. The total fair value of these
investments at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-was $ 578603 . 9 million and § 527578 . 49 million, which is
approximately 72 % and 85 %and-34-%, respectively, of the Company’ s AFS and HTM securities portfolios. As of December
31,2623-2024 , the Company’ s securities portfolio consisted of 5+2-seenrities-579 positions , of which 434-482 were in an
unrealized loss position. As of December 31, 28222023 , the Company’ s security portfolio consisted of 445-seenrities-512
positions , of which 434 were in an unrealized loss position. The unrealized losses are related to the categories noted below. U.
S. Government- Sponsored Agencies, Municipal Securities ;-and Corporate Securities F- 19 The unrealized losses on the
Company’ s investments in securities issued by U. S. Government- sponsored agencies, municipal organizations and corporate
entities were caused primarily by interest rate changes. The contractual terms of those investments do not permit the issuer to
settle the securities at a price less than the amortized cost basis of the investments. The Company does not intend to sell the
investments , and it is not likely that the Company will be required to sell the investments , before recovery of their amortized
cost basis, which may be upon maturity. F==—9-Agency Mortgage- Backed and-, Private Label Mortgage - Backed Securities
and Asset - Backed Securities The unrealized losses on the Company’ s investments in agency mortgage- backed ane-, private
label mortgage - backed securities and asset - backed securities were caused primarily by interest rate changes. The Company
expects to recover the amortized cost basis over the terms of the securities. The Company does not intend to sell the investments
,and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the investments , before recovery of their amortized
cost basis, which may be upon maturity. The following tables show the securities portfolio’ s gross unrealized losses and fair
value, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss
position at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622- December 31, 2024 Less Than 12 Months12 Months or
LongerTotalFairValueUnrealizedLossesFairValueUnrealizedLossesFairValueUnrealizedLossesSecurities available- for-
sale U. S. Government- sponsored agencies $ 16,856 $ (111) $ 29, 748 $ (1, 371) $ 46, 604 $ (1, 482) Municipal securities
8, 504 (54) 52, 649 (3, 733) 61, 153 (3, 787) Agency mortgage- backed securities- residential 41, 005 (179) 169, 483 (31,
554) 210, 488 (31, 733) Agency mortgage- backed securities- commerciall8, 141 (37) 12, 027 (1, 122) 30, 168 (1, 159)
Private label mortgage- backed securities- residential3, 003 (14) 7, 450 (974) 10, 453 (988) Asset- backed securities10, 299
(43) — — 10, 299 (43) Corporate securities2, 994 (6) 27, 179 (1, 843) 30, 173 (1, 849) Total $ 100, 802 $ (444) $ 298,536 $
(40, 597) $ 399, 338 $ (41, 041) December 31, 2023 Less Than 12 Months12 Months or
LongerTotalFairValueUnrealizedLossesFairValueUnrealized LossesFairValueUnrealizedLossesSecurities available- for- sale U.
S. Government- sponsored agencies $ 41, 934 $ (161) $ 24,579 § (1, 468) § 66, 513 $ (1, 629) Muntetpal-Municipals2
seenrities2-, 399 (103) 36, 193 (1, 301) 38, 592 (1, 404) Agency mortgage- backed securities- residenttal-residentiall +-, 089
(5) 194, 095 (31, 245) 195, 184 (31, 250) Agency mortgage- backed securities- commercial21, 561 (50) 14, 217 (1, 289) 35, 778
(1, 339) Private label mortgage- backed securities- residential3, 567 (29) 9, 114 (1, 078) 12, 681 (1, 107) Asset- backed



securities1, 654 (7) —— 1, 654 (7) Corporate securities1, 680 (365) 24, 587 (2, 413) 26, 267 (2, 778) Total $ 73, 884 § (720) $
302, 785§ (38, 794) $ 376, 669 $ (39, 514) Deeember 31,2022 ess Than12- Menthsi2 Menthsor

(%9—6'869—T he follo“ma table summarizes ratings for the (ompany S HTM ponfollo 1ssued by stdte and polmcal subdl\ isions
and other securities as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. December 31, 2024Held— to- MaturityMunicipal
SecurltlesMortgage- Backed Sccuritics Held- to-ResidentialMortgage -

Backed Securities- CommercialCorporate SecuritiesTotalAAA equivalent- agency $ — $ 201,

840$5,705% — $ 207, 545 Aal / AAA— AA $8,878 — & $— 8,878 Aa2 / AA2,175 — ——2,175 Aa3 / AA- 1,793
———1,793 A2/A———5,0005,000 A3/ A-— — — —— Baal /BBB — ——8, 500 8, 500 Baa2 / BBB — — —
5,500 5, 500 Baa3 / BBB- — — — 8, 559 8, 559 Bal /BB — — — 2, 000 2, 000 Total $ 12, 846 $ 201, 840 $ 5, 705 §$ 29,

559 $ 249, 950 December 31, 2023Held- to- MaturityMunicipal SecuritiesMortgage- Backed Securities-
ResidentialMortgage- Backed Securities- CommercialCorporate SecuritiesTotalAAA equivalent- agency $ — $ 166, 750

$5,7678 —9$ 172,517 Aal / AA9,917 ———9,917 Aa2 / AA1,538 —— — 1,538 A1 /A 1,794 ———1,794 A2/
A643 ——5,000 5,643 A3/ A-———4,509 4, 509 Baal / BBB———28, 500 8, 500 Baa2 / BBB———28, 500 8§, 500
Baa3 /BBB-—— — 12,528 12, 528 Bal / BB

——2,000 2, 000 Net—R&ted—l—l—?’%%—l—?’—l—?’—Z%—l—?’—Totdl ‘{s 13, 892 $ 23
166 ,554-750 8 5,767 $ 41,037 $ 227, 446 v y g acked-see s—eommeretal-an al-s ed
under-Other-seeurities-asnotrated—here were no dmounts 1eddssmed hom dccumulated other c0mp1ehens1\ e loss to the
eondensed-consolidated statements of income during the twelve months ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-202+.
Equity Investments Equity investments, largely comprised of non- marketable equity investments, are generally accounted for
under equity security accounting and is included within accrued income and other assets on the consolidated balance sheet.
The Company’ s non- marketable equity investments consist of limited partner interests in venture capital and Small
Business Investment Company (“ SBIC ”) funds. After the initial commitment and over the course of the investment
period, the Company will make capital contributions and receive profit and return of capital distributions as a result of
fund performance until the funds wind down. While the partnership agreements allow the Company to remove the
general partner, this right is not considered to be substantive as the general partner can only be removed for cause. All of
these investments are generally non- redeemable and distributions are generally expected to be received through the F-
21 liquidation of the underlying investments throughout the life of the investment fund. Investments may only be sold or
transferred subject to the notice and approval provisions of the underlying investment agreements. The above
investments meet the criteria of a VIE. However, the Company is not the primary beneficiary of the entities as it does not
have the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of the entities. The
Company’ s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated VIEs includes the value of the investment recorded on the
Company’ s consolidated balance sheets . The following tables provide additional information related to equity investments
accounted for under this-method-equity security accounting . The carrying amount of each equity investment with a readily
determinable fair value or net asset value at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-is reflected in the following table:
20242023GenOpp {doHarsintheusands)20232022GenOpp-Financial Fund LP $ 2,724 $ 2, 102 Total $ 2, 724 434-Fetal-$ 2,

102 $2,434F-21-The carrying amount of the Company’ s investments in non- marketable equity securities with no readily
determinable fair value and amounts recognized in earnings on a cumulative basis as-efBeeember3+-2623-and-for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-is reflected in the following table: {doHarsinrthousands)26232022Carrying—---
20242023Carrying valuel $ 20,017 $ 12, 374 $8;-667-Carrying value adjustments — — Impairment — — Upward changes
for observable prices — — Downw: dld changes for observable prices — — Net change $ 20, 017 $ 12, 374 $-8;-667-1 Exelasive
ofExcludes $ 9. 1 million and $ 11. 5 mithenand-$43-—0-million in unfunded commitments as of Degember 31,2024 and 2023
Fand2022- respectively. F- 22 Note 4: Loans Categories of loans include: December 31, 20232022Ceommeretal-—---
20242023Commercial loans Commercial and industrial $ 120, 175 $ 129, 349 $426;,488-Owner- occupied commercial real
estateS7-estateS3 , 591 57 , 286 64-836-Investor commercial real estate}32—- estate269 , 431 132 , 077 9312+
€eﬁsﬁ=uet-ieﬁ%6-l—C0nstructi0n413 , 523 261 , 750 +8+-966-Single tenant lease -ﬁ-ﬂaﬂeing936-ﬁnancing949 , 748 936 , 616 939;
240-Public finanee524—- finance485 , 867 521 , 764 624-032-Healthcare finanee222-financel81, 427 222 | 793 292,46+Small
business fending248---- lending 1331, 914 218 , 506 +23;-756-Franchise finanee525-financeS536 , 909 525 |, 783 299;:-835-Total
commercial loans3, 342, 585 3, 005, 924 2;-7H49:349-Consumer loansResidential moertgage395-mortgage37s , 160 395 , 648
383;-948-Home equtty23-equityl8 , 274 23 , 669 24;--H2-Other eensumer377 consumer407 , 947 377 , 614 324;-598-Total
consumer teans796-loans801, 381 796 , 931 733;258-Total commercial and consumer teans3-loans4 , 143, 966 3 , 802, 855 3;
452,607 Net deferred loan origination costs, premiums and discounts on purchased loans, and other 226, 680 137 37 , 365 46;
F94-Total feans3-loansd , 170, 646 3 , 840, 220 3;49940+-Allowance for credit losses ( 44, 769) ( 38, 774 ¥H3+H73F) Net
loans $ 4,125,877 $ 3, 801, 446 $3;467,664-1 Balances include $ 34. 0 million and $ 33. 5 million that is guaranteed by




the U. S. government as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. 2 Includes carrying value adjustment
of $ 22. 9 million and $ 27. 8§ milherand-$32--5-million related to terminated interest rate swaps associated with public finance
loans as of December 31, 2823-2024 and December 31, 2822-2023 , respectively. The general risk characteristics specific to
each loan portfolio segment are as follows: Commercial and Industrial: Commercial and industrial loans’ sources of repayment
are primarily based on the identified cash flows of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the
borrower. The cash flows of borrowers, however, may not be as expected, and the collateral securing these loans may fluctuate
in value. Loans are made for working capital, equipment purchases, or other purposes. Most commercial and industrial loans are
secured by the assets being financed and may incorporate a personal guarantee. This portfolio segment is generally concentrated
in the Midwest and Southwest regions of the United States. Owner- Occupied Commercial Real Estate: The primary source of
repayment is the cash flow from the ongoing operations and activities conducted by the borrower, or an affiliate of the
borrower, who owns the property. This portfolio segment is generally concentrated in the Midwest and Southwest regions of the
United States and its loans are often secured by manufacturing and service facilities. F=23-Investor Commercial Real Estate:
These loans are made on a nationwide basis and are underwritten primarily based on the cash flow expected to be generated
from the property and are secondarily supported by the value of the real estate. These loans typically incorporate a personal
guarantee from the primary sponsor or sponsors. This portfolio segment generally involves larger loan amounts with repayment
primarily dependent on the successful leasing and operation of the property securing the loan or the business conducted on the
property securing the loan. Investor commercial real estate loans may be more adversely affected by changing economic
conditions in the real estate markets, industry dynamics or the overall health of the local economy where the property is located.
The F- 23 properties securing the Company’ s investor commercial real estate portfolio tend to be diverse in terms of property
type. Management monitors and evaluates commercial real estate loans based on property financial performance, collateral
value, guarantor strength, economic and industry conditions together with other risk grade criteria. As a general rule, the
Company avoids financing special use projects unless other underwriting factors are present to mitigate these additional risks.
Construction: Construction loans are made on a nationwide basis and are secured by land and related improvements and are
made to assist in the construction of new structures, which may include commercial (retail, industrial, office, and multi- family)
properties, land development for residential properties or single family residential properties offered for sale by the builder.
These loans generally finance a variety of project costs, including land, site preparation, architectural services, construction,
closing and soft costs and interim financing needs. The cash flows of builders, while initially predictable, may fluctuate with
market conditions, and the value of the collateral securing these loans may be subject to fluctuations based on general economic
changes. Single Tenant Lease Financing: These loans are made on a nationwide basis to owners of real estate subject to long-
term lease arrangements with single tenant operators. The real estate is typically operated by regionally, nationally or globally
branded businesses. The loans are underwritten based on the financial strength of the borrower, characteristics of the real estate,
cash flows generated from the lease arrangements and the financial strength of the tenant. Similar to the other loan portfolio
segments, management monitors and evaluates these loans based on borrower and tenant financial performance, collateral value,
industry trends and other risk grade criteria. Public Finance: These loans are made on a nationwide basis to governmental and
not- for- profit entities to provide both tax- exempt and taxable loans for a variety of purposes including: short- term cash- flow
needs; debt refinancing; economic development; quality of life projects; infrastructure improvements; renewable energy
projects; and equipment financing. The primary sources of repayment for public finance loans include pledged revenue sources
including , but not limited to: general obligations; property taxes; income taxes; tax increment revenue; utility revenue; gaming
revenues; sales tax; and pledged general revenue. Certain loans may also include an additional collateral pledge of mortgaged
property or a security interest in financed equipment. Healthcare Finance: These loans are made on a nationwide basis to
healthcare providers, primarily dentists, for practice acquisition financing or refinancing that occasionally includes owner-
occupied commercial real estate and equipment purchases. The sources of repayment are primarily based on the identified cash
flows from operations of the borrower and related entities and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the
borrower. F24-Small Business Lending: These loans are made on a nationwide basis to small businesses and generally carry a
partial guaranty from the U. S. Small Business Administration (“ SBA ) under its 7 (a) loan program. We generally sell the
government guaranteed portion of SBA loans into the secondary market while retaining the non- guaranteed portion of the loan
and the servicing rights. Loans in the small business lending portfolio have sources of repayment that are primarily based on the
identified cash flows of the borrower and secondarily on any underlying collateral provided by the borrower. Loans may, but do
not always, have a collateral shortfall. For SBA loans where the guaranteed portion is retained, the SBA guaranty provides a
tertiary source of repayment to the Bank in event of borrower default. Cash flows of borrowers, however, may not be as
expected and collateral securing these loans may fluctuate in value. Loans are made for a broad array of purposes including, but
not limited to, providing operating cash flow, funding ownership changes, and facilitating equipment and commercial real estate
purchases. Franchise Finance: These loans are made on a nationwide basis through our partnership with ApplePie Capital,
which through their deep relationships with franchise brands provides franchisees with financing options for new franchise
units, recapitalization, expansion, equipment and working capital. The sources of repayment are either based on identified cash
flows from existing operations of the borrower or pro forma cash flow for new franchise locations. Residential Mortgage: With
respect to residential loans that are secured by 1- to- 4 family residences and are generally owner occupied, the Company
typically establishes-established a maximum loan- to- value ratio and requires private mortgage insurance if that ratio is
exceeded. Repayment of these loans is primarily dependent on the financial circumstances of the borrowers, which can be
impacted by economic conditions in their market areas such as unemployment levels. Repayment can also be impacted by
changes in residential property values. Risk is mitigated F- 24 by the fact that the loans are of smaller individual amounts and
spread over a large number of borrowers in geographically diverse locations throughout the country. Home Equity: Home equity
loans and lines of credit are typically secured by a subordinate interest in 1- to- 4 family residences. The properties securing the



home equity portfolio segment are generally geographically diverse as the Company effers-offered these products on a
nationwide basis. Repayment of these loans and lines of credit is primarily dependent on the financial circumstances of the
borrowers and may be impacted by changes in unemployment levels and property values on residential properties, among other
economic conditions in the market. Other Consumer: These loans primarily consist of consumer loans and credit cards.
Consumer loans may be secured by consumer assets such as horse trailers or recreational vehicles. Some consumer loans are
unsecured, such as small installment loans, home improvement loans and certain lines of credit. Repayment of consumer loans is
primarily dependent upon the personal income of the borrowers, which can be impacted by economic conditions in their market
areas such as unemployment levels. Risk is mitigated by the fact that the loans are of smaller individual amounts and spread
over a large number of borrowers in geographically diverse locations throughout the country. Allowance for Credit Losses (““
ACL ”) Methodology The Company' s methodologies incorporate a one- year reasonable and supportable forecast period with a
one- year straight line reversion to the long- term historical average for most segments . The ACL methodology may also
consider other adjustments to address changes in conditions, trends, and circumstances such as local industry changes that could
have a significant impact on the risk profile of the loan portfolio and provide for adjustments that may not be reflected and / or
captured in the historical loss data. These factors include: lending policies, imprecision in forecasting future economic
conditions, loan profile, lending staff, problem loan trends, loan review, collateral, credit concentration, or other internal and
external factors. F=25-The Company also includes qualitative adjustments to the ACL based on factors and considerations that
have not otherwise been fully accounted for. Qualitative adjustments include, but are not limited to: The ACL is measured on a
collective or pool basis when similar risk characteristics exist. The Company segments its portfolio generally by Federal
Financial Institutions Examination Council (" FFIEC") Call Report codes that align with its lines of business. Additional sub-
segmentation may be utilized to identify groups of loans with unique risk characteristics relative to the rest of the portfolio. F-
25 Loans that do not share similar risk characteristics are evaluated on an individual basis. These evaluations are typically
performed on loans with a deteriorated internal risk rating. The ACL aHewaneefor-eredittoss-is determined based on several
methods, including estimating the fair value of the underlying collateral or the present value of expected cash flows. The
Company relies on a third- party platform that offers multiple methodologies to measure historical life- of- loan losses. Modified
Loans to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty The Company may make modifications to certain loans in order to
alleviate temporary difficulties in the borrower’ s financial condition and / or constraints on the borrower’ s ability to repay the
loan, and to minimize potential losses to the Company. Modifications may include changes in the amortization terms of the
loan, reductions in interest rates, acceptance of interest only payments, and / or reductions to the outstanding loan balance. Such
loans are typically placed on nonaccrual status when there is doubt concerning the full repayment of principal and interest or the
loan has been delinquent for a period of 90 days or more. These loans may be returned to accrual status when all contractual
amounts past due have been brought current, and the borrower” s performance under the modified terms of the loan agreement
and the ultimate collectability of all contractual amounts due under the modified terms is no longer in doubt. The Company
typically measures the ACL on modified loans to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty on an individual basis when the
loans are deemed to no longer share risk characteristics that are similar with other loans in the portfolio. The determination of
the ACL for these loans is based on a discounted cash flow approach for both those measured collectively and individually,
unless the loan is deemed collateral dependent, which requires measurement of the ACL based on the estimated expected fair
value of the underlying collateral, less costs to sell. GAAP requires the Company to make certain disclosures related to these
loans, including certain types of modifications, as well as how such loans have performed since their modifications. Provision
for Credit Losses A provision for estimated losses on loans is charged to income based upon management’ s evaluation of the
potential losses. Such an evaluation, which includes a review of all loans for which full repayment may not be reasonably
assured, considers, among other matters, the estimated net realizable value of the underlying collateral, as applicable, economic
conditions, loan loss experience, and other factors that are particularly susceptible to changes that could result in a material
adjustment in the near term. While management attempts to use the best information available in making its evaluations, future
allowanee-ACL adjustments may be necessary if economic conditions change substantially from the assumptions used in
making the evaluations. F~26-Pelicy for Charging Off Loans The Company’ s policy is to charge off a loan at any point in
time when it no longer can be considered a bankable asset, meaning collectible within the parameters of policy. A secured loan
is generally charged down to the estimated fair value of the collateral, less costs to sell, no later than when it is 120 days past
due as to principal or interest. An unsecured loan generally is charged off no later than when it is 180 days past due as to
principal or interest. A home improvement loan generally is charged off no later than when it is 90 days past due as to principal
or interest. The following tables present changes in the balance of the ACL during the twelve months ended December 31, 2024
and December 31, 2023 , respectively . F- 26 Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2623-2024 Balance, Beginning of Period
PertodAdoptionof- CECE Credit) Provision Charged to ExpenseLosses Charged OffRecoveriesBalance, End of
PeriodAllowance for credit losses: Commercial and industrial $ 2, 185 $ (928) $ — $ 8 $ 1, 265 Owner- occupied commercial
real estate825 (297) — — 528 Investor commercial real estatel, 311 (162) — — 1, 149 Construction2, 167 (183) — — 1,
984 Single tenant lease financing8, 129 (3, 152) (195) — 4, 782 Public financel, 372 (669) — — 703 Healthcare financel,
976 (564) — — 1, 412 Small business lending6, 532 19, 745 (10, 441) 325 16, 161 Franchise finance6, 363 4, 079 (1, 466) —
8, 976 Residential mortgage2, 054 240 (159) 1 2, 136 Home equity171 (72) — 7 106 Other consumer5, 689 778 (1, 009)
109 5,567 Total $ 38,774 $ 18, 815 $ (13, 270) $ 450 $ 44, 769 Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2023 Balance,
Beginning of PeriodAdoption of CECLProvision (Credit) Charged to ExpenseLosses Charged OffRecoveriesBalance,
End of PeriodAllowance for credit losses: Commercial and industrial $ 1, 711 $ (120) $ 7,400 $ (7, 049) $ 243 $2, 185
Owner- occupied commercial real estate651 62 112 — — 825 Investor commercial real estatel, 099 (191) 994 (591) — 1, 311
Construction2, 074 (435) 528 — — 2, 167 Single tenant lease financing10, 519 (346) (2, 044) — — 8, 129 Public financel, 753
(135) (246) — — 1, 372 Healthcare finance2, 997 1, 034 (1, 450) (605) — 1, 976 Small business lending2, 168 334 6, 539 (2,



586) 77 6, 532 Franchise finance3, 988 (313) 3, 019 (331) — 6, 363 Residential mortgagel, 559 406 224 (140) 5 2, 054 Home
equity69 133 (37) — 6 171 Other consumer3, 149 2, 533 415 (582) 174 5, 689 Total $ 31, 737 $2,962 $ 15,454 $ (11, 884) $
505 $ 38, 774 Prior to the adoption of ASU 2016- 13 on January 1, 2023, the Company calculated the allowance for loan losses
using the incurred loss methodology. The following tables present the balance in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded
investment in loans based on portfolio segment and impairment method as of December 31, 2022 and-Deeember314;2624. F-
277 Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2022 Balance, Beginning of PertodPreviston-Period (Credit) Provision Charged to
ExpenseLosses Charged OffRecoveriesBalance, End of PeriodAllowance for loan losses: Commercial and industrial $ 1, 891 $
(185)$—$ 58 1,711 Owner- occupied commercial real estate742 (91) — — 651 Investor commercial real estate328 771 —
— 1, 099 Constructionl, 612 462 — — 2, 074 Single tenant lease financing10, 385 (1, 097) — 1, 231 10, 519 Public financel,
776 (23) — — 1, 753 Healthcare finance5, 940 (2, 943) — — 2, 997 Small business lending1, 387 1, 154 (402) 29 2, 168
Franchise financel, 083 2, 905 — — 3, 988 Residential mortgage643 912 — 4 1, 559 Home equity64 (134) — 139 69 Other
consumerl, 990 3 24( (2 358) 27l 3 149 Total $ 217, 841 $ 4, 977 $ (2 760) $ l 679 $ 31, 7375PwelyeMen{-hs—En€led

-$—(-3%%79—$§54—$%—7—84—1—ln addmon to the ACL, the Company estabh%hed a reserve for off- balance qheet Commltmenti
classified in other liabilities, as required by the adoption of the CECL methodology for measuring credit losses. This reserve is
maintained at a level management belleve§ to be %ufﬁment to absorb losqe% ansmg from unfunded loan commitments —Fhe-day
Re-eRtry balane commitmentsres A-ates M r-. The adequacy of the reserve for unfunded
commitments is determined quarterly based on methodology §1m1lar to the methodology for determining the ACL. The
following table-tables details activity in the provision for credit losses on off- balance sheet commitments for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. BalanceDecember 31, 2023Provision for credit lossesBalanceDecember
31, 20240f11- balance sheet commitmentsCommercial loansCommercial and industrial $ 233 § — $ 233 Owner- occupied
commercial real estate9 2 11 Investor commercial real estate6 (5) 1 Construction2, 889 (1, 321) 1, 568 Single tenant lease
financing — 19 19 Small business lending541 (278) 263 Total commercial loans3, 678 (1, 583) 2, 095 Consumer
loansResidential mortgagell (10) 1 Home equity4S (10) 35 Other consumer11 (3) 8 Total consumer loans67 (23) 44 Total
allowance for off- balance sheet commitments $ 3, 745 $ (1, 606) $ 2, 139 - 28 {deHarsin-thousands)-Pre- ASC 326
AdoptionImpact of ASC 326 AdoptionProvision for credit lossesBalanceDecember 31, 20230ff- balance sheet
commitmentsCommercial loansCommercial and industrial $ — $ 110 $ 123 $ 233 Owner— occupied commercial real estate —
— 9 9 Investor commercial real estate — 9 (3) 6 Construction — 2, 193 696 2, 889 Healthcare finance — 2 (2) — Small
business lending — — 541 541 Total commercial loans — 2, 314 1, 364 3, 678 Consumer loansResidential mortgage — 127
(116) 11 Home equity — 52 (7) 45 Other consumer — 11 — 11 Total consumer loans — 190 (123) (7 Total allowance for off-
balance sheet comm1tment§ $ — $ 2 504 $ 1,241 $ 3,745 The W pt-the-ba o8

guafanfeed—byhﬂ&e—U—S—gevefﬁmeﬁt—F%e—Company ut1hze€ a rlqk gradmg matrlx to assign a rlqk grade to each of its

commercial loans , which are evaluated annually . A description of the general characteristics of the risk grade% is as follows:
¢ “ Pass - Higher quallty loans that do not fit any of the other categories described below. ¢ “ Special Mention ”- Loans that
possess some credit deficiency or potential weakness which deserve close attention. ¢ “ Substandard - Loans that possess a
defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. Loans that are characterized by the distinct
possibility that the institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Loans that are inadequately protected
by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. ¢ “ Doubtful ”- Such loans have
been placed on nonaccrual status and may be heavily dependent upon collateral possessing a value that is difficult to determine
or based upon some near- term event which lacks clear certainty. These loans have all of the weaknesses of those classified as
Substandard; however, based on existing conditions, these weaknesses make full collection of the principal balance highly
improbable. ¢ “ Loss - Loans that are considered uncollectible and of such little value that continuing to carry them as assets is
not warranted. The Company does not risk grade its consumer loans. It classifies them as either performing or nonperforming.
Below is a description of those classifications: ¢ “ Performing ”- Loans that are accruing and full collection of principal and
interest is expected. ¢ “ Nonperforming - Loans that are 90 days delinquent or for which the full collection of principal and
interest may be in doubt. F- 38-29 The following table presents the credit risk profile of the Company’ s commercial and
consumer loan portfolios by loan class and by year of origination for the years indicated based on rating category and payment
activity as of December 31, 2023-2024 -and December 31, 2023 December 31, 2623Ferm-2024Term [Loans (amortized cost



basis by origination year) Revolving loans amortized cost basisRevolving loans converted to term-{in-thousands)
20232022202120202019PrierTotal Commeretal—-- term20242023202220212020Pr10rT0talCommerclal and industrial Pass $
2423 /329539 § 419-8 , 382-501 $ +5-13 , 464853 $5,418 $ 2,362 $ 17, 829 § 44, 000 $ — $ 115, 502 $142,365-$-8,703-$41;
967-$—$124, 72 -Special Mention —47 164 4, 462 39— — — — — 4, 637673 Substandard — — — — — — — —
— Doubtful —— — — — — — — — Total Cemmeretal-commercial and industrial24-industrial23 , 329-24-586 8 , 819-665
18,45-315 5 , 464418 2, 562-362 17, 829 44, 000 — +2-120 , 175 Year- to- date 365-8;703-41+;-967—129:349-Gross-gross
charge- offs — — 6;044-5436- — — F#049— — — — Owner- occupied commercial real estate PasstPass7 , 49216-410
1,731+7458 5 ,990-366 0, 594438 5, 25542716 14 , 485793 — — 44-41 , 544-181 Special Mention — 584-922— 570 888
8, 144 392—1, +89-153 — — H-10 , 68+755 Substandard — — — — — 1, 655——1, 655 Doubtful —— — — — — —
— — Total owner- occupied commercial real estatet-estate7 , 4921++410 1 , 458 3+5-8;-H244;983-5, 25545936 7 . 326 13
320——57-, 286860 17, 601 — — 53, 591 Year- to- date gross charge- offs —— — — — — — — — Investor
commercial real estate Passé-Pass71 , 5435430 3 , 20926-849 88 . 8414290 65, 050 O, 607 §644F-82F 27 5-, 765474 — —
432265 , 6#+700 Special Mention — — — — — 3,731 — — 3, 731 Substandard —— — — — — — — — Doubtful
————————— Total investor commercial real estateé-estate71 , 5735430 3 , 269-26-849 88 , 8§41-290 65, 050 9,
$64-607 31, 205 — — 269, 431 Year- to- date gross charge- offs —— — — — — — — — Construction Pass35, 177 186,
979 140, 299 47, 829-5-598 1 , 765-622 — 1 —132-, 848 677-Grosseharge—offs-— 413 594 504
ConstraetionPass26-, 523 539453;-666-76;1+75-6; 1 24——5;849—26+-756-Special Mention — — — — — — — — —
Substandard — — — — — — — — — Doubtfu] —— —— — — — — — Total eonstruetion2é-construction3s , 539453
177 186 , 666-76-979 140 , 1756299 47 , 598 1 +2+———5-, 849-622 — 2611 , 750-848 — 413, 523 Year- to- date gross
charge-offf§ ———77—M—— —— — Single tenant lease financing Pass52-Pass79 , 872 366221-964-89-075-65;863142;
023346-- 46 , 674 211 695———9+7, 986-005 88, 192 63, 506 437, 564 — — 926, 813 Special Mention 644 —4-9 | 696 362
66983, 632460 — 49 ,544-135 — 1822 , 636935 Substandard — — — — — — — — — Doubtful — — — — — —
—— — — Total single tenant lease finanetng52-financing80 , 366-226-516 46 . 326-674 220, 701 91, 652 63, 506 446, 699 — —
949, 748 Year- to- date gross charge- offs —— — — — 95-195 - 773-68;-895142,-023-351239-— — 195 936;-61+6-Public
finance Pass3-PassSS |, §65306-306 1 , 583-25-290 7 ., 756-+95-790 12, 050 43-463 407 . 008 6+H-4+1+76-— — 519483 . 644
907 Special Mention — — — — — 21,4+26-960 — — 21 . +26-960 Substandard — — — — — — — — — Doubtful — —
——————— Total public -ﬁﬁ&neea—ﬁnanceSS 865-306 1,290 7, 790 12, 050 463 408, 968 — — 485, 867 Year- to-
date gross charge- off§ ——— ————— —F- 30 5832975019436 H-4H3;206——52-F764 F-3+December
31, 2623Ferm-2024Term [oans (amortized cost bdsls by origination year) Revolving loans amortized cost basisRevolving
loans converted to term-term20242023202220212020PriorTotalHealthcare finance Pass — — — 8, 969 104, 427 67, 413 —
180, 809 Special Mention — — — — — 618 — — 618 Substandard —— —— — — — — — Doubtful —— — — —
— — — — Total healthcare finance — — — 8, 969 104, 427 68, 031 — — 181, 427 Year- to- date gross charge- offs —
———————— Small business lending Pass138, 044 94, 556 30, 486 11, 7159, 687 9, 896 17, 197 — 311, 581
Special Mention 1, 022 4, 691 927 — 354 1, 213 697 — 8, 904 Substandard2, 940 3, 909 1, 457 258 970 1, 001 894 — 11,
429 Doubtful —— — — — — — — — Total small business lending142, 006 103, 156 32, 870 11, 973 11, 011 12, 110 18,
788 — 331, 914 Year- to- date gross charge- offs1, 093 4, 600 3, 038 567 619 524 — — 10, 441 Franchise finance Pass67,
065 230, 425 172, 830 42, 869 — — — — 513, 189 Special Mention — 1, 978 5, 084 6, 275 — — — — 13, 337
Substandard — 3, 543 6,367 473 — — —— 10, 383 Doubtful —— — — — — — — — Total franchise finance67, 065
235, 946 184, 281 49, 617 — — — — 536, 909 Year- to- date gross charge- offs — 1,171 — 295 — ———1, 466
Consumer loansResidential mortgage Performing3, 577 13, 533 183, 484 86, 213 28, 655 55, 615 — — 371, 077
Nonperforming — — 1, 671 609 69 1, 734 — — 4, 083 Total residential mortgage3, 577 13, 533 185, 155 86, 822 28, 724
57,349 — — 375, 160 Year- to- date gross charge- offs — — 101 5§ — — — — 159 Home equity Performing — 992 1,
450 356 414 530 13, 621 911 18, 274 Nonperforming —— — — — — — — — Total home equity — 992 1, 450 356 414
530 13, 621 911 18, 274 Year- to- date gross charge-offs —— — — — — — — — Other consumer Performing101, 965
97, 832 88, 872 33, 177 20, 918 64, 251 870 — 407, 885 Nonperforming — — 38 11 1 12 — — 62 Total other
consumer101, 965 97, 832 88, 910 33, 188 20, 919 64, 263 870 — 407, 947 Year- to- date gross charge- offs157 242 300 127
1182 ——1, 009 Total Loans $ 588, 038 $ 700,374 $ 973,997 $ 420, 019 $ 256,915 $ 1, 124,585 $ 79, 127 $ 911 § 4, 143,
966 Total year- to- date gross charge- offs $ 1,250 $ 6,013 $ 3,439 $ 1, 047 $ 620 $901 $ — $ — $ 13, 270 F- 31
December 31, 2023Term Loans ( i-thousands-amortized cost basis by origination year ) Revolving loans amortized cost
basisRevolving loans converted to term20232022202120202019PriorTotalCommercial and industrial Pass $ 24, 329 § 19,
3829515,464 $2,5029%12,365$ 8,703 $ 41,967 $ —$ 124, 712 Special Mention — 4,637 — — — — — — 4, 637
Substandard ————7 — — — — — Doubtful —————mF — — — — — Total Commercial and industrial24, 329 24,
019 15, 464 2, 502 12, 365 8, 703 41, 967 — 129, 349 Year- to- date gross charge- offs — — 6,914 5 130 —— — 7, 049
Owner- occupied commercial real estate Pass1, 492 10, 731 7, 990 6, 591 5, 255 12, 485 — — 44, 544 Special Mention —
584 922 8,392 — 1,189 — — 11, 087 Substandard — — — — — 1,655 — —1, 655 Doubtful —— — — — — — — —
Total owner- occupied commercial real estatel, 492 11, 315 8, 912 14, 983 §, 255 15, 329 — — 57, 286 Year- to- date
gross charge-offs ——7—7— —1— — — — — Investor commercial real estate Pass6, 571 35, 209 26, 841 9, 864 47, 827 5,
765 — — 132, 077 Special Mention — — — — — — — — — Substandard —— — — — — — — — Doubtful — — —
—————— Total investor commercial real estate6, 571 35, 209 26, 841 9, 864 47, 827 5, 765 — — 132, 077 Year- to-
date gross charge- offs — — — — — 591 — — 591 Construction Pass26, 539 153, 066 70, 175 6, 121 — — S, 849 — 261,
750 Special Mention —— — — — — — — — Substandard —— — — — — — — — Doubtfu] —— — — — — — —
— Total construction26, 539 153, 066 70, 175 6, 121 — — 5, 849 — 261, 750 Year- to- date gross charge- offs — — — —
————— Single tenant lease financing Pass52, 360 221, 964 89, 075 65, 863 142, 023 346, 695 — — 917, 980 Special




Mention — 4, 362 6, 698 3, 032 — 4, 544 — — 18, 636 Substandard —— — — — — — — — Doubtful —— — — — —
— — — Total single tenant lease financing52, 360 226, 326 95, 773 68, 895 142, 023 351, 239 — — 936, 616 Year- to- date

gross charge-offs ——7—7-— — — — — — Public finance Pass3, 805 30, 583 29, 750 719 43, 611 411, 176 — — 519, 644
Special Mention — — — — — 2,120 — — 2,120 Substandard —————— — — — Doubtful —— — — — — —
— — Total public finance3, 805 30, 583 29, 750 719 43, 611 413, 296 — — 521, 764 Year- to- date gross charge- offs —

———————— F- 32 December 31, 2023Term Loans (amortized cost basis by origination year) Revolving loans
amortized cost basisRevolving loans converted to 26232622262126202615PriorTotalHealtheare
term20232022202120202019PriorTotalHealthcare finance Pass — — 9, 955 124, 654 63, 486 23, 484 — — 221, 579 Special
Mention — — ——1,214 — ——1, 214 Substandard ——7—M— — — — — — boubtfu] ———— —— — — — — —
Total healthcare finance — — 9, 955 124, 654 64, 700 23, 484 — — 222, 793 Year- to- date Gross-gross charge- offs — — —
— 605 — — — 605 Small business lending +Pass119, 149 42, 077 15, 180 13, 948 4, 582 9, 215 5, 388 — 209, 539 Special
Mention 343 496 — 341 265 698 — — 2, 143 Substandardl, 095 1, 854 52 1, 777 1, 155 417 474 — 6, 824 Doubtful — — —
—————— Total small business lending120, 587 44, 427 15, 232 16, 066 6, 002 10, 330 5, 862 — 218, 506 Year- to-
date Gross-gross charge- offs67 739 416 1, 364 — — — — 2, 586 Franchise finance Pass256, 944 210, 617 57,919 — — —
— — 525, 480 Special Mention — — — — — — — — — Substandard — — 303 — — — — — 303 Doubtful — — — —
————— Total franchise finance256, 944 210, 617 58, 222 — — — — — 525, 783 Year- to- date Gress-gross charge-
offs —33] ———M—= — — 331 Consumer loansResidential mortgage Performing14, 942 195, 453 91, 010 30, 092 13, 072
48, 330 — — 392, 899 Nonperforming — 738 456 73 — 1, 482 — — 2, 749 Total residential mortgagel4, 942 196, 191 91,
466 30, 165 13,072 49, 812 — — 395, 648 Year- to- date Gross-gross charge- offs — 53 70 — 17 — — — 140 Home equity
Performingl, 369 1, 997 436 467 141 585 16, 896 1, 778 23, 669 Nonperforming — — — — — — — — — Total home
equityl, 369 1,997 436 467 141 585 16, 896 1, 778 23, 669 Year- to- date gross charge- offs —— — — — — — — —
Other consumer Performing115, 736 106, 883 41, 598 26, 527 27, 087 58, 902 795 — 377, 528 Nonperforming — 53 — 5 15
13 — — 86 Total other consumerl 15, 736 106, 936 41, 598 26, 532 27, 102 58, 915 795 — 377, 614 Year- to- date Gress
gross charge- offs97 115 20 51 56 243 — — 582 Total Loans $ 624, 674 $ 1, 040, 686 § 463, 824 § 300, 968 § 362, 098 § 937,
458 $ 71, 369 $1,778 $ 3, 802 855 Total year- to- date gross charge offs b 16481, 238 $7, 420 b 1,420 b 808 b 83485 —9§

-$—l—965—$—7—3—3—2§-8—1: 33 The followm;a tdbles present the Comp"my S loan portfollo dellnquency andlys1s as of December 31,
2623-2024 and 2022-December 31, 2023 tn-theusands)36-. December 31, 202430 - 59DaysPast Due60- 89DaysPast Due90
Days or MorePast DueTotal Past DueC urrentTotal loansCommercial and industrial § 46-$2+%— $ 64— $ — 129, 2885129

— $ 120 , 3496wner-175 $ 120, 1750wner - occupied commercial real estate — — — — 57-53 | 2865759153 , 286Investor
591Investor commercial real estate — — — — 432-269 , 871432431269 , 677Construction-431Construction — — — — 26+
413 , 756261523413 , 750Single— 523Single tenant lease financing — — — — 936949 . 616936-748949 ., 6+6Puble
748Public finance — — — — 524485 | 764521-867485 , 764Healtheare—- 867Healthcare finance — — — — 222-181 ,

793222-427181 , 793Smal--- 427Small business tendingt2-lendingl1 , 686572-8171 , 7945-3105 , 534242-58718 , 975248
714313 , 200331, S566Franchise-914Franchise Finanee-Finance9 —2-, 92330334313 | 226522-2799 , 557525-84922 , 559514,
350536, 783Residenttal-909Residential mortgage76769+-mortgage6481 , 6632-7113 | 442393-8156 , 266395-174368 ,
648Home-986375, 160Home cquity — — — — 23-18 , 66923-27418 . 6690thereonsumer2236853344377-2740ther
consumer19419627417407 , 276377530407 , 6+4Fotal-947Total $ 3-22 . 643-090 S 3-6 , 778-496 $ 19,278 $ 47, 864 S 4, 096
S13-$H- 604102 § 3-4 . 79143 , 966 25+-$-3,-802,-855-December 31, 202330 2022-Ga-theusands)36- 59DaysPast Due60-
89DaysPast Due90 Days or MorePast DueTotal Past DueCurrentTotal loansCommercial and industrial $ 440 § —21 $ 54—
$432-61 § 425129 , 976-288 § 426-129 , +88-349 Owner- occupied commercial real estate — — — — 6457 , 836-61-286 57 ,
836-286 Investor commercial real estate — — — —93-132 , 432493-077 132 , 42+-077 Construction — 53498—4+——261 ,
+98486-750 261 , 750 #681+8+-966-Single tenant lease financing — — — — 939-936 , 2460-939-616 936 , 246-616 Public
finance — — — — 624521 ., 632-62+764 521 , 632-764 Healthcare finance — — — — 272-222 , 46+272-793 222 , 461793
Small business kﬂd-mg—lé—?’—lendng 680 57 2,794 5, 531 212, 975 218, 506 Franchise Finance — 2, 923 303 3, 226 4853
542426;,208123;-750-Franchise Finanee3H3———3143299,-520 209- §35-557 525, 783 Residential meﬁgage—mortgagem 709
1 —283185468-383-, 486-383-663 2 , 5948-442 393, 206 395, 648 Home equity — — — — 2423 | H2-24-669 23 . 1+2-669
Other eonsumerdt-consumer223 +6—104+324-68 53 344 377 , 497324-270 377 , 598614 Total § 542—$—1749-1—$—3, 013 2+$%
57545 3,446-778 $ 4 , 853-813 $ 11, 604 § 3, 452791 , 667251 $ 3, 802, 855 [.oans are reclassified to non- accruing status
when, in management’ s judgment, the collateral value and financial condition of the borrower do not justify accruing interest.
At the time the accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed against earnings. Interest income accrued in prior
years, if any, is charged to the ACL aHewanee-forereditdosses-. Payments subsequently received on nonaccrual loans are
applied to principal. A loan is returned to accrual status when principal and interest are no longer past due and collectability is
probable, typically after a minimum of nine consecutive months of performance. F- 34 The following table summarizes the
Company’ s nonaccrual loans and loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing by loan class for the periods indicated:




December 31, 2623Deeember-2024December 3 |, 2023 Total 2622-(n-theusandsy-Nonaccrual LoansNonaccrual Loans with no
Allowance for Credit LossesTotal Loans90 Days orMore PastDue andAeeraingNonaeeraat-andAccruingTotal Nonaccrual
LoansNonaccrual Loans with no Allowance for Fean-Credit LossesTotal Loans90 Days orMore PastDue
andAccruingCommercial and industrial § — $ — § — § 5+—3% — § — Owner- occupied commercial real estate — — — —
— 5761576~ Small business fendingt6-lendingl1 , 429 4, 778 1, 320 6 , 824 904 — Franchise financel0, 382 — — 303
— — Residential mortgage4, 083 4, 7642-083 1 , 142 1 466—Franehise-ﬁ-nanee3-93—Restdenﬁal—meﬁg&ge-l— 9111,
911 838 1,-0481-64879-Other eonsumerS6— consumer61 61 4 86 86 —37+7F+— Total loans $ 25,955 $ 8,922 $ 2,466 $ 9,
124$ 2,901 $ 838 $F450-$-5-40+579-There was $ 0. 7 million and $ 0. 3 mithenand-$0-—2-million in interest income
recognized on nonaccrual loans for the twelve months ended December 31, 2023-2024 and December 31, 26222023 ,
respectively. Determining fair value for collateral dependent loans requires obtaining a current independent appraisal of the
collateral and applying a discount factor, which includes selling costs if applicable, to the value. The fair value of real estate is
generally based on appraisals by qualified licensed appraisers. The appraisers typically determine the value of the real estate by
utilizing an income or market valuation approach. If an appraisal is not available, the fair value may be determined by using a
cash flow analysis. Fair value on other collateral such as business assets is typically ascertained by assessing, either singularly or
some combination of, asset appraisals, accounts receivable aging reports, inventory listings and / or customer financial
statements. Both appraised values and values based on borrower’ s financial information are discounted as considered
appropriate based on age and quality of the information and current market conditions. The following table-tables presents—
present the amortized cost basis of collateral dependent loans, which are individually evaluated to determine expected credit
losses as of December 31, 2023-2024 —and December 31, 2023 tn-theusands). December 31, Commeretal-2024Commercial
Real EstateResidential Real EstateOtherFotatAttowanee EstateOther (Includes Equipment, Machinery and Other Assets)
TotalAllowance on Collateral Dependent LoansOwner FoansCemmeretaland-industrict——$—F—5—Owaer—
occupied commercial real estate $ 1,6548—8%—8 1, 6548 — Small business tendingt2-lending1723 — 8 , 8751571
9, 2102294 4 , 226-6-167 Franchise ﬁnance ——3, -3-1—1%468 3 ,394+-468 679 Residential mortgage — +4 , 944083 — +4
, 94083 — Other consumer loans — — $6-86-22 22 — Total loans § 2, 875377 $ 4, 083 $ 12, 061 $ 18,521 $ 4, 846 1
Balance 1ncludes ‘{> 3 —1-2-1—$—3—966—$-9—9624$—2—39-1— 5 million of loans guaranteed by the U. S. government. F- 35 Fhe
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bﬁstnesﬂenehﬂg-}S—PS%%—?GS—Reﬁdenﬁal-EstateRemdentlal fnert:gage?y—Real EstateOther (Includes Equlpment
Machinery and 676-3;-835—Home-equity29-29—O0ther Assets) eonsumert736—TFotal23;22624,134—TLoans-witha

speetﬁe—val-u&ﬁen—&Hew&nee—TotalAllowance on Collateral Dependent LoansOwner Genarnereta—l—&nd—m&ustrtal%é—l%é—l%

Gemfneretai-&nd—m&ust-ﬂa-l—$4-l—l—$—$—67§—$—ewnef occupled commeIcml real estate $ —8% 931 %S—Smg-}e—ten&nf
,93+-654 $ 1, 654 § — Healtheare-finanee620-45-84+143+Small business lendingtH-lending12 , 662
8751, 210 2, 226 6, 311 2, 391 Residential mortgage — 644-1, 911 — 1, 911 — Other eonsumer56--- consumer loans — —
86 86 — Fotal3; 153456, 446131-Total impaired-loans $ 452 . 343-875 § 3 942-$143- 812-121 $ 242F-36-3,966 $ 9, 962 $
2, 391 1 Balance includes $ 1. 4 million of loans guaranteed by the U. S. government. [.oan Modifications to Borrowers
Experiencing Financial Difficulty In January 2023, the Company adopted ASU 2022- 02, “ Financial Instruments- Credit Losses
(Topic 326): Troubled Debt Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures ” (“ ASU 2022- 02 ), which eliminated the accounting
guidance for troubled debt restructurings (“ TDRs ) while enhancing disclosure requirements for certain loan refinancing and
restructurings by creditors when a borrower is experiencing financial difficulty. This guidance was applied on a prospective
basis. Upon adoption of this guidance, the Company no longer establishes a specific reserve for modifications to borrowers
experiencing financial difficulty. Instead, these modifications are included in their respective loan pool and a historical loss rate
is applied to the current loan balance to arrive at the quantitative baseline portion of the ACL. Modifications to borrowers
experiencing financial difficulty may include interest rate reductions, principal or interest forgiveness, ferbearanees-other-
than- insignificant payment delays ., term extensions and other actions intended to minimize loss and to avoid foreclosure or
repossession of collateral . The Company had five loan modifications made to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty
during the twelve months ended December 31, 2024 . The Company did not have any loan modifications made to borrowers
experiencing financial difficulty during the twelve months ended December 31, 2023 T—here» The follow1ng table present
loans that were both experiencing financial difficulty and modified two-po : :
aewTDRs-during the twelve months ended December 31, 2622-2024 Wrt-h—a—pfe-— Twelve Months Ended December 31
2024Payment DelayTotal medifieation-Modification by Loan Class %
irvestment-of Class of Loans Investor commercial real estate $ 3, 731 $ 3, 731 | mithionr. 4 % Franchise financeS, 566 S,
566 1. 0 % Total loans $ 9,297 $ 9, 297 The following table describe the financial effect of the modifications made to
borrowers experiencing financial difficulty. As of December 31, 2024, the Company had no commitments to lend
additional funds to these borrowers included in the table below. Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2024- Payment
DelayLoan TypeFinancial EffectInvestor commercial real estateForbearance average of 9 months. Franchise




financeForbearance average of 7 months. F- 36 The Company closely monitors didnotaHoeate-a-speeifte-allowaneefortoan
tosses (AL forthese—- the performance of loans that are modified to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty to

understand the effectiveness of its modification efforts. The following table presents the performance of such loans that

have been modified in the last twelve months as of December 31, 2622-2024 and-the-modifications-eonsisted-of interest-only
. Current30- 89 Days Past Due90 Days Past Duelnvestor commercial real estate $ 3, 731 § —

$ — Franchise financeS, 566 — — Total loans $ 9,297 § — $ — There svas-were four Franchise Finance loans and one
-S-BA—Investor CRE loan classified as a—new—T—BR—modlﬁcatlons to borrowers experlencmg ﬁnancnal dlfﬁculty during the

feeeréed—mvest-meﬂt—ofs 990 5 y
speetfie ALEE-6f$0-. 3 1n11110r1 -fer—t-hrs—}e&n— Thele were no twe—peﬁfehe—res*deﬂﬁa-l—meﬁg&ge—loans cl"lssmed as ﬂeW-T—DRs

modlﬁcatlons to borrowers experlencmg ﬁnanclal dlfﬁculty durlng the twelve months ended December 31 %92—1—2023 wrt-h—a

. The Compmy had b 0.3 mllllon in other real estate owned (“ OREO ”) as of
December 31, 2024, whlch consisted of one residential mortgage property. The Company had $ 0. 4 million in other real
estate owned (“ OREO ”) as of December 31, 2023, which consisted of two residential mortgage properties. Fhe-Company-did
ﬂet—have—aﬁyGREe—as—ef—Beeeﬂa-beHHGQQ—There wwas-were nine loans totaling $ 2. 1 million and one loan totaling $ 0. 8
mithenand-enetoantotaling-$-0—-million, in the process of foreclosure at December 31, 2023-2024 and December 31, 2022
2023 , respectively. Accrued Interest Receivable Accrued interest receivable on loans totaled $ 23. 8 million and $ 22. 0
million at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, and is excluded from the estimate of credit losses.
The Company made the accounting policy election to not measure an ACL for accrued interest receivable. Accrued
interest deemed uncollectible will be written off through interest income. F- 37 Note 5: Premises and Equipment The
following table summarizes premises and equipment at December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-. December 3 1, 26232022Fand
20242023Land $ 5, 598 § 5, 598 Construction in proeesst-process20 1, 119 H4-Right of use leased asset66-206-asset188 66
Building and imprevementsé6-improvements63 , 069 60 , 699 57-505-Furniture and equipment26-equipment22 , 047 20 , 836
495851 ess: accumulated depreciation (19, 469) ( 14, 855) (46-§ 71 , 453 897)-$ 73, 463 $F2-FHF-3FNote 6: Goodwill As
of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2022-, the carrying amount of goodwill was $ 4. 7 million. There have been no changes in
the carrying amount of goodwill for the three years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ard-2624+. Goodwill is tested
for impairment on an annual basis as of August 31, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. The annual test indicated no impairment existed as of August 31, 2023-2024
andne-. No events or changes in circumstances have occurred since the August 31, 2023-2024 annual impairment test that
would suggest it was more likely than not goodwill impairment existed. Note 7: Servicing Asset Activity for the servicing asset
and the related changes in fair value for the twelve months ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ard-2624-are shown in
the table below. Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2024December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022Deeember-315
2024 Beginning-2022Beginning balance $ 10,567 $ 6, 255 § 4, 702 $3;:-569-Additions: Ongmdted and purchased servteings
servicing8 ,359 5, 775 3, 192 2;202-Subtractions: Paydowns (3, 005) (1, 842) (1, 075 3H826-) Changes in fair value due to
changes in valuation inputs or assumptions used in the valuation model 468 379 (564 3(249-) Loan servicing asset revaluation (
2,537) (1, 463) (1, 639 ¥069-) Ending balance $ 16,389 $ 10, 567 $ 6, 255 $4;762-L oans serviced for others are not
included in the consolidated balance sheets. The unpaid principal balances of these loans serviced for others as of December 31,
2024, 2023 sand 2022 and2024-arc shown in the table below. December 31, 2024December 31, 2023 December 31,
2022Peeember31,2024Hean-2022Loan portfolios serviced for: SBA guaranteed loans $ 862, 089 $ 531, 927 § 318, 194 $236;
SH4-Total $ 862,089 $ 531,927 § 318, 194 $230;:544-1.0an servicing revenue totaled $ 6. 2 million, $ 3. 8 million -and $ 2. 6
mitenand-$+9-million during the twelve months ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ard2024- respectively. Loan
servicing asset revaluation, which represents paydowns and the F- 38 change in fair value of the servicing asset, resulted ina $ +
2 . 5million, $ 1. 5 million and $ 1. 6 mithenand-$+—+million downward valuation for twelve months ended December 31,
2024, 2023 rand 2022 and2024-, respectively. The fair value of servicing rights is highly sensitive to changes in underlying
assumptions. Though fluctuations in prepayment speeds and changes in secondary market premiums generally have the most
substantial impact on the fair value of servicing rights, other influencing factors include changing economic conditions, changes
to the discount rate assumption and the weighted average life of the servicing portfolio. Measurement of fair value is limited to
the conditions existing and the assumptions used as of a particular point in time; however, those assumptions may change over
time. Refer to Note 16- Fair Value of Financial Instruments for further details. F-38-Note 8: Deposits The following table
presents the composition of the Company’ s deposit base as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-. December 31,
20232622Neninterest—--- 20242023 Noninterest - bearing depos1ts $ 136 451 $ 123, 464 Interest bearmg demand
deposits1896 deposit-aceounts-$123- 661 402 4¢ e ; , 976 33564
Savings aeeounts2t— accounts19 823 21,364 44—8—1-9—Money market accountsl 183,789 1, 248 3 19 F 1ntech brokered
deposits | — 74 RE—as , 401 43;-667Certificates of depesitst
deposits2 , 133,455 1, 605, 156 -844—499—Blol<eIed depesttsé9—1—dep051t5563 027 591 293 578;:-864-Total deposits § 4, 933,
206 $ 4, 066,973 -$—3—44-1—245—T1me deposits greater than $ 250 $ 776, 788 $ 703, 835 $484,700-The following table presents
time deposit maturities by year as of December 31, 2023-2024 . Certificates of DepositsBrokered Certificates of Depesits2824
Deposits2025 $ 1,327,799 $ 152, 897 2026178, 941 57, 509 2027197, 074 34, 823 2028142, 667 — 2029286, 974 —
Thereafter — — $ 2, 133, 455 $ 245, 229 F- 393— 39 $-87,-630-2062583;378-92,499-202663;-319-35;430-202794,-844-46,-600
2028H8;222-6;-500-Thereafter—6;400-51-605156-$267-859-Note 9: FHLB Advances The Company had outstanding




FHLB advances of $ 295. 0 million and $ 614. 9 million as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively . As of
December 31, 2623-2024 , the stated interest rates on the Company’ s outstanding FHLB advances ranged from 1. 06 % to 5-4 .
53-16 %, with a weighted average interest rate of 3. 84-39 %. All advances are collateralized by residential mortgage loans and
commercial real estate loans pledged and held by the Company and investment securities pledged by the Company and held in
safekeeping with the FHLB. Residential mortgage loans pledged were approximately $ 336-334 . 3 million and $ 258-330 . 6-3
million as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-20822-, respectively, and commercial real estate loans pledged were
approximately $ 930. 7 million and $ 932. 4 million ard-$8953-milltenas of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-,
respectively. The fair value of investment securities pledged to the FHLB was approximately § 795. 0 million and $ 662. 1
million and-$-448—-4-millien-as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022- respectively. Based on this collateral and the
Company’ s holding of FHLB stock, the Company is eligible to borrow up to an additional $ 663-1 . 2-1 millien-billion at year-
end 2023-2024 . As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company had $ 425210 . 0 million of putable advance structures with
the FHLB in which the FHLB holds a one- time option to put certain advances on a stated exercise date prior to maturity.
Among the Company’ s putable advance structures, $ 60. 0 million have passed their one- time exercise date, with the
FHEB-next exercise date occurring in 2027 . £-39-The Company’ s FHLB advances are scheduled to mature according to the
following schedule: Ameunt2624-Amount2025 $ 50 255;-663-262596-, 000 202610, 000 2627466-- 202750 , 000 202835, 000
2029 — Thereaftert24-Thereafter150 , 93+000 $ 6+4-295 , 934-000 Note 10: Subordinated Debt In June 2019, the Company
issued $ 37. 0 million aggregate pr1n01pal amount of 6. 0 % leed to- Floating Rate Subordinated Notes due 2029 (the 2029
Notes ) in a public offering. The 2029 Notes inittatly-bear afixed-interest at rate-of-6—0-%-per-year-to, butexeluding,June-30;
2024-and-thereafter-a floating rate equal to t-he—t-hen—eﬁﬁeﬁt—benemﬁaﬂﬁ&te—émma}l-yhthree month Term SOFR EIBORratey
plus 4. 4376 %. All interest on the 2029 Notes is payable quarterly. The 2029 Notes are scheduled to mature on June 30, 2029.
The 2029 Notes are unsecured subordinated obligations of the Company and may be repaid at any time , without penalty ;-on

5 . The 2029 Notes are intended to qualify as Tier 2 capital under regulatory
guidelines. In October 2020, the Company entered into a term loan in the principal amount of $ 10. 0 million, evidenced by a
term note due 2030 (the “ 2030 Note ). The 2030 Note initially bears a fixed interest rate of 6. 0 % per year to, but excluding,
November 1, 2025 and thereafter at a floating rate equal to the then- current benchmark rate (initially three- month Term SOFR
plus 5. 795 %). The 2030 Note is scheduled to mature on November 1, 2030. The 2030 Note is an unsecured subordinated
obligation of the Company and may be repaid, without penalty, on any interest payment date on or after November 1, 2025. The
2030 Note is intended to qualify as Tier 2 capital under regulatory guidelines. The Company used the net proceeds from the
issuance of the 2030 Note to redeem a subordinated term note that had been entered into in October 2015. F- 40 In August 2021,
the Company issued $ 60. 0 million aggregate principal amount of 3. 75 % Fixed- to- Floating Rate Subordinated Notes due
2031 (the “ 2031 Notes ) in a private placement. The 2031 Notes initially bear a fixed interest rate of 3. 75 % per year to, but
excluding, September 1, 2026, and thereafter at a floating rate equal to the then- current benchmark rate (initially three- month
Term SOFR plus 3. 11 %). The 2031 Notes are scheduled to mature on September 1, 2031. The 2031 Notes are unsecured
subordinated obligations of the Company and may be repaid, without penalty, on any interest payment date on or after
September 1, 2026. The 2031 Notes are intended to qualify as Tier 2 capital under regulatory guidelines. The Company used a
portion of the net proceeds from the issuance of the 2031 Notes to redeem subordinated notes issued by the Company in 2016.
Pursuant to the terms of a Registration Rights Agreement between the Company and the initial purchasers of the 2031 Notes, the
Company offered to exchange the 2031 Notes for subordinated notes that are registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and have substantially the same terms as the 2031 Notes. On December 30, 2021, we completed an exchange of § 59.
3 million principal amount of the unregistered 2031 Notes for registered 2031 Notes in satisfaction of our obligations under the
registration rights agreement. Holders of § 0. 7 million of unregistered 2031 Notes did not participate in the exchange. ¥£-46-The
following table presents the principal balance and unamortized discount and debt issuance costs for the 2029 Notes, the 2030
Note and the 2031 Notes as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-. December 31, 2623Beeember-2024December 3 1,
%GQ%Pﬂnetpa-l-Uﬂ&meftﬂed-Z023Pr1nc1palUnam0rtlzed Discount and Debt Issuance CostsPrlnc1pa1Unam0rtlzed Dlscount and
Debt Issuance Costs2029 Notes $ 37, 000 $ (703) $ 37, 000 $ ( 862 ¥$37-600-$1-626-) 2030 Notel0, 000 ( 137) 10, 000 (
160 3146-666-184-) 2031 Notes60, 000 (1, 010) 60, 000 (1, 140) 66-Total $ 107 , 000 $ (1,264-850 ) Fetal-$ 107, 000 $ (2, 162
3$107-000-$(2,468-) Note 11: Benefit Plans 401 (k) Plan The Company has a 401 (k) plan established for substantially all
full- time and part- time employees, as defined in the plan. Employee contributions are limited to the maximum established by
the Internal Revenue Service on an annual basis. The Company has elected to match contributions equal to 100 % up to the first
1 % of employee deferrals and ther-50 % en-for employee deferrals ef2-above 1 % up to a maximum of 6 % equating to a
maximum match of 3. 5 % of an individual’ s tetal-cligible salary-earnings , as defined in the plan. The company match vests
immediately. Discretionary employer- matching contributions begin vesting immediately at a rate of 50 % per year of
employment and are fully vested after the completion of two years of employment. Contributions totaled approximately § 1. 1
million, $ 0. 9 million #-and $ 0. 9 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and2024-
respectively. Employment Agreements The Company is party to certain employment agreements with each of its Chief
Executive Officer, President and Chief Operating Officer and Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. The
employment agreements each provide for annual base salaries and annual bonuses, if any, as determined from time to time by
the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors. The annual bonuses are to be determined with reference to the
achievement of annual performance objectives established by the Compensation Committee. The agreements also provide that
each of the Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Operating Officer and Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, may be awarded additional compensation, benefits, or consideration as the Compensation Committee may determine.
The agreements also provide for the continuation of salary and certain other benefits for a specified period of time upon
termination of employment under certain circumstances, including resignation for “ good reason, ” termination by the Company



without ““ cause ” at any time or any termination of employment within twelve months following a “ change in control, ” along
with other specific conditions. F- 41 The First Internet Bancorp 2022 Equity Incentive Plan (the *“ 2022 Plan ) was approved by
our Board of Directors and ratified by our shareholders on May 16, 2022. The plan permits awards of incentive and non-
statutory stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, stock unit awards, performance awards and other
stock- based awards. All employees, consultants and advisors of the Company or any subsidiary, as well as all non- employee
directors of the Company, are eligible to receive awards under the 2022 Plan. The 2022 Plan initially authorized the issuance of
400, 000 new shares of the Company’ s common stock plus all shares of common stock that remained available for future grants
under the First Internet Bancorp 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2013 Plan ). Award Activity Under 2022 Plan The Company
recorded $ 1. 5 million, $ 0. 8 million , and $ 0. 1 million of share- based compensation expense for the years ended December
31,2024, 2023 ;and 2022, respectively, related to stock- based awards under the 2022 Plan. ¥=4+The following table
summarizes the stock- based award activity under the 2022 Plan for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 . Restricted Stock
UnitsWeighted- Average Grant Date Fair Value Per ShareRestricted Stock AwardsWeighted- Average Grant Date Fair Value
Per ShareDeferred Stock UnitsWeighted- Average Grant Date Fair Value Per UnitUnvested at January 1, 202472 2023—$—3
, 558354 § 36-84—$—Granted47-576-24. 61 30, 030 $ 11. 18 — $ — Granted75, 222 24. 13 12, 040 31. 46 — —
Forfeited —(2, 534) 24.37 — — — — Vested ——( 3-14 , 558294 ) 36-24 . 84-52 (30, 030) 11. 18 — — Unvested at
December 31, 2023147-2024130 , 576-748 $ 24. 6+36-3512 , 636-040 $ +-31 . 4846 — $ — At December 31, 2623-2024 , the
total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock- based awards was $ 42 . 3-0 million with a weighted- average
expense recognition period of 1. 9-6 years. The 2013 Plan authorized the issuance of 750, 000 shares of the Company’ s
common stock in the form of stock- based awards to employees, directors and other eligible persons. Although outstanding
stock- based awards under the 2013 Plan remain in place according to their terms, our authority to grant new awards under the
2013 Plan terminated upon shareholder approval of the 2022 Plan. Award Activity Under 2013 Plan The Company recorded $ 0.
3 million, $ 0. 4 million ;-and $ 2. 0 mithemand-$2—~4-million of share- based compensation expense for the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 -and 2022 and-2624, respectively, related to stock- based awards under the 2013 Plan. The following
table summarizes the stock- based award activity under the 2013 Plan for the year ended December 31, 2823-2024 : Restricted
Stock UnitsWeighted- Average Grant Date Fair Value Per ShareRestricted Stock AwardsWeighted- Average Grant Date Fair
Value Per ShareDeferred Stock UnitsWeighted- Average Grant Date Fair Value Per UnitUnvested at January 1, 2623146+
202453 , 734985 $ 3539 . 93-86 — § — — $ —Granted Forfeited (27822, 899 ) 2730 . 5658 — — — —
Vested (478 , 47089 ) 3+-46 . 5664 — — — — Unvested at December 31, 202353-202422 , 985997 $ 3946 . 8671 — —5
— —$ — F-42 As of December 31, 2023-2024 , the total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested awards was less
than § 0. 6-1 million with a weighted- average expense recognition period of +0 . 1 years. Directors Deferred Stock Plan Until
January 1, 2014, the Company had a stock compensation plan for non- employee members of the Board of Directors (*
Directors Deferred Stock Plan ””). The Company reserved 180, 000 shares of common stock that could have been issued pursuant
to the Directors Deferred Stock Plan. The plan provided directors the option to elect to receive up to 100 % of their annual
retainer in either common stock or deferred stock rights. Deferred stock rights were to be settled in common stock following the
end of the deferral period payable on the basis of one share of common stock for each deferred stock right. F=42-The following
table summarizes the status of deferred stock rights related to the Directors Deferred Stock Plan for the year ended December
31,2023-2024 . Deferred RightsOutstanding, beginning of year46-year28 , 414-538 Granted402--- Granted283 Released(12;
27#8)Outstanding, end of year28, 538-821 All deferred stock rights granted during 2623-2024 were additional rights issued in
lieu of cash dividends payable on outstanding deferred stock rights. Note 12: Income Taxes The provision for income taxes
consists of the following: December 31, 20232022262 HCurrent---- 202420232022Current $ 3, 623 $ 876 $ (73) $-6;0624
Deferred (1,357) (4, 353) 4, 632 Total $ 2, 266 434-Fetal-$ (3,477) $ 4, 559 $8;458-Income tax provision is reconciled to the
statutory 21 % rate applied to pre- tax income. December 31, 20232022202+ Statatory—--- 202420232022Statutory rate times
pre- tax income $ 5,784 $ 1, 037 § 8, 421 $4H5-886-Subtract) add the tax effect of: Income from tax- exempt securities and
loans (3, 500) (3, 951) (4, 190 H424F) State income tax, net of federal tax effeeteffectd7 (30) 592 865-Bank- owned life
insurance ( 262) (215) (201 3#99-) Tax credits ( 110) ( 168) (143) (475)-Other differenees-differences307 (150) 80 364-Total
income taxes $ 2,266 $ (3, 477) $ 4, 559 $8;458-F- 43 The net deferred tax asset at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022
consists of the following: December 3 1, 26232022BDeferred—--- 20242023Deferred tax assets (liabilities) Allowance for tean
credits losses $ 10, 824 $ 9, 847 $8;-569-Net unrealized losses on available- for- sale securities and hedged t#emsS-items9 , 753
8, 776 10847 Fair value adjustments ( 14, 002) ( 12, 101) 42;-69H-Depreciation (4, 168) (4, 306 H2Z-6+2-) Deferred
compensation and accrued payrolll, 486 1, 228 45-574-L.oan origination costs (1, 533) (1, 379 H4-8+6-) Prepaid assets ( 916) (
806 H8+3-) Net operating tesst3-10ss9, 962 13 |, 309 8;-928-Tax eredits7H—- creditsl1 —, 956 711 Other335--- Other 3+2
(309) 335 Total deferred tax assets, net $ 13,053 $ 15, 614 $42,-892-As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-the
Company had federal net operating loss (“ NOL ) Carryforwards of approximately $ 54. 0 million and $ 57. 2 million and-$-46-
Smillien, respectively, and mo state NOL carryforwards effor December 31, 2024 and $ 8. 5 million for December 31 and-$
S—-mithien, respeetively2023 . For federal income tax purposes, the NOL has no expiration period; however, for state income
tax purposes, the NOL may have varying expiration periods. The Company expects to generate sufficient taxable income in the
future to utilize the loss generated . As of December 31, 2024 the Company had general business credits of $ 0. 3 million
that will begin expiring in 2044 and qualified zone academy bonds credits of $ 0. 4 million that will begin expiring in
2025. The Company has state tax credits of $ 0. 3 million that will begin expiring in 2029 . Note 13: Related Party
Transactions In the normal course of business, the Company may enter into transactions with various related parties. In
management’ s opinion, such loans, other extensions of credit, and deposits were made in the ordinary course of business and
were made on substantially the same terms (including interest rates and collateral) as those prevailing at the time for
comparable transactions with other persons. Further, in management’ s opinion, these loans did not involve more than the




normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features. Related party loans and extensions of credit at December 31,
2024 and 2023 and2022-totaled $ 47. 7 million and $ 45 —9-miltenand-$2+. 9 million, respectively. The following table
presents the change in related party loans as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard2622-. Twelve Months EndedDecember 31,
2623Deeember-2024December 3 1, %922—Ba¥aﬁee—2023Balance at the beginning of period $ 45,926 $ 21, 860 $H5364-New
EFeﬂﬁ—I:eaﬁﬁ9—B9—24—8+9%ddt&eﬂs4—9§6—Repaymeﬁt—ef—term loans — 19, 139 Additions1, 753 4, 956 Repayment of
term loans (13) (12 345324-) Changes in balances of revolving lines of eredit-credit5 (17) 8-Balance at end of period $ 47,
671 $ 45, 926 $24:-866-Deposits from related parties held by the Company at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-totaled $
31. 9 million and $ 28. 3 milllenand-$33-Fmillion, respectively. F- 44 Note 14: Regulatory Capital Requirements The
Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by state and federal banking
agencies. Capital adequacy guidelines and, additionally for banks, prompt corrective action regulations, involve quantitative
measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off- balance sheet items calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Capital
amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by regulators about components, risk weighting and other
factors. The Basel I1I Capital Rules became effective for the Company and the Bank on January 1, 2015, subject to a phase- in
period for certain provisions. Quantitative measures established by the Basel I1I Capital Rules to ensure capital adequacy require
the maintenance of minimum amounts and ratios of Common Equity Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Total capital, as defined
in the regulations, to risk- weighted assets, and of Tier 1 capital to adjusted quarterly average assets (“ Leverage Ratio ”’). The
Basel III Capital Rules were fully phased in on January 1, 2019 and require the Company and the Bank to maintain: 1) a
minimum ratio of Common Equity Tier 1 capital to risk- weighted assets of 4. 5 %, plus a 2. 5 % “ capital conservation buffer ”
(resulting in a minimum ratio of Common Equity Tier 1 capital to risk- weighted assets of 7. 0 %); 2) a minimum ratio of Tier 1
capital to risk- weighted assets of 6. 0 %, plus the capital conservation buffer (resulting in a minimum Tier 1 capital ratio of 8. 5
%); 3) a minimum ratio of Total capital to risk- weighted assets of 8. 0 %, plus the capital conservation buffer (resulting in a
minimum Total capital ratio of 10. 5 %); and 4) a minimum Leverage Ratio of 4. 0 %. The capital conservation buffer is
designed to absorb losses during periods of economic stress. Failure to maintain the minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital
ratio plus the capital conservation buffer will result in potential restrictions on a banking institution’ s ability to pay dividends,
repurchase stock and / or pay discretionary compensation to its employees. F- 45 The following tables present actual and
required capital ratios as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-for the Company and the Bank under the Basel III Capital
Rules. The minimum required capital amounts presented include the minimum required capital levels as of December 31, 2024
and 2023 and-2022-based on the Basel III Capital Rules. Capital levels required to be considered well capitalized are based upon
prompt corrective action regulations, as amended to reflect the changes under the Basel 111 Capital Rules. As permitted by the
federal banking regulatory agencies, the Company has elected the option to delay the impact of the day one adoption of ASC
326. The transition adjustments of $ 4. 5 million are w#H-be-phased into the regulatory capital calculations over a three- year
period, with 25 % of the adjustment recognized in 2023, 50 % of the adjustment recognized in 2024, 75 % of the adjustment
recognized in 2025 and 100 % of the adjustment recognized in 2026. ActualMinimum Capital Required- Basel III Minimum
Required to be Considered Well CapitalizedCapital AmountRatioCapital AmountRatioCapital AmountRatioAs of December 31,
2024: Common equity tier 1 capital to risk- weighted assetsConsolidated $ 400, 100 9. 30 % $ 301, 052 7. 00 % N / AN /
ABank475, 793 11. 11 % 299, 774 7. 00 % $ 278, 362 6. 50 % Tier 1 capital to risk- weighted assetsConsolidated 400, 100
9.30 % 365, 563 8.50 % N / AN/ ABank47S, 793 11. 11 % 364, 012 8. 50 % 342, 599 8. 00 % Total capital to risk-
weighted assetsConsolidated 542, 808 12. 62 % 451, 578 10. 50 % N / AN / ABank520, 610 12. 16 % 449, 662 10. 50 %
428, 249 10. 00 % Leverage ratioConsolidated 400, 100 6. 90 % 232, 011 4. 00 % N / AN / ABank475, 793 8. 23 % 231,
331 4.00 % 289, 164 5. 00 % ActualMinimum Capital Required- Basel III Minimum Required to be Considered Well
CapitalizedCapital AmountRatioCapital AmountRatioCapital AmountRatioAs of December 31, 2023: Common equity
tier 1 capital to risk- weighted assetsConsolidated $ 381, 001 9. 60 % $ 277,914 7. 00 % N / AN / ABank464, 390 11. 73 %
277,063 7.00 % $ 257, 273 6. 50 % Tier 1 capital to risk- weighted assetsConsolidated 381, 001 9. 60 % 337, 467 8. 50 % N /
AN / ABank464, 390 11. 73 % 336, 434 8. 50 % 316, 644 8. 00 % Total capital to risk- weighted assetsConsolidated 525, 283
13.23 % 416, 870 10. 50 % N / AN / ABank503, 834 12. 73 % 415, 595 10. 50 % 395, 804 10. 00 % Leverage
ratloComohdated 381 001 7. 33 % 207 929 4 OO % N /AN /ABank464 390 8.95 % 207, 479 4.00 % 259 349 5. OO %

A—Ba-ﬂk466%q—}9—844%—1—7—2—993-4—99—%%—1—}6§—99%F 46 Note 15 Commltments and Cledlt R1%k In the normal course
of business, the Company makes various commitments to extend credit which are not reflected in the accompanying

consolidated financial statements. At December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2822-, the Company had outstanding loan commitments
totahng applox1mate1y $ 667 7 mllllon and $ 755.4 mllhon ﬁrﬂd—$—48§—4—ﬂ‘ﬁ-1-heﬁ- reqpeetlvely—eap-rta-l-eeﬂ&mrt-meﬂts—eapﬁa-l

Note 16: Falr Value of F inancial ln%truments ASC Tople 820, F air Value Mea%urementq defines fair Value as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. ASU Topic 820 also specifies a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of



inputs that may be used to measure fair value: Following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for
assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, as well as
the general classification of such assets pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. Available- for- Sale Securities Where quoted market
prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. If quoted market
prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar
characteristics or discounted cash flows. The Company did not own any securities classified within Level 1 of the hierarchy as of
December 31, 2823-2024 or December 31, 2822-2023 . Level 2 securities include U. S. Government- sponsored agencies,
municipal securities, mortgage and asset- backed securities and corporate securities. Matrix pricing is a mathematical technique
widely used in the banking industry to value investment securities. In certain cases where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not
available, securities are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy. Fair values are calculated using discounted cash flows.
Discounted cash flows are calculated based off of the anticipated future cash flows updated to incorporate loss severities. Rating
agency and industry research reports as well as default and deferral activity are reviewed and incorporated into the calculation.
The Company d1d not own any securities classified W1th1n Level 3 of the hlerarchy as of Decelnber 31, 2024 or December 31

ed-priees stmiar-ass es-ofth an-(Fevel2)- - 47Fa1rvalue1sbased0naloan by—
loan basw taking into Con51derat10n the origination to maturity dates of the loans the current age of the loans and the remaining
term to maturity. The valuation methodology utilized for the servicing asset begins with generating estimated future cash flows
for each servicing asset based on their unique characteristics and market- based assumptions for prepayment speeds and costs to
service. The present value of the future cash flows is then calculated utilizing market- based discount rate assumptions (Level
3). Interest Rate Swap-Swaps Agreements-1he fair values of interest rate swap agreements are estimated using current market
interest rates as of the balance sheet date and calculated using discounted cash flows that are observable or that can be
corroborated by observable market data (Level 2). Interest Rate Baelk—to-—Baek-Swap Agreements Back- to- Back The
Company offers interest rate swaps to certain loan customers to allow them to hedge the risk of rising interest rates on their
variable rate loans. The Company originates a variable rate loan and enters into a variable- to- fixed interest rate contract with
the customer. The Company also enters into an offsetting interest rate swap with a correspondent bank. These back- to- back
swap agreements are intended to offset each other and allow the Company to originate a variable rate loan, while providing a
contract for fixed interest payments for the customer. The net cash flow for the Company is equal to the interest income
received from a variable rate loan originated with the customer. The fair value of these derivatives is based on a discounted cash
flow approach. The fair value assets and hablhtles of Centrally cleared interest rate swaps are net of Varlatlon rnargln settled to-
market(LeveIZ) ; ntraets The-fair-valaes eontracts—on e—an

are determined using the proj ected sale price of individual loans based on changes in market interest rates, projected pull-
through rates (the probability that an IRLC will ultimately result in an originated loan), the reduction in the value of the
applicant’ s option due to the passage of time, and the remaining origination costs to be incurred based on management’ s
estimate of market costs (Level 3). F- 48 The following tables present the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within the
fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622- December 31,
2022Fair-2024Fair Value Measurements UsingFairValueQuoted Pricesin ActiveMarkets forldenticalAssets (Level 1)
SignificantOtherObservablelnputs (Level 2) SignificantUnobservablelnputs (Level 3) U.S.Government- sponsored agencies $
33-82,809-816 5 — $33-82 ,869-816 $ —— Municipal seeuritiesé7securities63 , 276-654 — 6763 , 276654 — Agency
mortgage- backed securities- fesﬂenﬁal%lé—res1dent1alZ69 092-641 — 245269 , 692-641 — Agency mortgage- backed
securities- eommteretaHS-commercial63 , 846-331 — +5-63 , 846-331 — Private label mortgage- backed securities-
residenttal-O-residentialds | 455-821 — +6-45 , 455-821 — Asset- backed seeurities4-securities23 , 966-821 — 4-23 , 966-821
— Corporate seeurities42-securities38 , 952-271 — 4238 , 952-271 — Total available- for- sale securities $ 399-587 , 384-355
§ — $396-587 , 384-355 § — Servicing asseté-assetl6 , 255-389 — — 6-16 , 255-389 Interest rate swaps— swap agreements-
assets8— assets ;645-(back- to- back) 200 — 200 8;645-  Loans-held-Interest rate swap agreements - for-liabilities (back -
sale-to- back) ( 200 maﬂdatefy—pﬂemg—agfeefnen’fs—) 9H0-— 9;H6-(200) — Ferward-eontraets9797——RECsH33—
December 31, 2023Fair Value Measurements UsingFairValueQuoted Pricesin ActiveMarkets forldentical Assets (Level 1)
SigniﬁcantOtherObservablelnputs (Level 2) SignificantUnobservablelnputs (Level 3) U. S. Government- sponsored agencies $
95,177 $ — $ 95, 177 $ — Municipal securities68, 446 — 68, 446 — Agency mortgage- backed securities- residential206, 649
— 206, 649 — Agency mortgage- backed securities- commercial38, 885 — 38, 885 — Private label mortgage- backed
securities- residential20, 779 — 20, 779 — Asset- backed securities8, 081 — 8, 081 — Corporate securities36, 838 — 36, 838
— Total available- for- sale securities $ 474, 855 § — $ 474, 855 $ — Servicing assetl0, 567 — — 10, 567 Interest rate swaps
assets5, 139 — 5, 139 — Interest rate swap agreements- assets (back- to- back) 677 — 677 — Interest rate swap agreements-
liabilities (back- to- back) (677) — (677) — December 31, 2022Fair Value Measurements UsingFairValueQuoted...... 97 — —
IRLCs133 — — 133 F- 49 The following table reconciles the beginning and ending balances of recurring fair value
measurements recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets using significant unobservable (Level 3) inputs.
Servicing AssetInterest Rate Lock ComnntlnentsBalance as of J anuary 1 %92—1—$—3%69—$—3—36—1—’Peta-1—fea-h-zed—ga-tﬂs
Additions2;,262-2022 $ 4 aydew : 6 : , 7028 718
Total realized gains Additions3, 192 — Paydowns (1 135) — Change in fa1r value (504) (585) Balance December 31, 20226,
255 133 Total realized gains Additions5, 775 — Paydowns (1, 842) — Change in fair value379 (133) Balance, December 31,
2023-202310 $18-, 567 — Total realized gains Additions8, 359 — Paydowns (3, 005) — Change in fair value468 —
Balance, December 31, 2024 $ 16, 389 $ — The following describes the valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets




measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, as well as the general classification of such assets pursuant to the valuation
hierarchy. Individually Analyzed Collateral Dependent Loans [oans for which it is probable that the Company will not
collect all principal and interest due according to contractual terms are measured for impairment. The amount of impairment
may be determined based on the fair value of the underlying collateral, less costs to sell, the estimated present value of future
cash flows or the loan’ s observable market price. If the individually evaluated loan is identified as collateral dependent, the fair
value of the underlying collateral, less costs to sell, is used to measure impairment. This method requires obtaining a current
independent appraisal of the collateral and applying a discount factor to the value. If the individually evaluated loan is not
collateral dependent, the Company utilizes a discounted cash flow analysis to measure impairment. Individually evaluated loans
with a specific valuation allowance based on the value of the underlying collateral or a discounted cash flow analysis are
classified as Level 3 assets. F- 50 The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities recognized in
the accompanying eendensed-consolidated balance sheets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis and the level within
the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurement falls at December 31, 2023-2024 and December 31, 2622-2023 .
December 31, 2024Fair Value Measurements UsingFairValueQuoted Pricesin ActiveMarkets forIdenticalAssets (Level 1)
SignificantOtherObservableInputs (Level 2) SignificantUnobservableInputs (Level 3) Collateral dependent loans $ 4, 296
$ —8$—84,296 December 31, 2023Fair Value Measurements UsingFairValueQuoted Pricesin ActiveMarkets

forldentical Assets (Level 1) SignificantOtherObservablelnputs (Level 2) SignificantUnobservablelnputs (Level 3) Collateral
dependent }eaﬁséa loans $ 21, 799 $ — $ — $ 2,799 F-é@—BeeembeH—l—E@Q%F&rH‘alﬁeMeaaﬁemeﬂts

preqent quantitative information about unob@ervable mputq u%ed in recurrlng and nonrecurring Level 3 falr value measurementq
tdoHars-irtheusands)-Fair Value atDecember 31, 2024 ValuationTechniqueSignificant
UnobservableInputsRangeWeighted- Average RangeCollateral dependent loans $ 4, 296 Fair value of collateralDiscount
for type of property and current market conditionsQ %- 75 % 24. 2 % Servicing asset16, 389 Discounted cash
flowPrepayment speedsDiscount rate0 %- 25 % 14 % 11. 7 % 14 % Fair Value atDecember 31,
2023ValuationTechniqueSigniﬁcant UnobservableInputsRangeWeighted- Average RangeCollateral dependent loans $ 2, 799
Fair value of collateralDiscount for type of property and current market conditionsO %- 90 % 28 % Servicing asset10, 567

qucounted cash flowPrepayment %peed%qucount rateQ % 25 % 15 % 11 3 % 15 %-fde-l-}afs—m—t-heﬂsaﬂdsi—l:aﬂ#a-l-ue

%—1-4%—1—4—6—%—1-4—% The followmg method% were uqed to estimate the fair Value of all other ﬁnan01a1 instruments recognlzed
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at amounts other than fair value: For these instruments, the carrying amount is
a reasonable estimate of fair value. F- 51 Securities Held- to- Maturity Level 2 securities include agency mortgage- backed
securities- residential, municipal securities and corporate securities. Matrix pricing is a mathematical technique widely used in
the banking industry to value investment securities. F=54+-own any securities classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy as of
December 31, 2023-2024 or December 31, 2622-2023 . For loans that are sold in an active secondary market, the fair value
of these loans is estimated based on secondary market price indications for loans with similar interest rate and maturity
characteristics. The fair value of other loans held- for- sale approximates carrying value. Net Loans The fair value of
loans is estimated on an exit price basis incorporating discounts for credit, liquidity and marketability factors. AeernedInterest
Reeetvable-The fair value of these financial instruments approximates carrying value. Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis
Stock The fair value of this financial instrument approximates carrying value. The fair value of noninterest- bearing and interest-
bearing demand deposits, savings accounts and money market accounts approximates carrying value. The fair value of fixed
maturity certificates of deposit and brokered deposits are estimated using rates currently offered for deposits of similar
remaining maturities. The fair value of fixed rate advances is estimated using rates currently offered for similar remaining
maturities. The carrying value of variable rate advances approximates fair value. The fair value of the Company’ s publicly
traded subordinated debt is obtained from quoted market prices. The fair value of the Company’ s remaining subordinated debt
is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on current borrowing rates for similar types of debt instruments. Accrued
Interest Payable F- 52 The fair value of commitments to extend credit are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar
agreements with similar maturities and interest rates. The Company determined that the fair value of commitments was zero
based on the contractual value of outstanding commitments at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-. F-52-The following
tables provide the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company' s financial instruments at December 31, 2024
and 2023 and-2022- —$—Seeuritiesheld—t0- maturity249-maturity189 . 796228-168 168 , 851483 — 228-168 , 851-483
— Loans held- for- sale54-- sale (best efforts pricing agreements) 12 , 695-58-401 12 , 5+6-401 — 58-12 , 5+6-401 — Net
toans4-loans3 , 125-467 , §77-664 3, 935225 , 669-845 — — 3, 935-225 , 869-845 Accrued interest reeetvable28-receivable21 .

Depeositsd-Deposits3 , 933-441 , 2064-245 3 , 943-415 , 964+2-390 1 , 236974 . 724-344 — 2-1 , 767441 , 237046 Advances
from Federal Home Loan Banl295-Bank614 , 666-291+-928 596 , 268-455 — 294+-596 , 268-45 i
debt104 , 532 +5604+83-December 31, 2023 Fair Value Measurements UsingCarryingAmountFair ValueQuoted PricesIn
AetiveMarket-ActiveMarkets forldentical Assets / Liabilities (Level 1) SignificantOtherObservablelnputs (Level 2)
SignificantUnobservablelnputs (Level 3) Cash and cash equivalents $ 405, 898 $ 405, 898 $ 405, 898 $ — $ — Securities held-
to- maturity227, 153 207, 572 — 207, 572 — Loans held- for- qale fbest—ef-feﬁs—pﬂerﬂg—agfeemenfs)—ﬂ 052 22,052 —22,052
— Net loans3, 801, 446 3, 611, 90
Loan Bank oflndianapolis stock28, 350 28, 350 — 28,350 — Deposits4, 066, 973 4, 059, 447 1, 796, 123 — 2,263, 324




Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank614, 934 605, 366 — 605, 366 — Subordinated debt104, 838 102, 632 32, 560 70,
072 — Accmed interest payable3 848 3, 848 3, 848 ——F Deeeﬁ&beﬁ&—Z@QQ—Fatr—\lahie—MeaSt&eﬂ&enfs

-Seeu%r&es—held» to matur1ty189 168 168 ...... , 455 — Subordmated debt104 532 53-1-92—669—3—2%69—79—1—99—&%%&
-}nfefes{—pa-y‘ab-}eQ—%%B%B—Note 17: Mortgage Banking Activities The Bank” s residential real estate lending
business originated mortgage loans for customers and typically sold a majority of the originated loans into the secondary
market. For most of the mortgages sold in the secondary market, the Bank hedged its mortgage banking pipeline by entering
into forward contracts for the future delivery of mortgage loans to third party investors and entering into IRLCs with potential
borrowers to fund specific mortgage loans that would be sold into the secondary market. To facilitate the hedging of the loans,
the Bank elected the fair value option for loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market under mandatory
pricing agreements . Changes in the fair value of loans held- for- sale, IRLCs and forward contracts are recorded in the
mortgage banking activities line item within noninterest income. Refer to Note 18 for further information on derivative financial
instruments. FDuring the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company had no mortgage loans held - 53-for- sale or sold
into the secondary market. During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 ;and2624, the Company originated
mortgage loans held- for- sale of $ 36. 3 million, and $ 388. 0 mllhon and-$F243-millen-respectively, and received $ 46. 5
million, and $ 411. 5 mithen;and-$-FH4—9-million from the sale of mortgage loans, respectively, into the secondary market.
During the first quarter 2023, the Company made the decision to exit the residential mortgage business. The following table
provides the components of income from mortgage banking activities for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ;
and2024+. Year Ended December 31, 202320222024Gain—--- 202420232022Gain on loans sold $ —$ 471 $ 6, 101 $47-863
Loss resulting from the change in fair value of loans held- for- sale — (143) (184) €48Loss Jgatrresulting from the change
in fair value of derivatives — (252) (453 3H25-0635-) Net revenue from mortgage banking activities $ — $ 76 $ 5, 464 $45,-056
F- 54 Note 18: Derivative Financial Instruments The Company uses derivative financial instruments to help manage exposure to
interest rate risk and the effects that changes in interest rates may have on net income and the fair value of assets and liabilities.
The Company enters into interest rate swap agreements as part of its asset / liability management strategy to help manage its
interest rate risk position. Additionally, the Company entered into forward contracts for the future delivery of mortgage loans to
third- party investors and entered into IRLCs with potential borrowers to fund specific mortgage loans that were sold into the
secondary market. The forward contracts were entered into in order to economically hedge the effect of changes in interest rates
resulting from the Company’ s commitment to fund the loans. The Company had various interest rate swap agreements
designated and qualifying as accounting hedges during the reported periods. Designating an interest rate swap as an accounting
hedge allows the Company to recognize gains and losses in the eendensed-consolidated statements of income within the same
period that the hedged item affects earnings. The Company includes the gain or loss on the hedged items in the same line item
as the offsetting loss or gain on the related interest rate swaps. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges, any gains or losses related to changes in fair value are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of
tax. The fair value of interest rate swaps with a positive fair value are reported in accrued income and other assets in the
eondensed-consolidated balance sheets, while interest rate swaps with a negative fair value are reported in accrued expenses and
other liabilities in the eendensed-consolidated balance sheets. The Company offers interest rate swaps to certain loan customers
to allow them to hedge the risk of rising interest rates on their variable rate loans. The Company originates a variable rate loan
and enters into a variable- to- fixed interest rate contract with the customer. The Company also enters into an offsetting interest
rate swap with a correspondent bank. These back- to- back swap agreements are intended to offset each other and allow the
Company to originate a variable rate loan, while providing a contract for fixed interest payments for the customer. The net cash
flow for the Company is equal to the interest income received from a variable rate loan originated with the customer. The fair
Value of these derivatives is based ona d1sc0unted cash flow approach. The fatr-valie-assets-and-iabilities-of ecentralty-eleared
pterestrate-swaps-are-ne artatton-margin-settied et—Fhe-IRLCs and forward contracts are not designated as
accounting hedges and are-were recorded at fair value with Changes in fair value reflected in noninterest income on the
eondensed-consolidated statements of income. The fair value of derivative instruments with a positive fair value are-were
reported in accrued income and other assets in the eendensed-consolidated balance sheets, while derivative instruments with a
negative fair value are-were reported in accrued expenses and other liabilities in the eendensed-consolidated balance sheets. The
following table presents amounts that were recorded in the consolidated balance sheets related to cumulative basis adjustments
for interest rate swap derivatives designated as fair value accounting hedges as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-.
Carrying amount of the hedged assetsCumulative amount of fair value hedging adjustment included in the carrying amount of
the hedged assetsLine item in the consolidated balance sheet in which the hedged item is includedDecember 31, 2024December
31, 2023December 31, 2622Deeember-2024December 3 |, 2023Pecember31,-2622Seeurities-2023Securities avallable for-
salel $ —$ 69, 504 § —68—963—$ (1, 143 382,088 | These amounts include the amortized cost basis of closed portfolios
used to designate hedging relationships in which the hedged item is the last layer expected to be remaining at the end of the
hedging relationship. No amounts were hedged as of December 31, 2024. The ameunts— amount of the designated hedged
items were-was $ 50. 0 million as of December 31, 2023. In November 2024, the Company’ s interest rate swap derivative
designated as fair value hedges matured. As a result, the Company has no remaining fair value hedge exposure at
December 31, 2023-2024 and2622-. The following tables— table presentpresents a summary of interest rate swap derivatives
designated as fair value accounting hedges of fixed- rate receivables used in the Company' s asset / liability management
activities at December 31, 2023 and-Deeember3+,2022-, identified by the underlying interest rate- sensitive instruments —F- 55
December 31, 2023 Weighted Average Remaining Maturity (years) Weighted- Average Ratelnstruments Associated
WithNotional ValueFair ValueReceivePaySecurities available- for- sale $ 50, 000 0. 8 $ 1, 153 3 month SOFR2. 33 % Total




swap portfolio at December 31,2023 § 50, 000 0. 8 $ 1, 153 3 month SOFR2. 33 % In December 2024, the Company
terminated interest rate swaps utilized as cash flow hedges against Federal Home Loan Bank advances, which resulted in
swap termination receipts from counterparties of $ 2. 9 million. Given the Company had no further liability exposure to
the underlying index hedged, the Company reclassified this amount from accumulated other comprehensive loss to the
consolidated statements of income and recognlzed a gam on termlnation of interest rate swaps for the year ended
December 31, h verag sMe Cyears)-W & 3

s-wa-p—peft—fe-l-te—&t—Beeerﬁbeﬁ-l—E@E%—2024 -$69—999—1— -8—$£—993—3—rﬂeﬁt-h—I:I-B9}%2—3-3~%—ln Maich 2021, the Company
terminated the last of layer efinterest rate swaps associated with available- for- sale agency mortgage- backed securities-
residential, which resulted in swap termination payments to counterparties totaling $ 1. 9 million. The corresponding fair value
hedging adjustment was allocated pro- rata to the underlying hedged securities and is being amortized over the remaining lives
of the designated securities. Buring-The Company had amortization expense totaling $ 0. 1 million and $ 0. 4 million for
the year-years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, which amertization-expense-tetaling-$-0—4-mithon-was
recognized as a reduction to interest income on securities. In June 2020, the Company terminated all fair value hedging
relationships associated with loans, which resulted in swap termination payments to counterparties totaling $ 46. 1 million. The
corresponding loan fair value hedging adjustment as of the date of termination is being amortized over the remaining lives of
the designated loans, which have a weighted average term to maturity of +8-9 . 4-6 years as of December 31, 28623-2024 . During
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022- amortization expense totaling $ 4. 9 million and $ 4. 7 mitherand-$
4—9-million, respectively, related to these previously terminated fair value hedges was recognized as a reduction to interest
income on loans. The following tables-— table present-presents a summary of interest rate swap derivatives designated as cash
flow accounting hedges of variable- rate liabilities used in the Company' s asset / liability management activities at December
31, 2023 and-Peeember3+H-2622-. December 31, 2023 Weighted Average Remaining Maturity (years) Weighted- Average
RateCash Flow HedgesNotional ValueFair ValueReceivePayInteie%t rate swaps $ 110 OOO 3.1 $ 3,596 3 -—month SOFRZ 88
% Interest rate iwap§40 000 0. 4390 Fed Funds Effective2 78 % B , e v

-Fed—F-ttnds—E—ffeeﬁveHS%—F-éé—These dei 1vat1ve ﬁnan01a1 m%tmment@ were entered into for the purpose of nanaging the
interest rate risk of certain assets and liabilitics. Fhe-As of December 31, 2024, the Company received no $52-mithenand-$F
Fmithenofcash collateral from counterparties as security for their obligations related to these swap transactions at-. As of
December 31, 2023 and-2022-, respeetively-the Company received $ 5. 2 million of cash collateral from counterparties as
security for their obligations related to these swap transactions . The Company had no pledged cash collateral as of
December 31, 2623-2024 and December 31, 2622-2023 to counterparties on interest rate swap agreements as security for its
obligations related to these agreements. Collateral posted and received is dependent on the market valuation of the underlying
hedges. The following table presents the notional amount and fair value of interest rate swaps ;7 HRECs-and-forward-eontraets
utilized by the Company at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and20822-. F- 56 December 3 1, 2623BDeeember-2024December 3 1,
2622-2023 Notional AmountFairValueNotional AmountFairValueAsset Derivatives Derivatives designated as hedging
instrumentsInterest rate swaps associated with securities available- for- sale $ — $ —$ 50, 000 $ 1, 153 $-56,-000-$2,-093
Interest rate swaps associated with habihttest50---- liabilities — — 150 , 000 3, 986 246;-066-6;-552-Derivatives not designated
as hedging instruments Back- to- back swapst-swaps27 , 214 200 1, 778 $677 ——IREECs——H4;862133Forward
eentracts———17-000-97Total contracts § 27,214 $200 $ 201, 778 § 5, 816 $204-862-5-8;-875-Liability
DerivativesDerivatives not designated as hedging instrumentsBack- to- back swapst—- swaps $ 27,214 $ (200) $1 . 778 $ (677)
Total contracts $ 27,214 $ (200) $ 1, 778 $ (677) $—3$—The fair values of interest rate swaps were estimated using a
di%counted Caqh ﬂow method that 1ncorp01 ates current market 1ntere§t rates as of the balance qheet date. Fair—val-ues-e-PI-RI:Gs

eﬂtefed—tnte—the—hk[:@aﬁd—t%ﬁaa-laﬂee—sheet—d&te—Refer to Note 16- Fair Value of F 1nanc1al lnitruments ” for additional
information. Back- to- back swaps consist of two interest- rate swaps (a customer swap and an offsetting counterparty swap). As
a result of this offsetting relationship, no net gains or losses are recognized in income. The following table presents the effects of
the Company' s cash flow hedge relationships on the consolidated statements of comprehensive income during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 ;and262+. Amount of (Loss) / gain-Gain reeognized-Recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income in the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2024December 31, 2023December 31, 2022Deeember 3+
202 Hnterest-2022Interest ratc swap agreements $ —$ (2, 566) $ 19, 091 $3H5438-The following table summarizes the
periodic changes in the fair value of derivatives not designated as hedging instruments on the eendensed-consolidated statements
of income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ;-ard-2024 FS5FAmount of (Loss) / Gain
Recognized in the Twelve Monthq Ended December 31 2024December 31, 2023December 31, %92—2—9eeember—3—l—2-92—lﬁs‘set

Derivatives Derivatives not designated as hedging instmments IRLCS $ —$(133) $(585 )—$—e—643—) Forward contracts —
(119) — —F- 57 The following table presents the effects of the Company' s interest rate swap agreements on the consolidated
statements of income during the twelve months ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 ;-and-2024-. Line item in the
consolidated statements of incomeDecember 31, 2024December 31, 2023December 31, 2022Deeember 31202 Hnterest
2022Interest incomeboans$—$—$—Seeunrities-incomeSecurities - non - taxable $ 1, 367 $ 1 ———253)Seeuritics—non-
taxabled, 471 § (244 35099-) Total interest incomel, 367 1, 471 (244 ¥45352) Interest expense Deposits (424) (1, 671) 1,
125 277#5-Other borrowed funds (2, 833) (2, 622) 1, 110 3;7628-Total interest expense ( 3, 257) (4, 293) 2, 235 5;-803-Net
interest income $ 4,624 $ 5, 764 $ (2, 479) Noninterest incomeOtherl $ 2 (7, 1551904 § — $ — Total noninterest income $



2,904 $ — $ — 1 The Company recognized a gain on termination of interest rate swaps for the year ended December 31,
2024. Note 19: Shareholders’ Equity On Oetober26-December 19 , 2624-2022 , the Company' s Board of Directors approved a
stock repurchase program that autherizing-authorized the repurchase of up to $ 36-25 . 0 million of our outstanding common
stock from time to time on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. The stock repurchase In-Oetober2022-the
Company—sBeard-of Direetorsinereasedthe-authorization to-$35-expired on December 31, 2024 . O-million—Fhe-Under the
program, the Company repurchased 559 a-total-ef855- 956-522 shares of common stock, at an average price of $ 36—3+per
sh&re—&n&eikt-l‘r&pfegfafn—t-hfeﬁgh—]aeeeﬁrbeﬁl9 —2-92—2— 06 Gﬂ—BeeefnbeH9— for%@%—Z—ﬂ&e—Gempaﬂ-y—s—Be&rd-ef—Bﬁeetefs
approved-a total investment new-stoe P
fepttfehase—ofup—te—$2§—10 9—7m11110n of-ot-outs :-=-= cotonstoe off-ttte-to-tie-ot-the-openna

H—é—mﬁteﬁ—ef—fem&mmg—at&-hefﬁ-y—&ndeﬁ&re—pfegfafﬂ— F- 58 Note 20: Accumulated Othel CompIehenslVe Income (Loss) The

components of accumulated other comprehensive loss, included in stockholders' equity, are presented in the table below.
Available- For- Sale SecuritiesUnrealized Losses on Debt Securities Transferred from Available- for- Sale to Held- to-
MaturityCash Flow HedgesTotalBalance, January 1, 20242022 $ 468-$—$( 172 , 664555 ) $ — $ (178 ,196-484) $ (11,
039 ) Net unrealized holding (losses) gains recorded within other comprehensive income before income tax (442 , 687336 ) —
H-19 . 387091 (23 , 651-245) Reclassification of securities available- for- sale to held- to- maturity — (5, 402) — (5, 402)
Amortization of net unrealized losses on securities transferred from available- for- sale to held- to- maturity — 844 —
844 Other comprehensive (loss) income before tax ( 42, 336) (4, 687558 ) 19 —H-, 387091 (27 , 65+803) Income tax
(benefit) provision (9, 060) (1, 664-039 ) 4 —1-, 958-894-893 (5, 206) Other comprehensive (loss) income- net of tax ( 33,
276) ( 3,9623-519 ) 14 —9-, 186-6-198 (22 , +57-597) Balance, December 31, 20242022 § (2-35 , 555831 ) $ —$-( 83 , 484
519 ) $ 5 H-, 639-714 $ (33, 636 ) Net unrealized holding gains (losses) gatns—recorded within other comprehensive income
before income tax 428 7 , 3363339 § — $ 19,694+ 23-2 , 245-566 ) $ 4 Reelassifieationofseeuritiesavailable-—for-—salete
held—to—matartty—S-, 773 4929—6—492—)—Am0rt12at10n of net unrealized losses on securities transferred from available- for-
sale to held- to- maturity — 844-778 — 844-778 Other comprehensive income (loss) reeme-before tax-tax7 (42- 3363339 778
(42 ,558566 )19-5 , 551 6H+24-803)-Income tax provision (benefit) proviston{9;-66031, 682 198 63994893~ 590 5,266
) 1,290 Other comprehensive income (loss) reeme—- net of tax-tax5s 33-, 276)-657 580 ( 3-1 , 549976 ) +4-4 , 261 19822;
597h-Balance, December 31, 2022-2023 § (35-30 , 8314174 ) $ ( 2,939) $ 3, 738 519)-$ 5-H4-$-( 3329 , 636-375 ) Net
unrealized holding gats<{losses yrecorded within other comprehensive income before income tax7- tax $ (1 ,339-039)$ — $
(1, 082) $ (2, 566-121 ) 4-Reclassification of gain on termination of interest rate swaps — — (2 , 773-904) (2, 904)
Amortization of net unrealized losses on securities transferred from available- for- sale to held- to- maturity — 778-789 — 778
789 Other comprehensive (loss) income dessy-before tax— tax ;339778 2-1 , 566-039 ) 5-789 (3 , 55+-986) (4, 236) Income
tax (benefit) provision ( berefit-800 ) +5-682498+(596-- 90 (248 ) ,296-(958) Other comprehensive (loss) income dossy— net of
tax5—- tax 7657580~ 239 -976-) 4699 (3 , 261+-738) (3, 278) Balance, December 31, 2023-2024 § (30,4+74-413 ) $ (2, 939-240
) $ — 37388 (2932, 375653 ) F- 59 Note 21: Condensed Financial Information (Parent Company Only) Presented below is
condensed financial information as to financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the Company on a non-
consolidated basis: F=59-Condensed Balance Sheets Year Ended December 31, 20232022Assets-20242023Assets Cash and
cash equivalents $ 12,997 § 11, 593 $22,259-Investment in common stock of sabs-td-r&ﬂes444-subs1dlar1es458 025444 , 221
449—645—P-feﬂ‘nses—aﬁd—equfpﬁ&eﬂt—ﬂH-8—Accmed income and other assetst4-assets19 , 983 14 , 127 -8%67—T0tal assets $
491, 005 $ 469, 941 $471-529-Liabilities and shareholders’ equity Subordinated debt, net of unamomzed diseounts— discount
and debt issuance costs of $ 1, 850 and $ 2, 162 in 2024 and 2023 and-$2-, 468-in2022-respectively $ 105, 150 $ 104, 838 &
+64;-532-Accrued expenses and other Habtlities2liabilities1 , 792 2 , 308 25-623-Total }abiitiest-0Fliabilities106 , 942 107 ,
146 +66;-555-Sharcholders’ equity362-equity384 , 063 362 , 795 %64—9—7‘4—T0td1 liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 491, 005 $
469, 941 F- 60 $-47-529-Condensed Statements of Income Year Ended December 3 1, 20232022202 HneeneDividends—--
202420232022IncomeDividends from bank subsidiary $ 16,000 $ 12, 000 $ 8, 000 Other905 188 $—Gainonsale-of
premises-and-equipment——2;-523-Other188-285 75-Total ineomet2-incomel6 , 905 12 , 188 &, 285 2,-598-Expenses [nterest
on berrewings-borrowings6 $-, 021 5, 376 $-5, 371 $5;-892-Salaries and employee benefitsl, 223 1, 203 1, 147 637
Consulting and professional feesl, 937 1, 572 1, 814 2;478-Premises and equipmenti26-equipment45 126 201 548-Other286
Other250 280 134 363-Total expeﬂsesS—expenses9 ,476 8 , 557 8, 667 +8;-048-Income (loss) before income tax and equity in
undistributed net income of substdiaries3-subsidiaries7 , 429 3 | 631 (382 HFH426-) Income tax benefit (2, 080) (1, 817) (1,
874) H5-68P-Income Hossy-before equity in undistributed net income of subsidtartesS-subsidiaries9 , 509 5 , 448 1, 492 5733y
Equity in undistributed net income of substdiartes2-subsidiaries15 , 767 2 , 969 34, 049 53,847 Net income $ 25,276 $ 8, 417
$ 35, 541 $48;3H4-F- 60-61 Condensed Statements of Comprehensive Income Year Ended December 31, 262320222021 Net
202420232022Net income $ 25,276 $ 8, 417 $ 35, 541 $48+H4-Other comprehensive income (loss) Securities available- for-
saleNet unrealized holding (losses) gains fesses)-on securities available- for- sale recorded within other comprehensive income
before income tax7— tax (1, 039) 7 , 339 (42, 336 H4;-68F) Income tax (benefit) provision ( berefit-800 ) 1, 682 (9, 060 H
064-) Net effect on other comprehensive (loss) income (4088239 ) 5, 657 (33, 276 H35923-) Securities held- to-
maturityReclassification of securities from available- for- sale to held- to- maturity — — (5, 402) —Amortization of net
unrealized holding losses on securities transferred from available- for- sale to held- to- matarity778- maturity789 778 844 —
Income tax provision (benefit) 90 198 (1, 039) —Net effect on other comprehensive income (loss) 699 580 (3, 519) —Cash
flow hedgesNet unrealized holding (losses) gains on cash flow hedging derivatives recorded within other comprehensive income
before income tax (1, 082) (2, 566) 19, 091 H-Reclassification of gain on termination of interest rate swaps (2 , 135-904)



Income tax (benefit) provision ( 248) ( 590) 4, 893 +5-958-Net effect on other comprehensive (loss) income (3, 738) (1, 976) 14,
198 9—1-89—T01d other comprehensive (loss) income (1ess-3,278 ) 4, 261 (22, 597) 6;457Comprehensive income § 21, 998 $
12,678 $ 12, 944 $-54;274-F- 6462 Condensed Statements of Cash Flows Year Ended December 31, 202326222021 Operating

---- 2024202320220perating activitics Net income $ 25,276 $ 8, 417 $ 35, 541 $48;FH4-Adjustments to reconcile net income

to net cash provided by operating activities: Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries ( 15, 767) (2, 969) (34, 049) €53;

84BD-Depreciation and amertizatton3+8-amortization312 318 329 4;-684+-Share- based compensation expeﬁse%é—expense363

256 795 835-Gatnron-sale-of premises-and-equipment———2,-523)>-Net change in other assets-assets1 , 506 (1, 819) 350 G+

Net change in other abiities358---- liabilities (522) 358 (490) ##5-Net cash provided by fused—rn)—opcmlmﬂ aetivities4

activities11, 168 4 , 501 2, 476 5;-596)-Investing activities Purchase Net—pfeeeeés—freﬁa—sa}e—ol equlty investments (7

pfenﬂses—&nd-eqtupmen-t—&. 221) H6-Otherinvestingaetivittes{(3, 578) (2, 727 H3556+) Net cash (used in plO\lde by
investing activities ( 7 221) ( 3,578) (2 727) 4%55—F1ndncmg aeln ities Ca h div 1dends pdld (7 078) (2, 156) (2,317 )—@—4—16—}

-Ba-n-le}e&n—ev—eee—) Repuuhdse of common stock ( 283) ( 9, 7>4() (77 780) (4—4%6)—0[ her, net (182) (153) (7309—644-1—

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ( 2, 543) (11, 649) (30, 347) 43;366-Net increase (decrease) inerease-in cash
and cash equi-va-}eﬁts—equivalentsl 404 (10, 666) (30, 598) 4+2;-325-Cash and cash equi\ alents at beginning of year22-yearl11,
593 22,259 52, 857 49%—32—( ash and cash cqunalents at end of year $ 12, 997 $ ,593 $ 22,259 $52,-857F- 63 Note 22:

nted-ab c-to e i i ot—As-a fesu-}t—smgle reportable segment

managmg the buslness and assessmg ﬁnanclal performance on a consolldated baSIS While the-there folowing-ehanges
bstdiary-arc presentedHmrtotal-ineome-several lines of business

w1th1n the operatmg segment they are closely 1nterrelated and cannot operate independently . ~Equity-in-tndistributed
Accordingly, the CODM evaluates operations and financial performance on a Company- wide basis and all of the
Company’ s operations are aggregated into one reportable operating segment. The CODM regularly receives and
reviews the Company’ s net income on a consolidated basis and uses key metrics to evaluate the overall performance of
substdiariesrefleets-the Company and make decisions regardlng the allocatlon of resources. Addltmnally, the CODM
reviews budget- to- actual variances to analyze the-these d ved-profit
measures as a single operating segment . The abeve—ehanges—had—ne—effeet—en%@%%—net—meeme—functlon of CODM is
performed by the Finance Committee. This Committee consists of the highest level of management that is responsible for
the Company’ s overall resource allocation and performance. The Finance Committee includes the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, President and Chief Operating Officer and Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer . -
62-64 Note 22-23 : Recent Accounting Pronouncements ASU 26046-2023 - 43-02 - FinanetaHnstraments—- Investments -
Equlty Method and J01nt Ventures (Toplc 323) Accountmg for Investments in Tax C 1uhl Structures Us1ng -I:esses—ﬁ:epte

t-h&n—fa-lﬁa-l-ue—‘—ln May—2-9-1-9—March 2023 , the FASB 1ssued ASU 2649-No. 202 - 02, 95-—F—rn&neta-1—l-nst-ruments—~
Investments - Equity Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323): Accounting for Investments in Tax Credit Structures

Us1ng the Proportlonal Amortlzatlon Method -I:esses—&"Pwate%%é—)-—'P&rgeted—"Pr&nsﬁeﬂ—Rehef— This ASU permlts companles




eemp-}e’fed-by—&ﬂ—rnéqaeﬂdeﬂt—t-lﬂfd-pafw—m—the income tax fou
of eateulating-the- Allowaneefor-Credit-credits are received
using the proportional amortization Gemp&nydefeﬁﬁmed—ﬂ&e—dﬁeewﬁed-eas%rﬂew—method if certaln condltlons are met to
bmm -F-—63—T he (ompany adopted thls guldanue on ldnualy 1, 2623-and-recordeda

his—g 8 v act-otr-the-eondensed ‘onsolldated hndncml
statements. ASU 2023-07- Seument Reportlmy (Topic 28()) Improvements to Reponable Seunents (November 2023) In
November 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023- 07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280)- Improvements to Reportable Segments.
This ASU enhances financial reporting by requiring disclosure of incremental segment information on an annual and interim
basis. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023 and for interim periods within fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2024 with early adoption permitted. The Company is-etrrentiy-evaluating-the-adopted this
guidance in 2024 and it did not have a material impact efthisASH-on its eendensed-consolidated financial statements. ASU
2023- 09- Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures (December 2023) In December 2023, the FASB
issued ASU No. 2023- 09, Income Taxes (Topic 740)- Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. This ASU enhances the
transparency and usefulness of income tax disclosures, which addresses investor requests for more transparency about income
tax disclosures related primarily to the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid information. The guidance is effective for
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024 with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact of this ASU on its eendensed-consolidated financial statements. ASU 2024- 03- Income Statement- Reporting
Comprehensive Income- Expense Disaggregations Disclosures (Subtopic 220- 40): Disaggregation of Income Statement
Expenses (November 2024) In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU No. 2024- 03, Income Statement- Reporting
Comprehensive Income- Expense Disaggregations Disclosures (Subtopic 220- 40): Disaggregation of Income Statement
Expenses. This ASU requires additional disclosures of the nature of expenses included in the Company’ s income




statement. The new standard requires disclosures about specific types of expenses included the income statement. The
guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2026 and interim reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2027. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this ASU on its consolidated
financial statements. F- 65 Description of the Registrant’ s Securities Registered Under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 First Internet Bancorp (the “ Company, ” “ we, ” *“ our ” and “ us ” refer solely to First Internet Bancorp) maintains
two classes of securities registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the ““ Exchange Act
”): (1) our common stock, without par value (the “ Common Stock ); and (2) our 6. 0 % Fixed- to- Floating Subordinated Notes
due 2029 (the “ 2029 Notes ” or the “ Notes ). Description of Common Stock The following is a description of the material
terms of our Common Stock. The description is qualified in its entirety by reference to our Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation (the “ Articles ), our Amended and Restated Bylaws (the “ Bylaws ™), and the applicable provisions of the
Indiana Business Corporation Law, as amended (the “ IBCL ™). Our Articles and Bylaws are incorporated by reference as
exhibits to the Annual Report on Form 10- K for the Company’ s most recently completed fiscal year. Our authorized capital
stock consists of 45, 000, 000 shares of Common Stock and 5, 000, 000 shares of preferred stock, no par value. All outstanding
shares of Common Stock are duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non- assessable. Voting Rights Except as described
below under “ Anti- Takeover Effects of Provisions of the Company’ s Articles, Bylaws and the IBCL — Control Share
Acquisitions, ” each holder of shares of our Common Stock is entitled to one vote for each share on all matters to be voted upon
by the common shareholders. There are no cumulative voting rights. Dividend Rights Subject to preferences to which holders of
any shares of preferred stock may be entitled, holders of shares of our Common Stock are entitled to receive ratably any
dividends that may be declared from time to time by our Board of Directors out of funds legally available for that purpose.
Rights Upon Liquidation In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of shares of our Common Stock will
be entitled to share in our assets remaining after the payment or provision for payment of our debts and other liabilities, and the
satisfaction of any liquidation preferences granted to the holders of any shares of preferred stock that may be outstanding. Other
Provisions Holders of shares of our Common Stock have no preemptive or conversion rights or other subscription rights. There
are no redemption or sinking fund provisions that apply to the Common Stock. The rights, preferences and privileges of the
holders of shares of our Common Stock are subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of shares of
any series of preferred stock that we may designate in the future. Because we are a bank holding company, any purchaser of
certain specified amounts of our Common Stock may be required to file a notice with or obtain the approval of the Federal
Reserve System (the *“ Federal Reserve ) under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, and the Change in Bank
Control Act of 1978, as amended. Specifically, under regulations adopted by the Federal Reserve, (1) any other bank holding
company may be required to obtain the approval of the Federal Reserve before acquiring 5 % or more of our Common Stock
and (2) any person may be required to file a notice with and not be disapproved by the Federal Reserve to acquire 5 % or more
of our Common Stock and will be required to file a notice with and not be disapproved by the Federal Reserve to acquire 25 %
or more of our Common Stock. Transfer Agent and Registrar The transfer agent and registrar for the Common Stock is
Computershare Trust Company, N. A. Listing The Common Stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the
symbol “ INBK. ” Our Articles, Bylaws and certain provisions of the IBCL may have an anti- takeover effect. These provisions
may delay, defer or prevent a tender offer or takeover attempt that a shareholder would consider in its best interest. This includes
an attempt that might result in a premium over the market price for the shares of Common Stock held by shareholders. These
provisions are expected to discourage certain types of coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover bids. They are also
expected to encourage persons seeking to acquire control of the Company to negotiate first with our Board of Directors. We
believe that the benefits of these provisions outweigh the potential disadvantages of discouraging takeover proposals because,
among other things, negotiation of takeover proposals might result in an improvement of their terms. Number of Directors;
Removal; Vacancies Our Articles provide that we may have between 3 and 25 directors and our Bylaws further provide that our
Board of Directors may establish an actual number of directors between 3 and 11 from time to time by resolution. Our Articles
provide that any director may be removed for a specific cause found and determined by the vote of a majority of the entire
Board of Directors. In addition, any or all directors may be removed with or without cause at a meeting of shareholders called
for such purpose by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to be cast generally in the
election of directors. If any vacancy occurs on the Board of Directors, including a vacancy which occurs by reason of an
increase in the number of directors, such vacancy shall be filled by a majority vote of the directors then in office. Special
Meetings of Shareholders; Limitations on Shareholder Action by Written Consent Our Bylaws provide that special meetings of
our shareholders may be called only by the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive
Officer or the President. A special meeting of our shareholders may not be called by any other person or persons, including
holders of shares of our Common Stock. The only matters that may be considered at any special meeting of the sharecholders are
the matters specified in the notice of the meeting. Because our Common Stock is registered under the Exchange Act, the IBCL
provides that any actions required or permitted to be taken by our shareholders may not be effected by written consent unless the
written consent describing the action taken is signed by all shareholders entitled to vote on the action. Amendments; Vote
Requirements Except where authority is granted to the Board of Directors under the IBCL, our Articles may be amended if the
amendment is recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by a majority of the votes entitled to be cast if the
amendment would create dissenters’ rights or otherwise if the votes cast favoring the proposal exceed the votes cast opposing
the proposal at a meeting at which a quorum is present. Except as otherwise required by the IBCL or our Articles, our Bylaws
may only be amended by the affirmative vote of a majority of the entire Board of Directors or the affirmative vote, at a meeting
of the shareholders, of at least a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the holders of the outstanding shares of all classes of
stock of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, considered for these purposes as a single voting
group. Advance Notice Requirements for Shareholder Proposals and Nomination of Directors Our Bylaws establish an advance



notice procedure with regard to business to be brought before an annual meeting of shareholders and with regard to the
nomination of candidates for election as directors, other than by or at the direction of the Board of Directors. In general, notice
of intent to raise business or nominate a director at annual meetings must be received by us not later than the 45th day nor earlier
than the 75th day before the one- year anniversary of the date on which we first mailed our proxy materials or a notice of
availability of proxy materials (whichever is earlier) to our shareholders for the preceding year’ s annual meeting and must
contain certain specified information concerning the matters to be brought before the meeting or the person to be nominated and
concerning the shareholder submitting the proposal. Under Chapter 42 of the IBCL, an acquiring person or group who makes a
control share acquisition ” in an “ issuing public corporation ” may not exercise voting rights on any “ control shares ” unless
these voting rights are conferred by a majority vote of the disinterested shareholders of the issuing public corporation at a
special meeting of those shareholders held upon the request and at the expense of the acquiring person or otherwise at the next
annual or special meeting of the corporation. If control shares acquired in a control share acquisition are accorded full voting
rights and the acquiring person has acquired control shares with a majority or more of all voting power, all shareholders of the
issuing public corporation have dissenters’ rights to receive the fair value of their shares pursuant to Chapter 44 of the IBCL.
Under the IBCL, “ control shares ” are shares acquired by a person that, when added to all other shares of the issuing public
corporation owned by that person or in respect to which that person may exercise or direct the exercise of voting power, would
otherwise entitle that person to exercise voting power of the issuing public corporation in the election of directors within any of
the following ranges: * one- fifth or more but less than one- third;  one- third or more but less than a majority; or * a majority or
more. A “ control share acquisition ” means, subject to specified exceptions, the acquisition, directly or indirectly, by any person
of ownership of, or the power to direct the exercise of voting power with respect to, issued and outstanding control shares. For
the purposes of determining whether an acquisition constitutes a control share acquisition, shares acquired within 90 days or
under a plan to make a control share acquisition are considered to have been acquired in the same acquisition. An “ issuing
public corporation ” means a corporation which has (1) 100 or more shareholders; (2) its principal place of business or its
principal office in Indiana, or that owns or controls assets within Indiana having a fair market value of greater than $ 1, 000,
000; and (3) (a) more than 10 % of its shareholders resident in Indiana, (b) more than 10 % of its shares owned of record or
owned beneficially by Indiana residents or (c) 1, 000 shareholders resident in Indiana. The overall effect of these provisions may
be to render more difficult or to discourage a merger, a tender offer, a proxy contest or the assumption of control by a holder of a
large block of shares of our Common Stock or other person, or the removal of incumbent management, even if those actions
may be beneficial to our shareholders generally. The provisions described above do not apply if, before a control share
acquisition is made, the corporation’ s articles of incorporation or bylaws, including a bylaw adopted by the corporation’ s board
of directors, provide that the provisions do not apply to the corporation. Our Articles and Bylaws do not currently exclude us
from Chapter 42 of the IBCL. Certain Business Combinations Chapter 43 of the IBCL restricts the ability of a *“ resident
domestic corporation ” to engage in any combinations with an * interested shareholder ” for five years after the date the
interested shareholder became such, unless the combination or the purchase of shares by the interested shareholder on the
interested shareholder’ s date of acquiring shares is approved by the board of directors of the resident domestic corporation
before that date. If the combination was not previously approved, then the interested shareholder may effect a combination after
the five- year period only if that shareholder receives approval from a majority of the disinterested shareholders or the offer
meets specified “ fair price ” criteria. For purposes of the above provisions, “ resident domestic corporation ” means an Indiana
corporation that has 100 or more shareholders. “ Interested shareholder ” means any person, other than the resident domestic
corporation or its subsidiaries, who is (1) the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 10 % or more of the voting power of the
outstanding voting shares of the resident domestic corporation or (2) an affiliate or associate of the resident domestic
corporation, which at any time within the five- year period immediately before the date in question, was the beneficial owner,
directly or indirectly, of 10 % or more of the voting power of the then- outstanding shares of the resident domestic corporation.
The definition of “ beneficial owner ” for purposes of Chapter 43 means a person who, directly or indirectly, owns the shares,
has the right to acquire or vote the subject shares (excluding voting rights under revocable proxies made in accordance with
federal law), has any agreement, arrangement or understanding for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting or disposing of the
subject shares or holds any “ derivative instrument ” that includes the opportunity, directly or indirectly, to profit or share in any
profit derived from any increase in the value of the subject shares. The above provisions do not apply to corporations that elect
not to be subject to Chapter 43 in an amendment to their articles of incorporation approved by a majority of the disinterested
shareholders. That amendment, however, cannot become effective until 18 months after its passage and would apply only to
share acquisitions occurring after its effective date. Our Articles do not exclude us from Chapter 43 of the IBCL. Mandatory
Classified Board of Directors Under Chapter 33 of the IBCL, a corporation with a class of voting shares registered with the U. S.
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “ SEC ) under Section 12 of the Exchange Act must have a classified board of
directors unless the corporation adopts a bylaw expressly electing not to be governed by this provision by the later of July 31,
2009 or 30 days after the corporation’ s voting shares are first registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act. Our Board of
Directors adopted a Bylaw provision electing not to be subject to the mandatory classified board requirement within 30 days
after our Common Stock was registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act. Description of the Notes The following
description of the Notes is a summary and does not purport to be complete. The summary is subject to and qualified in its
entirety by reference to the Subordinated Indenture between the Company and U. S. Bank National Association (the “ Trustee
), dated as of September 30, 2016, as supplemented in the case of the 2029 Notes by the Second Supplemental Indenture, dated
as of June 12, 2019 (together, the “ Indenture ), which, along with the 2029 Notes, are incorporated by reference as exhibits to
the Annual Report on Form 10- K for the Company’ s most recently completed fiscal year.. The 2029 Notes were initially
issued on June 12, 2019 in an aggregate principal amount of $ 35. 0 million with an additional § 2. 0 million aggregate principal
amount issued on June 19, 2019 pursuant to the exercise of an over- allotment option granted to the underwriters. The 2029



Notes mature on June 30, 2029. The 2029 Notes are traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the trading symbol
INBKZ. ” The Notes are not convertible into, or exchangeable for, equity securities, other securities or assets of the Company or
First Internet Bank. There is no sinking fund for the Notes. As a bank holding company, our ability to make payments on the
Notes depends primarily on the receipt of dividends and other distributions from our subsidiary, First Internet Bank. There are
various regulatory restrictions on the ability of First Internet Bank to pay dividends or make other distributions to us. The Notes
are not savings accounts, deposits or other obligations of First Internet Bank or any of our non- bank subsidiaries and are not
insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other governmental agency or public or private
insurer. The Notes are solely obligations of the Company and are neither obligations of, nor guaranteed by, any of our
subsidiaries. No recourse is available for the payment of principal of, or interest or any Additional Amounts (as defined below)
on, any Note, for any claim based thereon, or otherwise in respect thereof, against any shareholder, employee, agent, officer or
director, as such, past, present or future, of the Company or of any successor entity. Neither the Indenture nor the Notes contain
any covenants or restrictions restricting the incurrence of debt, deposits or other liability by us or by our subsidiaries. The
Indenture and the Notes contain no financial covenants and do not restrict us from paying dividends or issuing or repurchasing
other securities, and do not contain any provision that would provide protection to the holders of the Notes against a sudden and
dramatic decline in credit quality resulting from a merger, takeover, recapitalization or similar restructuring or any other event
involving us or our subsidiaries that may adversely affect our credit quality. The 2029 Notes currently bear interest at a rate of 6.
0 % per annum. From and including June 30, 2024 to but excluding the maturity date or the date of earlier redemption, the
interest rate will reset quarterly to an annual interest rate equal to the then- current Benchmark Rate (initially Three- month
LIBOR) (each, as defined below) plus 4. 114 %. Interest is payable quarterly in arrears on March 30, June 30, September 30,
and December 30 of each year. If we determine in our sole discretion that a Benchmark Rate Replacement Event (as defined
below) and its related Benchmark Rate Replacement Date (as defined below) have occurred prior to 11: 00 a. m., London time,
on a Reset Rate Determination Date, then the Benchmark Replacement Rate will replace the then- current Benchmark Rate for
all purposes relating to the 2029 Notes with respect to the floating rate period. In connection with the implementation of the
Benchmark Replacement Rate, we may make or instruct the Calculation Agent to make, from time to time, Benchmark
Replacement Rate Conforming Changes (as defined below). All determinations, decisions, elections and calculations we make
(or the Calculation Agent makes at our direction), including as to occurrence or non- occurrence of an event, circumstance or
date, any decision to take or refrain from taking any action or any selection, and any Benchmark Replacement Rate Conforming
Changes, will be in our sole discretion, will be conclusive and binding absent manifest error, and will become effective without
the consent of the Trustee, the Calculation Agent or the holders of the 2029 Notes. If we determine that there is no alternative
reference rate selected by a central bank, reserve bank, monetary authority or any similar institution (including any committee or
working group thereof) that is consistent with market practice regarding a substitute for Three- month LIBOR or the then-
applicable Benchmark Rate, we may, in our sole discretion, appoint an independent financial advisor to determine an
appropriate Benchmark Replacement Rate and any Benchmark Replacement Rate Conforming Changes, and the decision of
such independent financial advisor will be binding on us, the Calculation Agent, the Trustee, and the holders of the 2029 Notes.
If a Benchmark Rate Replacement Event and its related Benchmark Rate Replacement Date have occurred and, for any reason,
the Calculation Agent has not been notified of the Benchmark Replacement Rate on or prior to a Reset Rate Determination Date,
then for purposes of such Reset Rate Determination Date and each Reset Rate Determination Date thereafter until we notify the
Calculation Agent of the Benchmark Replacement Rate, the 2029 Notes will bear interest at the original fixed rate per annum of
6. 0 %. From and after the first Reset Rate Determination Date after we notify the Calculation Agent of the Benchmark
Replacement Rate, the Benchmark Replacement Rate (and any associated Benchmark Replacement Rate Conforming Changes)
will apply. To the extent that a Benchmark Rate is unavailable and we have not provided the Calculation Agent with quotations
for the calculation of the Benchmark Replacement Rate, the Calculation Agent shall have no liability to us, the holders of the
2029 Notes or to any third party as a result of losses suffered by such parties due to the lack of an applicable rate of interest, and
the Calculation Agent shall be under no obligation to act in such event or otherwise determine the relevant alternate applicable
rate of interest until such time as the Calculation Agent has received written direction from us regarding how to calculate the
Benchmark Replacement Rate or otherwise proceed with respect to determining the Benchmark Replacement Rate. The
calculation of the Benchmark Rate for each applicable interest period by the Calculation Agent will (in the absence of manifest
error) be final and binding. The Calculation Agent’ s calculation of the amount of any interest payable after the first Reset Rate
Determination Date will be maintained on file at the Calculation Agent’ s principal offices. Interest is calculated on the basis of
a 360- day year consisting of twelve 30- day months to, but excluding, June 30, 2024 for the 2029 Notes, and thereafter on the
basis of a 360- day year and on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed. Dollar amounts resulting from that calculation
are rounded to the nearest cent, with one- half cent being rounded upward. Interest on the Notes, subject to certain exceptions,
accrues during the applicable interest period, which is from and including the immediately preceding interest payment date in
respect of which interest has been paid or duly provided for or, if no interest has been paid or duly provided for, from and
including the date of issuance of the Notes to but excluding the applicable interest payment date or the stated maturity date or
date of earlier redemption, if applicable. If an interest payment date or the maturity date for the Notes falls on a day that is not a
business day, the interest payment or the payment of principal and interest at maturity will be paid on the next succeeding
business day, but the payments made on such dates will be treated as being made on the date that the payment was first due and
the holders of the Notes will not be entitled to any further interest or other payments. In the event that a floating rate interest
payment date falls on a day that is not a business day, then such floating rate interest payment date will be postponed to the next
succeeding business day unless such day falls in the next succeeding calendar month, in which case such floating rate interest
payment date will be accelerated to the immediately preceding business day, and, in each such case, the amounts payable on
such business day will include interest accrued to but excluding such business day. Interest on each Note is payable to the person



in whose name such Note is registered for such interest at the close of business on the 15th day of the month immediately
preceding the applicable interest payment date, whether or not such day is a business day; however, interest that is paid on the
maturity date will be paid to the person to whom the principal will be paid. Any such interest which is payable, but is not
punctually paid or duly provided for on any interest payment date, shall cease to be payable to the holder on such relevant
record date by virtue of having been a holder on such date, and such defaulted interest may be paid by us to the person in whose
name the Note is registered at the close of business on a special record date for the payment of defaulted interest. Interest is
payable by wire transfer in immediately available funds in U. S. dollars at the office of the paying agent or, at our option in the
event the Notes are not represented by Global Notes (as defined below), by check mailed to the address of the person specified
for payment in the preceding sentences. When we use the term “ business day, ” we mean any day except a Saturday, Sunday, a
legal holiday or any other day on which banking institutions in the City of New York, New York or any place of payment are
authorized or required by law, regulation or executive order to close. “ Additional Amounts ” means any additional amounts that
are required by the Indenture or the Notes, under circumstances specified by the Indenture or the Notes, to be paid by the
Company in respect of certain taxes imposed on holders of the Notes specified by the Indenture or the Notes and which are
owing to such holders. “ Benchmark Rate ” means, initially, Three- month LIBOR; provided that, if a Benchmark Rate
Replacement Event and its related Benchmark Rate Replacement Date have occurred with respect to Three- month LIBOR or
the then- current Benchmark Rate, then *“ Benchmark Rate ” means the applicable Benchmark Replacement Rate. Subject to any
Benchmark Replacement Rate Conforming Changes, all percentages used in or resulting from any calculation of the Benchmark
Rate will be rounded, if necessary, to the nearest one hundred- thousandth of a percentage point, with 0. 000005 % rounded up to
0. 00001 %. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the Benchmark Rate as determined in accordance with the
applicable definitions is less than zero, the Benchmark Rate for such interest period shall be deemed to be zero. “ Benchmark
Rate Margin ” means an amount equal to the Benchmark Rate plus 4. 114 %. “ Benchmark Rate Replacement Date ”” means the
earliest to occur of the following events with respect to the then- current Benchmark Rate: (i) in the case of clause (i) or (ii) of
the definition of “ Benchmark Rate Replacement Event, ™ the later of (A) the date of the public statement or publication of
information referenced therein and (B) the date on which the administrator of the Benchmark Rate permanently or indefinitely
ceases to provide the Benchmark Rate; or (ii) in the case of clause (iii) of the definition of “ Benchmark Rate Replacement
Event, ” the date of the public statement or publication of information referenced therein. * Benchmark Rate Replacement Event
” means the occurrence of one or more of the following events with respect to the then- current Benchmark Rate: (i) a public
statement or publication of information by or on behalf of the administrator of the Benchmark Rate announcing that such
administrator has ceased or will cease to provide the Benchmark Rate, permanently or indefinitely, provided that, at the time of
such statement or publication, there is no successor administrator that will continue to provide the Benchmark Rate; (ii) a public
statement or publication of information by the regulatory supervisor for the administrator of the Benchmark Rate, the central
bank for the currency of the Benchmark Rate, an insolvency official with jurisdiction over the administrator for the Benchmark
Rate, a resolution authority with jurisdiction over the administrator for the Benchmark Rate or a court or an entity with similar
insolvency or resolution authority over the administrator for the Benchmark Rate, which states that the administrator of the
Benchmark Rate has ceased or will cease to provide the Benchmark Rate permanently or indefinitely, provided that, at the time
of such statement or publication, there is no successor administrator that will continue to provide the Benchmark Rate; or (iii) a
public statement or publication of information by the regulatory supervisor for the administrator of the Benchmark Rate
announcing that the Benchmark Rate is no longer representative.  Benchmark Replacement Rate ” means the alternative
reference rate selected by a central bank, reserve bank, monetary authority or any similar institution (including any committee or
working group thereof) that is consistent with market practice regarding a substitute for Three- month LIBOR (which may or
may not be Secured Overnight Financing Rate selected by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York as the substitute for LIBOR)
or the then- applicable Benchmark Rate, as determined by us and calculated by the Calculation Agent in accordance with the
Indenture as of the applicable time on the Reset Rate Determination Date related to the applicable interest period. “ Benchmark
Replacement Rate Conforming Changes ” means technical, administrative, operational or other changes and adjustments
(including changes and adjustments to the Benchmark Replacement Rate, the Benchmark Rate Margin, the timing and
frequency of determining rates and making interest payments, business day conventions, and rounding of amounts or tenors) that
we determine to be appropriate to reflect the adoption of a Benchmark Replacement Rate in a manner substantially consistent
with market practice (or, if we determine that adoption of any portion of such market practice is not administratively feasible or
that no such market practice exists, in such other manner as we determine is reasonably necessary). “ Calculation Agent ” means
U. S. Bank National Association, or any other successor appointed by us, acting as calculation agent. “ Designated LIBOR Page
” means the display on Bloomberg Page BBAM1 (or any successor or substitute page of such service, or any successor to such
service selected by the Company), for the purpose of displaying the London interbank rates for U. S. dollars. “ London Banking
Day ” means any day on which commercial banks are open for business (including dealings in U. S. dollars) in London. “ Reset
Rate Determination Date ” means the second London Banking Day immediately preceding the first day of each applicable
interest period commencing on the first floating rate interest payment date. “ Three- month LIBOR ” means, for any interest
period, the offered rate for deposits in U. S. dollars having a maturity of three months that appears on the Designated LIBOR
Page as of 11: 00 a. m., London time, on the Reset Rate Determination Date related to such interest period. If such rate does not
appear on such page at such time (other than, in the case of the 2029 Notes, in connection with a Benchmark Rate Replacement
Event), then the Calculation Agent will request the principal London office of each of four major reference banks in the London
interbank market, selected by the Company for this purpose and whose names and contact information will be provided by the
Company to the Calculation Agent, to provide such bank’ s offered quotation to prime banks in the London interbank market for
deposits in U. S. dollars with a term of three months as of 11: 00 a. m., London time, on such Reset Rate Determination Date and
in a principal amount equal to an amount for a single transaction in U. S. dollars in the relevant market at the relevant time as



determined by the Company and provided to the Calculation Agent (a “ Representative Amount ”). If at least two such
quotations are so provided, three- month LIBOR for the interest period related to such Reset Rate Determination Date will be
the arithmetic mean of such quotations. If fewer than two such quotations are provided, the Calculation Agent will request each
of three major banks in the City of New York selected by the Company for this purpose and whose names and contact
information will be provided by the Company to the Calculation Agent, to provide such bank’ s rate for loans in U. S. dollars to
leading European banks with a term of three months as of approximately 11: 00 a m., New York City time, on such Reset Rate
Determination Date and in a Representative Amount. If at least two such rates are so provided, three- month LIBOR for the
interest period related to such Reset Rate Determination Date will be the arithmetic mean of such quotations. If fewer than two
such rates are so provided, then three- month LIBOR for the interest period related to such Reset Rate Determination Date will
be set to equal the three- month LIBOR for the immediately preceding interest period or, in the case of the interest period
commencing on the first floating rate interest payment date, 5. 0 % for the 2029 Notes. All percentages used in or resulting from
any calculation of three- month LIBOR will be rounded, if necessary, to the nearest one hundred- thousandth of a percentage
point, with 0. 000005 % rounded up to 0. 00001 %. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that three- month LIBOR as
determined in accordance with this definition is less than zero, three- month LIBOR for such interest period shall be deemed to
be zero. Ranking The Notes are our unsecured subordinated debt obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of our
other unsecured subordinated indebtedness, including unsecured subordinated indebtedness we may issue in the future under the
Indenture. The Notes rank junior to and are subordinated to all of our senior indebtedness, whether now outstanding, or issued,
assumed or incurred in the future, including all indebtedness relating to money owed to general creditors and trade creditors.
The Notes are our obligations only and are not guaranteed by any of our subsidiaries, including First Internet Bank, which is our
principal subsidiary. The Notes are structurally subordinated to all existing and future indebtedness and other liabilities of our
subsidiaries, which means that creditors of our subsidiaries (including, in the case of First Internet Bank, its depositors)
generally will be paid from those subsidiaries’ assets before holders of the Notes would have any claims to those assets. The
Indenture and the Notes do not limit the amount of senior indebtedness, secured indebtedness, or other liabilities having priority
over the Notes that we or our subsidiaries may incur. “ Senior indebtedness ” means: ¢ the principal and any premium or interest
for money borrowed or purchased by the Company; ¢ the principal and any premium or interest for money borrowed or
purchased by another person and guaranteed by the Company; * any deferred obligation for the payment of the purchase price of
property or assets evidenced by a note or similar instrument or agreement; * obligations to general and trade creditors; * any
obligation arising from direct credit substitutes; * any obligation associated with derivative products such as interest rate and
currency rate exchange contracts or any similar arrangements, unless the instrument by which we incurred, assumed or
guaranteed the obligation expressly provides that it is subordinate or junior in right of payment to any other indebtedness or
obligations of the Company; and ¢ all obligations of the type referred to in the first six bullet points above of other persons or
entities for the payment of which we are responsible or liable as obligor, guarantor or otherwise, whether or not classified as a
liability on a balance sheet prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States; in each
case, whether now outstanding, or created, assumed or incurred in the future. With respect to the Notes, senior indebtedness
excludes any indebtedness that: * expressly states that it is junior to, or ranks equally in right of payment with, the Notes; or * is
identified as junior to, or equal in right of payment with, the Notes in any board resolution establishing such series of
subordinated indebtedness or in any supplemental indenture. Notwithstanding the foregoing, and for the avoidance of doubt, if
the Federal Reserve (or other competent regulatory agency or authority) promulgates any rule or issues any interpretation that
defines general creditor (s), the main purpose of which is to establish criteria for determining whether the subordinated debt of a
financial or bank holding company is to be included in its capital, then the term “ general creditors ” as used in the definition of
“senior indebtedness ” in the Indenture will have the meaning as described in that rule or interpretation. Upon the liquidation,
dissolution, winding up, or reorganization of the Company, we must pay to the holders of all senior indebtedness the full
amounts of principal of, premium, interest and any Additional Amounts owing on, that senior indebtedness before any payment
is made on the Notes. If, after we have made those payments on our senior indebtedness there are amounts available for
payment on the Notes, then we may make any payment on the Notes. Because of the subordination provisions and the
obligation to pay senior indebtedness described above, in the event of insolvency of the Company, holders of the Notes may
recover less ratably than holders of senior indebtedness and other creditors of the Company. With respect to the assets of our
subsidiaries, our creditors (including holders of the Notes) are structurally subordinated to the prior claims of creditors of each
subsidiary, except to the extent that we may be a creditor with recognized claims against such subsidiary. Subject to the terms of
the Indenture, if the Trustee or any holder of any of the Notes receives any payment or distribution of our assets in contravention
of the subordination provisions applicable to the Notes before all senior indebtedness is paid in full in cash, property or
securities, including by way of set- off or any such payment or distribution that may be payable or deliverable by reason of the
payment of any other indebtedness of the Company being subordinated to the payment of the Notes, then such payment or
distribution will be held in trust for the benefit of holders of senior indebtedness or their representatives to the extent necessary
to make payment in full in cash or payment satisfactory to the holders of senior indebtedness of all unpaid senior indebtedness.
Events of Default; Acceleration of Payment; Limitation on Suits The Notes and Indenture provide for only limited events upon
which the principal of the Notes, together with accrued and unpaid interest and premium, if any, shall be accelerated. These
events are: * A court having jurisdiction shall enter a decree or order for the appointment of a receiver, trustee, assignee,
liquidator or similar official in any receivership, insolvency, liquidation, or similar proceeding relating to the Company, and such
decree or order shall remain unstayed and in effect for a period of 60 consecutive days; « We shall consent to the appointment of
a receiver, liquidator, trustee, assignee or other similar official in any receivership, insolvency, liquidation or similar proceeding
with respect to the Company; or ¢ In the event of an appointment of a receiver, trustee, assignee, liquidator or similar official for
our principal banking subsidiary, First Internet Bank, and such appointment shall not have been rescinded for a period of 60



consecutive days from the date thereof. The Notes and Indenture provide for a limited number of other events of default, which
do not permit acceleration of the payment of principal of, and interest on, the Notes, including: * Default in the payment of any
interest on the applicable series of Notes or any Additional Amounts with respect thereto when it becomes due and payable, and
continuance of such default for a period of 30 days (unless the entire amount of such payment is deposited by the Company with
the Trustee or with a paying agent prior to the expiration of such period of 30 days); * Default in the payment of the principal on
the applicable series of Notes or any Additional Amounts with respect thereto when it becomes due and payable (whether at the
stated maturity or by declaration of acceleration, call for redemption or otherwise); or « Default in the performance or breach of
any covenant or warranty of the Company in the Indenture (other than a covenant or warranty for which the consequences of
nonperformance or breach are addressed in the five bullet points above and other than a covenant or warranty that has been
included in the Indenture solely for the benefit of notes issued thereunder other than the applicable series of Notes), and the
continuance of such default or breach (without such default or breach having been waived in accordance with the provisions of
the Indenture) uncured for a period of 90 days after there has been given, by registered or certified mail, to the Company by the
Trustee or to the Company and the Trustee by the holders of not less than 25. 0 % in principal amount of the applicable series of
outstanding Notes a written notice specifying such default or breach and requiring it to be remedied and stating that such notice
is a ““ Notice of Default ” under the Indenture. There is no right of acceleration in the case of a default in the payment of
principal of or interest or Additional Amounts on the Notes or in our nonperformance or breach of any other covenant or
warranty under the Notes or the Indenture. If we default in our obligation to pay any interest on a series of Notes or any
Additional Amounts with respect thereto when it becomes due and payable and such default continues for a period of 30 days, or
if we default in our obligation to pay the principal amount of a series of Notes when it becomes due and payable (whether at the
stated maturity or by declaration of acceleration, call for redemption or otherwise), then the Trustee may demand we pay to the
Trustee, for the benefit of the holders of such series of Notes, the whole amount then due and payable on such series of Notes for
principal and interest and, to the extent that payment of such interest shall be legally enforceable, interest on any overdue
principal and any overdue interest at the rate or rates prescribed therefor in such series of Notes and, in addition thereto, such
further amount as shall be sufficient to cover the costs and expenses of collection, including the reasonable compensation,
expenses, disbursements and advances of the Trustee, its agents and counsel. No holder of Notes will have any right to institute
any proceeding, judicial or otherwise, with respect to the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee, or for any
other remedy under the Indenture, unless: * such holder has previously given written notice to the Trustee of a continuing event
of default with respect to the applicable series of Notes; ¢ the holders of not less than 25. 0 % in principal amount of the
applicable series of outstanding Notes shall have made written request to the Trustee to institute proceedings in respect of such
event of default in its own name as Trustee under the Indenture; ¢ such holder or holders have offered to the Trustee indemnity
satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses, and liabilities to be incurred in compliance with such request; * the Trustee for 60
days after its receipt of such notice, request, and offer of indemnity has failed to institute any such proceeding; and * no direction
inconsistent with such written request has been given to the Trustee during such 60- day period by the holders of a majority in
principal amount of the applicable series of outstanding Notes. In any event, the Indenture provides that no one or more of such
holders shall have any right in any manner whatever by virtue of, or by availing of, any provision of the Indenture to affect,
disturb or prejudice the rights of any other of such holders of the Notes, or to obtain or to seek to obtain priority or preference
over any other of such holders or to enforce any right under the Indenture, except in the manner provided in the Indenture and
for the equal and ratable benefit of all such holders of Notes. We may, at our option, beginning with the interest payment date of
June 30, 2024 for the 2029 Notes, and on any interest payment date thereafter, redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, from time
to time, subject to obtaining the prior approval of the Federal Reserve to the extent such approval is then required under the rules
of the Federal Reserve, at a price equal to 100 % of the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed plus accrued but unpaid
interest to, but excluding, such date of redemption. The Notes may not otherwise be redeemed prior to maturity, except that we
may also, at our option, redeem a series of Notes at any time, in whole, but not in part, from time to time, at a price equal to 100
% of the principal amount of the series of Notes being redeemed plus accrued but unpaid interest to, but excluding, such date of
redemption upon the occurrence of: « a “ Tax Event, ” defined in the Indenture to mean the receipt by us of an opinion of
independent tax counsel to the effect that as a result of (a) an amendment to, or change (including any announced prospective
change) in, the laws or any regulations thereunder of the United States or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or
therein, or (b) any official administrative pronouncement or judicial decision interpreting or applying such laws or regulations,
which amendment or change becomes effective or which pronouncement or decision is announced on or after the date of
original issuance of a series of Notes, there is more than an insubstantial risk that the interest payable by us on such series of
Notes is not, or within 90 days of the date of such opinion will not be, deductible by us, in whole or in part, for U. S. federal
income tax purposes; ¢ a *“ Tier 2 Capital Event, ” defined in the Indenture to mean our good faith determination that, as a result
of (a) any amendment to, or change (including any announced prospective change) in, the laws or any regulations thereunder of
the United States or any rules, guidelines or policies of an applicable regulatory authority for the Company or (b) any official
administrative pronouncement or judicial decision interpreting or applying such laws or regulations, which amendment or
change is effective or which pronouncement or decision is announced on or after the date of original issuance of a series of
Notes, in each case, that there is more than an insubstantial risk that we will not be entitled to treat such series of Notes then
outstanding as Tier 2 capital (or its then equivalent if we were subject to such capital requirement) for purposes of capital
adequacy guidelines of the Federal Reserve (or any successor regulatory authority with jurisdiction over bank holding
companies), as then in effect and applicable, for so long as any such Note is outstanding; or ¢ the Company becoming required to
register as an investment company pursuant to the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. Any such redemption will be
at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, such date of
redemption. In the event of any redemption of the Notes, we will deliver or cause to be delivered a notice of redemption (which



notice may be conditional in our discretion on one or more conditions precedent, and the redemption date may be delayed until
such time as any or all of such conditions have been satisfied or revoked by us if we determine that such conditions will not be
satisfied) by first- class mail, or in the event the Notes are represented by Global Notes, electronically in accordance with the
procedures of The Depository Trust Company (“ DTC ”), to each holder of Notes not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to
the redemption date. Any partial redemption will be made in accordance with DTC’ s applicable procedures among all of the
holders of the applicable series of Notes. If any Note is to be redeemed in part only, the notice of redemption relating to such
Note shall state it is a partial redemption and the portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed. A replacement Note in
principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof will be issued in the name of the holder thereof upon cancellation of
the original Note. The Notes are not subject to redemption or prepayment at the option of the holders of the Notes. Modification
and Waiver The Indenture provides that we and the Trustee may amend or supplement the Indenture or the Notes with, or, in
certain cases, without the consent of the holders of a majority in principal amount of the applicable outstanding series of Notes;
provided, that any amendment or waiver may not, without the consent of the holder of each outstanding Note affected thereby: *
reduce the amount of Notes whose holders must consent to an amendment, supplement or waiver; ¢ reduce the rate of or extend
the time for payment of interest (including default interest) on any Note;  reduce the principal or change the stated maturity of
any Note; * waive a default or event of default in the payment of the principal of or interest, if any, on any Note (except a
rescission of acceleration of a series of Notes by the holders of at least a majority in principal amount of such series of
outstanding Notes and a waiver of the payment default that resulted from such acceleration); « make any change to the
percentage in principal amount of the outstanding Notes, held by holders whose consent is required to waive certain defaults and
the consequences thereof under the Indenture or any change to such defaults which require such consent; « make any change to
certain provisions of the Indenture relating to, among other things, holders’ rights to receive payment of the principal of and
interest on the Notes and to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment and waivers of past defaults; « make the
principal of or interest, if any, on any Note or any Additional Amount with respect thereto payable in any currency other than
that stated in the Note; or * waive any redemption payment with respect to any Notes. In addition, the holders of at least a
majority in principal amount of an outstanding series of Notes may, on behalf of all holders of such series of Notes, waive
compliance by us with certain terms, conditions and provisions of the Indenture, as well as any past default and / or the
consequences of default, other than any default in the payment of principal of or interest on any Note (provided that the holders
of a majority in principal amount of an outstanding series of Notes may rescind an acceleration and its consequences, including
any related payment default that resulted from such acceleration) or any breach in respect of a covenant or provision that cannot
be modified or amended without the consent of the holder of each outstanding Note of such series. In addition, we and the
Trustee may modify and amend the Indenture without the consent of any holders of Notes for any of the following purposes: ¢ to
evidence the succession of another person to the Company as obligor under the Indenture and the assumption by any such
successor of the covenants and obligations of the Company in the Indenture and in the Notes; ¢ to add to the covenants of the
Company such further covenants, restrictions, conditions or provisions as shall be for the protection of the holders of the Notes
and to make the occurrence, or the occurrence and continuance, of a default in any of such additional covenants, restrictions,
conditions or provisions an event of default permitting the enforcement of all or any of the several remedies provided in the
Indenture, with such period of grace, if any, and subject to such conditions as such supplemental indenture may provide; * to add
or change any of the provisions of the Indenture to such extent as shall be necessary to permit or facilitate the issuance of notes
in uncertificated or global form; « to provide for the acceptance of appointment by a successor Trustee or facilitate the
administration of the trust under the Indenture by more than one Trustee; ¢ to cure any ambiguity, defect or inconsistency in the
Indenture; ¢ to add any additional events of default (and if such events of default are to be for less than all series of Notes, stating
that such are expressly being included solely for the benefit of such series); * to modify, eliminate or add to the provisions of the
Indenture, if the change or elimination (i) becomes effective only when there are no debt securities outstanding of any series
created prior to the change or elimination that are entitled to the benefit of the changed or eliminated provision or (ii) shall not
apply to the any debt securities outstanding at the time of such change or elimination; ¢ to establish the form of the Notes and to
provide for the issuance of any other series of notes under the Indenture; * to comply with any requirements of the SEC in
connection with the qualification of the Indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the “ Trust Indenture Act
”); » to modify, eliminate or add to the provisions of the Indenture to such extent as shall be necessary to effect the qualification
of the Indenture under the Trust Indenture Act, or under any similar federal statute hereafter enacted, and to add to the Indenture
such other provisions as may be expressly permitted by the Trust Indenture Act, excluding certain provisions thereof; or ¢ to
make any change that does not adversely affect the rights of any holder of notes of any series issued under the Indenture in any
material respect. The Trustee shall be entitled to receive an officer’ s certificate and opinion of counsel confirming that all
conditions precedent are satisfied with respect to any supplemental indenture, that such supplemental indenture is authorized and
permitted and that such supplemental indenture is the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against it
in accordance with its terms. Legal Defeasance and Covenant Defeasance We may choose to either discharge our obligations
under the Indenture and any series of Notes in a legal defeasance or to release ourselves from certain of our covenant restrictions
under the Indenture and the Notes in a covenant defeasance (in each case, except for certain surviving rights of the Trustee and
our obligations in connection therewith). We may do so after we irrevocably deposit with the Trustee, in trust, cash and / or U. S.
government securities in an amount that, through the payment of interest and principal in accordance with their terms, will
provide, not later than one day before the due date of any payment of money, an amount in cash, which is sufficient in the
opinion of our independent public accountants expressed in a written certification delivered to the Trustee, to pay and discharge
each installment of principal of and interest, if any, on a series of Notes on the dates such installments of interest or principal are
due. If we choose the legal defeasance option, the holders of the applicable series of Notes will not be entitled to the benefits of
the Indenture except for certain limited rights, including registration of transfer and exchange of such Notes, replacement of lost,



stolen or mutilated Notes and the right to receive payments of the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on such Notes
when such payments are due. We may discharge our obligations under the Indenture or release ourselves from covenant
restrictions only if we meet certain requirements. Among other things, we must deliver to the Trustee an opinion of our legal
counsel to the effect that holders of the applicable series of Notes will not recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax
purposes as a result of such deposit, defeasance and discharge and will be subject to federal income tax on the same amount, in
the same manner and at the same times, as would have been the case if such deposit, defeasance and discharge had not occurred.
In the case of legal defeasance only, this opinion must be based on either a ruling received from or published by the Internal
Revenue Service or a change in the applicable federal income tax law. We may not have a default or event of default under the
Indenture or the applicable series of Notes on the date of deposit or during the period ending 120 days after such deposit. The
deposit may not result in a breach or violation of, or constitute a default under, the Indenture or any of our agreements or
instruments to which we are a party or by which we are bound. Any defeasance of the Notes pursuant to the Indenture shall be
subject to our obtaining the prior approval of the Federal Reserve and any additional requirements that the Federal Reserve may
impose with respect to defeasance of the Notes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if, due to a change in law, regulation or policy
subsequent to the issue date of a series of Notes the Federal Reserve does not require that defeasance of instruments be subject to
Federal Reserve approval in order for the instrument to be accorded Tier 2 capital treatment, then no such approval of the
Federal Reserve will be required for such defeasance. Satisfaction and Discharge We may discharge our obligations under the
Indenture (except for certain surviving rights of the Trustee and our obligations in connection therewith) if: (a) all outstanding
Notes and all other outstanding notes issued under the Indenture (i) have been delivered for cancellation, or (ii) (1) have become
due and payable, (2) will become due and payable at their stated maturity within one year, (3) are to be called for redemption
within one year under arrangements satisfactory to the Trustee for the giving of notice of redemption by the Trustee or (4) are
deemed paid and discharged in a legal defeasance described above, (and in the case of clauses (1), (2) and (3), we have
irrevocably deposited with the Trustee an amount sufficient to pay and discharge the principal of and interest on all outstanding
notes issued under the Indenture on the stated maturity dates or redemption dates, as the case may be); (b) we have paid all
other sums payable by us under the Indenture; and (c) we have delivered an officer’ s certificate and opinion of counsel stating
that all conditions precedent with respect to the satisfaction and discharge of the Indenture have been complied with.
Consolidation, Merger and Sale of Assets The Indenture provides that we may not consolidate with or merge with or into, or
convey, transfer or lease all or substantially all of our properties and assets to any person, and we may not permit any other
person to consolidate with or merge into us or to convey, transfer or lease all or substantially all of its properties and assets to us,
unless: * we are the surviving corporation or the successor person (if not us), is a corporation organized and validly existing
under the laws of any U. S. domestic jurisdiction and expressly assumes our obligations on the Notes and under the Indenture; ¢
immediately after giving effect to such transaction, and treating any indebtedness that becomes an obligation of us or our
subsidiaries as a result of such transaction as having been incurred by us or such subsidiary at the effective date of such
transaction, no default or event of default shall have occurred and be continuing; and * we have complied with our obligations to
deliver certain documentation to the Trustee, including an officers’ certificate and opinion of counsel each stating that such
proposed transaction and any supplemental indenture comply with the Indenture. Further Issues We may, from time to time,
without notice to or the consent of the holders of the Notes, create and issue further notes ranking equally with the Notes and
with identical terms in all respects (or in all respects except for the date of offering, the offering price and the first interest
payment date); provided that such further notes shall be fungible with the original Notes for federal income tax purposes. Such
further notes will be consolidated and form a single series with the Notes. The Trustee may conclusively rely upon certificates,
opinions or other documents furnished to it under the Indenture and shall have no responsibility to confirm or investigate the
accuracy of mathematical calculations or other facts stated therein. The Trustee shall have no responsibility for monitoring our
compliance with any of our covenants under the Indenture. Paying Agent We may appoint one or more financial institutions to
act as our paying agents, at whose designated offices the Notes in non- global form may be presented or surrendered for
payment. We call each of those offices a paying agent. We may add, replace or terminate paying agents from time to time. We
may also choose to act as our own paying agent. Initially, we have appointed the Trustee, at its office at 60 Livingston Avenue,
St. Paul, Minnesota 55107, as the paying agent for the Notes. We must notify the Trustee of changes in the paying agents.
Governing Law The Indenture provides that the Notes and the Indenture governing the Notes are governed by, and construed in
accordance with, the laws of the State of New York. The Notes are intended to qualify as Tier 2 capital under the capital rules
established by the Federal Reserve for bank holding companies. The rules set forth specific criteria for instruments to qualify as
Tier 2 capital. Among other things, the Notes must: « be unsecured; * have a minimum original maturity of at least five years; °
be subordinated to depositors and general creditors; ¢ not contain provisions permitting the holders of the Notes to accelerate
payment of principal prior to maturity except in the event of receivership, insolvency, liquidation or similar proceedings of the
Company; and * not contain provisions permitting the Company to redeem or repurchase the Notes prior to the maturity date
without prior approval of the Federal Reserve. Clearance and Settlement The Notes are represented by one or more permanent
global certificates, which we refer to individually as a Global Note and collectively as the Global Notes, deposited with, or on
behalf of DTC and registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’ s partnership nominee). The Notes are available for purchase in
minimum denominations of $ 25 and integral multiples of $ 25 in excess thereof in book- entry form only. So long as DTC or
any successor depositary, which we refer to collectively as the Depositary, or its nominee is the registered owner of the Global
Notes, the Depositary, or such nominee, as the case may be, will be considered to be the sole owner or holder of the Notes for
all purposes of the Indenture. Beneficial interests in the Global Notes are represented through book- entry accounts of financial
institutions acting on behalf of beneficial owners as direct and indirect participants in DTC. Investors may not elect to receive a
certificate representing their Notes while the Notes are held by a Depositary. Investors may elect to hold interests in the Global
Notes through DTC either directly if they are participants in DTC or indirectly through organizations that are participants in



DTC. The laws of some jurisdictions may require that some purchasers of securities take physical delivery of securities in
definitive form. These laws may impair the ability to transfer beneficial interests in the Notes, so long as the corresponding
securities are represented by Global Notes. DTC has advised us that it is a limited- purpose trust company organized under the
New York Banking Law, a * banking organization ” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve, a “ clearing corporation ” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and a “ clearing
agency ” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Exchange Act. DTC holds securities that its direct
participants deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post- trade settlement among participants of sales and other securities
transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book- entry transfers and pledges between participants’
accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct participants include both U. S. and
non- U. S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations. DTC is a
wholly owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation, which, in turn, is owned by a number of direct
participants of DTC and members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Fixed Income Clearing Corporation and
Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation, as well as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the NYSE American LLC and the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority. Access to the DTC system is also available to others, referred to as indirect
participants, such as both U. S. and non- U. S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations
that clear through or maintain a direct or indirect custodial relationship with a direct participant. The rules applicable to DTC and
its participants are on file with the SEC. Purchases of securities under the DTC system must be made by or through direct
participants, which will receive a credit for the securities on DTC’ s records. The ownership interest of each beneficial owner of
securities is recorded on the direct or indirect participants’ records. Beneficial owners will not receive written confirmation from
DTC of their purchase. Beneficial owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the
transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the direct or indirect participant through which the beneficial
owner entered into the transaction. Under a book- entry format, holders may experience some delay in their receipt of payments,
as such payments are forwarded by the Depositary to Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC. DTC forwards the payments to its
participants, who then forward them to indirect participants or holders. Beneficial owners of securities other than DTC or its
nominees will not be recognized by the relevant registrar, transfer agent, paying agent or trustee as registered holders of the
securities entitled to the benefits of the Indenture. Beneficial owners that are not participants are permitted to exercise their
rights only indirectly through and according to the procedures of participants and, if applicable, indirect participants. To
facilitate subsequent transfers, all securities deposited by direct participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC’ s
partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit
of securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not affect any change in
beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual beneficial owners of the securities; DTC’ s records reflect only the
identity of the direct participants to whose accounts the securities are credited, which may or may not be the beneficial owners.
The direct and indirect participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.
Conveyance of redemption notices and other communications by DTC to direct participants, by direct participants to indirect
participants, and by direct and indirect participants to beneficial owners are governed by arrangements among them, subject to
any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. If less than all of the securities of any class are
being redeemed, DTC will determine the amount of the interest of each direct participant to be redeemed in accordance with its
then current procedures. DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depositary with respect to the Notes at any
time by giving reasonable notice to the issuer or its agent. Under these circumstances, in the event that a successor securities
depositary is not obtained, certificates for the Notes are required to be printed and delivered. We may decide to discontinue the
use of the system of book- entry- only transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depositary). In that event, certificates for
the Notes will be printed and delivered to DTC. As long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the Global Notes,
DTC or its nominee, as the case may be, is considered the sole owner and holder of the Global Notes and all securities
represented by these certificates for all purposes under the instruments governing the rights and obligations of holders of such
securities. Except in the limited circumstances referred to above, owners of beneficial interests in Global Notes: ¢ are not entitled
to have such global security certificates or the securities represented by these certificates registered in their names; * will not
receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of securities certificates in exchange for beneficial interests in global security
certificates; and ¢ are not considered to be owners or holders of the global security certificates or any securities represented by
these certificates for any purpose under the instruments governing the rights and obligations of holders of such securities. All
redemption proceeds, distributions and dividend payments on the securities represented by the Global Notes and all transfers
and deliveries of such securities are made to DTC or its nominee, as the case may be, as the registered holder of the securities.
DTC’ s practice is to credit direct participants” accounts upon DTC’ s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information
from the issuer or its agent, on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’ s records.
Payments by participants to beneficial owners are governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with
securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “ street name, ” and are the responsibility of that
participant and not of DTC, the Depositary, the issuer, the Trustee or any of their agents, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions and dividend payments to
Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the
issuer or its agent, disbursement of such payments to direct participants is the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such
payments to the beneficial owners is the responsibility of direct and indirect participants. Ownership of beneficial interests in the
Global Notes is limited to participants or persons that may hold beneficial interests through institutions that have accounts with
DTC or its nominee. Ownership of beneficial interests in Global Notes is shown only on, and the transfer of those ownership
interests is effected only through, records maintained by DTC or its nominee, with respect to participants’ interests, or any



participant, with respect to interests of persons held by the participant on their behalf. Payments, transfers, deliveries, exchanges,
redemptions and other matters relating to beneficial interests in Global Notes may be subject to various policies and procedures
adopted by DTC from time to time. None of the Company, the Trustee or any agent for any of them has any responsibility or
liability for any aspect of DTC’ s or any direct or indirect participant’ s records relating to, or for payments made on account of,
beneficial interests in Global Notes, or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any of DTC’ s records or any direct or indirect
participant’ s records relating to these beneficial ownership interests. Although DTC has agreed to the foregoing procedures in
order to facilitate transfer of interests in the Global Notes among participants, DTC is under no obligation to perform or
continue to perform these procedures, and these procedures may be discontinued at any time. Neither we nor the Trustee have
any responsibility for the performance by DTC or its direct participants or indirect participants under the rules and procedures
governing DTC. Because DTC can act only on behalf of direct participants, who in turn act only on behalf of direct or indirect
participants, and certain banks, trust companies and other persons approved by it, the ability of a beneficial owner of securities
to pledge them to persons or entities that do not participate in the DTC system may be limited due to the unavailability of
physical certificates for the securities. DTC has advised us that it will take any action permitted to be taken by a registered
holder of any securities under the Indenture, only at the direction of one or more participants to whose accounts with DTC the
relevant securities are credited. The information in this section concerning DTC and its book- entry system was obtained from
sources that we believe to be accurate, but we assume no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. U. S. Bank National
Association is acting as Trustee under the Indenture. The Trustee has all of the duties and responsibilities specified under the
Trust Indenture Act. Other than its duties in a case of an event of default, the Trustee is not obligated to exercise any of its rights
or powers under the Indenture at the request or direction of the holders of the Notes, unless the holders have offered to the
Trustee security or indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee. From time to time, we, and one or more of our subsidiaries, may
maintain deposit accounts and conduct other banking transactions, including lending transactions, with the Trustee in the
ordinary course of business. Additionally, we maintain banking relationships with the Trustee and its affiliates in the ordinary
course of business. These banking relationships include the Trustee serving as Trustee under the Indenture for each series of
Notes. Notices Notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture or any Note, where the Indenture or any Note provides for
notice of any event or any other communication (including any notice of redemption or repurchase) to a holder of a Note
(whether by mail or otherwise), such notice shall be sufficiently given if given to the Depositary (or its designee) pursuant to the
applicable procedures from the Depositary or its designee, including by electronic mail in accordance with accepted practices at
the Depositary. First Internet BancorpPolicy Title: Insider Trading PolicyCategory: Board PolicyResponsibility: CEO
and CFO Purpose The purchase or sale of securities1 while aware of material nonpublic information, or the disclosure of
material nonpublic information to others who then trade in First Internet Bancorp’ s securities, is prohibited by the
federal securities laws. The Board of Directors has adopted this Insider Trading Policy (“ Policy ) both to satisfy the
Corporation’ s2 obligation to prevent insider trading and to help its directors and officers avoid the severe consequences
associated with violations of the insider trading laws. This Policy also is intended to prevent even the appearance of
improper conduct on the part of anyone employed by or associated with the Corporation (not just so- called insiders).
Covered Persons This Policy contains prohibitions on taking specified actions involving the Corporation’ s securities as
well as the need to obtain pre- clearance of permitted transactions. The following persons, all of whom are subject to this
Policy, are referred to as the “ Covered Persons ”: 1. all members of the Corporation’ s board of directors (* directors ),
officers and employees of the Corporation, as well as members of their immediate families and others living in the same
household; 2. all consultants and advisors to the Corporation whose work with or for the Corporation brings them into
contact with material nonpublic information; and 3. any other person or entity, including a trust, corporation,
partnership, or other association, whose transactions in the Corporation’ s securities are directed by any person covered
by the foregoing clauses 1 or 2 or are subject to that person’ s influence or control. Covered Entities This Policy applies
to trading in the securities of the Corporation and any other entity with which the Corporation is or may be doing
business, such as customers, suppliers, or companies with which a significant transaction, such as a merger, acquisition
or divestiture may be or is being considered. 1 For the purposes of this Policy, ¢ securities ” include common stock and
derivative securities such as put and call options, options to acquire common stock including stock options, warrants,
convertible debentures, preferred stock and debt securities such as bonds and notes. 2 Whenever the term “ Corporation
” is used, it shall include First Internet Bancorp and any subsidiary or affiliate of First Internet Bancorp.
Administration of this Policy The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of First Internet Bancorp (the *
Bancorp ) will serve as the “ Authorized Officers ” for the purposes of this Policy, and each may designate other
Bancorp personnel with responsibility for the administration of all or portions of this Policy, subject to the Authorized
Officer’ s oversight. All determinations and interpretations by an Authorized Officer will be final and not subject to
further review. Policy Statement It is the policy of the Corporation that no Covered Person may, directly or through
family members or other persons or entities, (a) trade or take other action in the securities of the Corporation while
aware of material nonpublic information relating to the Corporation, (b) recommend that others engage in transactions
in any securities of the Corporation, (¢) disclose material nonpublic information to others outside the Corporation,
including but not limited to family, friends, business associates, investors, and advisors, unless such disclosure is made in
accordance with the Corporation’ s policies regarding the protection or authorized disclosure of such information, or (d)
assist any person engaging in the foregoing activities. In addition, it is the policy of the Corporation that any Covered
Person who learns of material nonpublic information about a third party with which the Corporation does business,
including a customer or vendor of the Corporation, may not trade in that third party’ s securities until the information
becomes public or is no longer material. There are no exceptions to this Policy, except as specifically noted herein.
Transactions that may be necessary or justifiable for independent reasons (such as the need to raise money for an



emergency expenditure) are not excepted from the Policy. The securities laws do not recognize such mitigating
circumstances, and, in any event, even the appearance of an improper transaction must be avoided to preserve the
Corporation’ s reputation for adhering to the highest standards of conduct. Disclosure of Information to Others — The
Corporation has established procedures for releasing material information in a manner that is designed to achieve broad
public dissemination of the information immediately upon its release and to avoid selective disclosure. You may not,
therefore, disclose information to anyone outside the Corporation, including family members and friends, other than in
accordance with those procedures. You also may not discuss the Corporation or its business in an Internet “ chat room ”,
similar Internet- based forum or through social media. Material Information — Material information is any information
that a reasonable investor would consider important in making a decision to buy, hold or sell securities. Any information
that could be expected to affect the Corporation’ s stock price, whether it is positive or negative, should be considered
material. Some examples of information that ordinarily would be regarded as material are: * Projected or actual
revenue, earnings or other operating results not yet released; « Earnings or the material components thereof that are
inconsistent with prior guidance or the consensus expectations of the investment community; * A pending or proposed
merger, acquisition or tender offer; * A pending or proposed acquisition or disposition of a significant asset or business;
* A change in dividend policy, the declaration of a stock split, or an offering of additional securities; * Significant
restructuring; * Establishment or termination of a repurchase program; « Major marketing changes; * A change in
senior management; * A change in auditor or notification that the auditor’ s reports may no longer be relied upon; *
Pending or threatened material litigation or regulatory action, or the resolution of the same; * Gain or loss of a
significant customer or other business relationship; * A significant cybersecurity incident, such as a data breach, or any
other significant disruption of the Corporation’ s operations or loss, potential loss, breach or unauthorized access of its
property or assets; * Impending bankruptcy or the existence of severe liquidity problems; or * The imposition of an
event- specific blackout, including the extension or termination of trading restrictions. Protect Material Nonpublic
Information- In order to reduce the possibility that material nonpublic information will be inadvertently disclosed: * You
must treat material nonpublic information as confidential, exercise the utmost caution in preserving the confidentiality
of that information, and should not discuss it with any other person who does not need to know it for a legitimate
business purpose. * You should refrain from discussing material nonpublic information relating to the Corporation or
any public company in public places where such discussions can be overheard. ¢ If you become aware of any
unauthorized disclosure of material nonpublic information, whether inadvertent or otherwise, you should report such
disclosure immediately to the Chief Financial Officer. Twenty- Twenty Hindsight — Remember, anyone scrutinizing your
transactions will be doing so after the fact, with the benefit of hindsight. As a practical matter, before engaging in any
transaction, you should carefully consider how enforcement authorities and others might view the transaction in
hindsight. When Information is “ Public ” — If you are aware of material nonpublic information, you may not trade until
the information has been disclosed broadly to the marketplace (such as by press release) and the investing public has had
time to absorb the information fully. To avoid the appearance of impropriety, as a general rule, information should not
be considered fully absorbed by the marketplace until after the second full business day after the information is
disseminated. If, for example, the Corporation were to make an announcement on a Monday, you should not trade in the
Corporation’ s securities until Thursday. If an announcement were made on a Friday, Wednesday generally would be
the first eligible trading day. Transactions by Family Members — As stated above, this Policy also applies to your family
members who reside with you, anyone else who lives in your household and any family members who do not live in your
household but whose transactions in Corporation securities are directed by you or are subject to your influence or
control (such as parents or children who consult with you before they trade in Corporation securities). You are
responsible for the transactions of these other persons and therefore should make them aware of the need to confer with
you before they trade in the Corporation’ s securities. Section 16 Reporting Persons and Required Reports — Certain
directors and officers of the Corporation (the “ Section 16 Reporting Persons ) are subject to Section 16 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ Exchange Act ). The Authorized Officers or their designee will notify
individuals who fall into this category. In addition to being required to file Section 16 reports (Forms 3, 4 and 5), the
Section 16 Reporting Persons are required to file a Form 144 before making an open market sale of the Corporation’ s
securities. Form 144 notifies the SEC of the intention of such individuals to sell the Corporation’ s securities. This form is
the responsibility of the Section 16 Reporting Persons, but is often prepared and filed by the individual’ s broker.
Additional Restrictions on Transactions by Corporate Insiders — Section 16 Reporting Persons and other officers and
key employees of the Corporation who have been designated as “ Corporate Insiders ” by the Authorized Officers, as
well as related parties of such individuals, are subject to additional restrictions on trading Corporation securities as set
out below. The Corporation may also, from time to time, impose on all or an appropriate group of Covered Persons
additional restrictions on trading Corporation securities when circumstances warrant. These additional Covered Persons
restrictions will be communicated by the Authorized Officers or their designee. Additional Procedures; Pre- Clearance
of Permitted Transactions - ALL CORPORATE INSIDERS MUST OBTAIN PRE- CLEARANCE FROM ONE OF
THE AUTHORIZED OFFICERS PRIOR TO MAKING ANY SALE, PURCHASE, STOCK OPTION EXERCISE,
GIFT OR OTHER TRANSACTION IN THE CORPORATION’ S SECURITIES, INCLUDING THE OTHER
TRANSACTIONS THAT MUST BE PRE- CLEARED AS SPECIFIED IN THIS POLICY. A written request for pre-
clearance should be submitted to one of the Authorized Officers in advance of the proposed transaction. A form to
request pre- clearance is attached hereto as Exhibit A. The individual will be advised whether he or she should refrain
from proceeding with the transaction based on information then available to the Authorized Officers or because the
Corporation is in a blackout period as explained in this Policy. Once the request for pre- clearance is granted, the



covered person may proceed with such transaction. However, if the individual is aware of any material, nonpublic
information concerning the Corporation, he or she should refrain from trading, regardless of whether pre- clearance is
obtained. Unless revoked, a grant of permission will normally remain valid until the close of trading five (5) business
days following the day on which it was granted or the stated expiration of the applicable Rule 10bS- 1 plan. If the
transaction does not occur or the Rule 10b5- 1 plan is not entered into during the five- day (5- day) period, pre- clearance
of the transaction must be re- requested. Transactions Under Corporation Plans Restricted Stock Awards / Units. This
Policy does not apply to the vesting of restricted stock, the vesting and settlement of stock units, or the exercise of a tax
withholding right pursuant to which you elect to have the Corporation withhold shares of stock to satisfy tax withholding
requirements upon the vesting of any restricted stock. The Policy does apply, however, to any market sale of shares
underlying a stock award or issued pursuant to stock units. Stock Option Exercises. This Policy does not apply to the
exercise of an employee stock option acquired pursuant to the Corporation’ s plans, or to the exercise of a tax
withholding right pursuant to which a person has elected to have the Corporation withhold shares subject to an option to
satisfy tax withholding requirements. This Policy does apply, however, to any sale of stock as part of a broker- assisted
cashless exercise of an option, or any other market sale for the purpose of generating the cash needed to pay the exercise
price of an option. Employee Stock Purchase Plan Transactions — This Policy does not apply to purchases of securities in
the Corporation’ s employee stock purchase plan (“ ESPP ”) resulting from your periodic contribution of money to the
plan pursuant to the election you made at the time of your enrollment in the ESPP. This Policy also does not apply to
purchases of securities resulting from lump sum contributions to the ESPP, provided that you elected to participate by
lump sum payment at the beginning of the applicable enrollment period. This Policy does apply, however, to your
election to participate in the ESPP for any enrollment period, and to your sales of securities purchased pursuant to the
ESPP. Dividend Reinvestment Plan. This Policy does not apply to purchases of securities under the Corporations
dividend reinvestment plan resulting from your reinvestment of dividends paid on the Corporation’ s securities. This
Policy does apply, however, to voluntary purchases of securities resulting from additional contributions you choose to
make to the dividend reinvestment plan, and to your election to participate in the plan or increase your level of
participation in the plan. This Policy also applies to your sale of any securities purchased pursuant to the plan. Other
Similar Transactions. Any other purchase of securities from the Corporation or sales of securities to the Corporation are
not subject to this Policy. Special and Prohibited Transactions The Board has determined that there is a heightened
legal risk and / or the appearance of improper or inappropriate conduct if the persons subject to this Policy engage in
certain types of transactions. It therefore is the Corporation’ s policy that any persons covered by this Policy may not
engage in any of the following transactions, or should otherwise consider the Corporation’ s preferences as described
below: Short- Swing Trading Restrictions — Section 16 Reporting Persons must also comply with the reporting
obligations and limitations on short- swing trading transactions imposed by Section 16 of the Exchange Act. Among
other things, Section 16 requires Section 16 Reporting Persons to pay over to the Corporation any profit realized from
any purchase and sale (in either order) of the Corporation’ s securities that occur within six months of each other.
Section 16 and its related rules are very complex, and the Corporation encourages consultation with Authorized
Officers. Additional Prohibited Transactions — The Corporation considers it improper and inappropriate for any
director, officer or other employee of the Corporation to engage in short- term or speculative transactions in the
Corporation’ s securities. It therefore is the Corporation’ s policy that directors, officers and other employees may not
engage in any of the following transactions: Short- term Trading — Short- term trading of the Corporation’ s securities
may be distracting and may unduly focus on the Corporation’ s short- term stock market performance instead of the
Corporation’ s long- term business objectives. For these reasons, any director, officer or employee of the Corporation
who purchases Corporation securities in the open market may not sell any Corporation securities of the same class
during the six (6) months following the purchase (or vice versa). Short Sales — Short sales of the Corporation’ s securities
evidence an expectation on the part of the seller that the securities will decline in value, and therefore signal to the
market that the seller has no confidence in the Corporation or its short- term prospects. In addition, short sales may
reduce the seller’ s incentive to improve the Corporation’ s performance. For these reasons, short sales of the
Corporation’ s securities are prohibited by this Policy. Publicly- Traded Options — A transaction in public options is, in
effect, a bet on the short- term movement of the Corporation’ s stock and therefore creates the appearance that the
director or employee is trading based on inside information. Transactions in public options also may focus the director’ s
or employee’ s attention on short- term performance at the expense of the Corporation’ s long- term objectives.
Accordingly, transactions in puts, calls or other derivative securities with a party other than the Corporation are
prohibited by this Policy. Hedging Transactions — Certain forms of hedging or monetization transactions allow a
director or employee to lock in much of the value of his or her stock holdings, often in exchange for all or part of the
potential for upside appreciation in the stock. These transactions allow the director or employee to continue to own the
covered securities, but without the full risks and rewards of ownership. When that occurs, the director or employee may
no longer have the same objectives as the Corporation’ s other shareholders. Accordingly, all employees and directors of
the Corporation, and their designees, are prohibited from purchasing any financial instruments (including prepaid
variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars and exchange funds), engaging in limit orders or other pre- arranged
transactions that execute automatically (except for “ same- day ” limit orders and approved 10b5- 1 plans), or otherwise
engaging in transactions that are designed to or have the effect of hedging or offsetting any decrease in the market value
of equity securities of the Corporation granted to them or held, direct or indirectly, by them. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, employees and directors of the Corporation and their designees, may engage in general portfolio
diversification transactions or investments in broad- based index funds. Margin Accounts and Pledges — Securities held



in a margin account may be sold by the broker without the customer’ s consent if the customer fails to meet a margin
call. Similarly, securities pledged (or hypothecated) as collateral for a loan may be sold in foreclosure if the borrower
defaults on the loan. Because a margin sale or foreclosure sale may occur at a time when the pledgor is aware of material
nonpublic information or otherwise is not permitted to trade in the Corporation’ s securities, directors, officers and
other employees are prohibited from holding Corporation securities in a margin account or making any new or
additional pledges of Corporation securities as collateral for a loan. * Standing and Limit Orders. Standing and limit
orders (except standing and limit orders under approved Rule 10b5- 1 Plans, as described below) create heightened risks
for insider trading violations similar to the use of margin accounts. There is no control over the timing of purchases or
sales that result from standing instructions to a broker, and as a result the broker could execute a transaction when a
director, officer or other employee is in possession of material nonpublic information. The Corporation therefore
discourages placing standing or limit orders on the Corporation’ s securities. If a person subject to this Policy
determines that they must use a standing order or limit order, the order should be limited to short duration and should
otherwise comply with the restrictions and procedures outlined below under the heading “ Additional Procedures. ”
Quarterly Blackout Periods — A company’ s quarterly earnings are almost always viewed as material to investors.
Accordingly, this Policy prohibits all Corporate Insiders from trading in the Corporation’ s securities or providing
instructions related to trading in the Corporation’ s securities during the period commencing the last day of the
Corporation’ s quarter and until the second day after the quarterly earnings release. This is generally known as the “
blackout period. ” Event- Specific Blackout Periods — The Corporation reserves the right to impose trading blackout
periods from time to time when, in the judgment of the Corporation, a blackout period is warranted. A blackout period
may be imposed for any reason, including, but not limited to, the Corporation’ s involvement in a material transaction,
the anticipated issuance of interim earnings guidance, or other material public announcements, occurrences, or
developments. The existence of an event- specific blackout period may not be announced, or may be announced only to
those who are aware of the transaction or event giving rise to the blackout period. If you are made aware of the existence
of an event- specific blackout period, you should not disclose the existence of such blackout period to any other person.
Individuals that are subject to event- specific blackout periods will be contacted when these periods are instituted.
Exceptions. The quarterly blackout periods and event- specific blackout periods stated above do not apply to those
transactions to which this Policy does not apply, as described above under the heading “ Transactions Under
Corporation Plans. ” Further, the requirement for pre- clearance, the quarterly trading restrictions and event- specific
trading restrictions do not apply to transactions conducted pursuant to approved Rule 10b5- 1 plans, described under
the heading “ Rule 10bS- 1 Plans. ” U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“ SEC ) Rule 10bS- 1 provides an
affirmative defense from insider trading liability under the federal securities laws for trading plans that meet certain
requirements. In general, a 10b5- 1 plan must be entered into (or modified) in good faith, not as part of a plan or scheme
to evade the prohibitions of the insider trading rules and during a time when you are not aware of material nonpublic
information. Transactions by Corporate Insiders in securities of the Corporation that are executed pursuant to a plan (or
modifications thereto) designed to comply with Rule 10bS- 1 and pre- cleared in writing by one of the Authorized
Officers are not subject to prohibition on trading on the basis of material nonpublic information or further pre-
clearance approval process or blackout periods. Corporate Insiders must still adhere to this pre- clearance procedure
even when, for example, he or she is assured that a major law firm has reviewed and approved the trading arrangements
that a brokerage firm or bank may be suggesting. Transactions effected under a pre- cleared 10b5- 1 plan will not
require further pre- clearance at the time of the transactions if the plan specifies the dates, prices and amounts of the
contemplated trades, or establishes a formula for determining the dates, prices and amounts in accordance with SEC
rules. The third party effecting transactions on behalf of a Corporate Insider under such 10bS- 1 plan should be
instructed to send duplicate confirmations of all such transactions to the Authorized Officers by the end of the day on
which each transaction occurs. Once the plan is adopted, you must not exercise any influence over the securities subject
to the plan, including the amount of securities to be traded, the price at which they are traded or the date of the trade.
The plan must either specify (including by formula) the amount, pricing and timing of the transactions in advance or
delegate discretion on those matters to an independent party. The plan must also provide for a cooling- off period for at
least the minimum period required under, and must comply with all other applicable provisions of, Rule 10b5- 1 (c) of
the Exchange Act. Post- Termination Transactions This Policy continues to apply to your transactions in Corporation
securities even after you have terminated your employment. If you are in possession of material nonpublic information
when your employment terminates, you may not trade in Corporation securities until that information has become
public or is no longer material. Consequences Insider trading violations are pursued vigorously by the SEC and the U. S.
Attorneys and are punished severely. While the regulatory authorities concentrate their efforts on the individuals who
trade, or who tip inside information to others who trade, the federal securities laws also impose potential liability on
companies and other “ controlling persons ” if they fail to take reasonable steps to prevent insider trading by their
personnel. Accordingly, if the Corporation fails to take appropriate steps to prevent insider trading, the Corporation and
its directors, officers and other supervisory personnel may be subject to “ controlling person ” liability and potential civil
and criminal penalties. The consequences of an insider trading violation can be severe: Traders and Tippers — A person
(or their tippees) who trades on inside information is subject to a civil penalty of up to three times the profit gained or
loss avoided, a criminal fine (no matter how small the profit), and a jail term. A director or employee who tips
information to a person who then trades is subject to the same penalties as the tippee, even if the director or employee
did not trade and did not profit from the tippee’ s trading. Control Persons — If the Corporation fails to take appropriate
steps to prevent illegal insider trading, the Corporation and its directors, officers, and other supervisory personnel may



be subject to liability, including both civil and criminal penalties and imprisonment. Corporation- Imposed Sanctions —
An employee’ s failure to comply with the Corporation’ s Insider Trading Policy may also subject the employee to
sanctions imposed by the Corporation, including dismissal for cause, whether or not the employee’ s failure to comply
results in a violation of law. Needless to say, a violation of law, or even an SEC investigation that does not result in
prosecution, can tarnish one’ s reputation and irreparably damage a career. The Corporation will take every allegation
of improper trading very seriously. Corporation Assistance Any person who has a question about this Policy or its
application to any proposed transaction may obtain additional guidance from the Authorized Officers. Ultimately,
however, the responsibility for adhering to this Policy and avoiding unlawful transactions rests with the individual
director or employee, and not with the Corporation. All employees of the Corporation must certify their understanding
of, and intent to comply with, this Policy. A copy of the certification that all such employees must sign is enclosed. Exhibit
21. 1 LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES1Name Jurisdiction First Internet Bank of Indiana2IndianaFirst Internet Public Finance Corp.
3IndianaSPF15, Inc. 3Indiana 1 Omits one wholly- owned subsidiary of First
Internet Bank of Indiana that does not constitute a significant subsidiary. 2 Also does business as ““ First Internet Bank . 3
Indirect subsidiary wholly- owned by First Internet Bank of Indiana. Exhibit 23. 1 We hereby consent to the incorporation by
reference in the Registration Statements on Form S- 8 (File Nos. 333- 265062 and 333- 188741), Form S- 3 (File No. 333-
276150), and Form S- 4 (File No . 333- 260282) of First Internet Bancorp (the “ Company ), of our reports dated March 4+3-12,
2624-2025 on the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-and for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2623-2024 . We also consent to the incorporation by reference into those
registrattorrRegistration statements-Statements of our report dated March 43-12 , 2624-2025 , on our audit of the internal
control over financial reporting of the Company as of December 31, 2823-2024 , which report is included in this Annual Report
on Form 10- K. Exhibit 24. 1 Power of Attorney of Director The undersigned director of First Internet Bancorp, an Indiana
corporation (the “ Company ), does hereby make, constitute and appoint David B. Becker and Kenneth J. Lovik, and either of
them, the undersigned’ s true and lawful attorneys - in - fact, with power of substitution, for the undersigned and in the
undersigned’ s name, place and stead, to sign and affix the undersigned’ s name as such director and / or officer of said
corporation to an Annual Report on Form 10- K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2623-2024 or other applicable form, and
all amendments thereto, to be filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission, Washington, D. C., under
the Securities Act of 1934, as amended, with all exhibits thereto and other supporting documents, with said Commission,
granting unto said attorneys - in - fact, and either of them, full power and authority to do and perform any and all acts necessary
or incidental to the performance and execution of the powers herein expressly granted. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the
undersigned has hereunto set the undersigned’ s hand this +3th-12th day of March, 2624-2025 . / s / Aasif BadeAasif Bade /s /
Justin P. ChristianJustin P. Christian / s / Ann Colussi DeeAnn Colussi Dee FIRST INTERNET BANCORP /s / John K. Keach
Jr. John K. Keach Jr. /s / Joseph A. FenechJoseph A. Fenech /s /Jean L. WojtowiczJean L. Wojtowicz /s / Michele L.
RainesMichele L. Raines Exhibit 31. 1 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 (a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 I, David B. Becker,
certify that: 1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10- K of First Internet Bancorp; 2. Based on my knowledge, this
report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant' s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: a. Designed such
disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; b. Designed such internal control over
financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant' s
disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and d. Disclosed in this report any
change in the registrant' s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant' s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant' s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant' s internal control over financial reporting; and 5. The registrant' s other certifying officer and I
have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant' s auditors and
the audit committee of registrant' s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): a. All significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant' s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and b. Any
fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant' s
internal control over financial reporting. Date: March 43-12 , 2624-2025 / s / David B. BeckerDavid B. Becker, Chief Executive
Officer Exhibit 31. 2 Certification by the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 I, Kenneth J. Lovik, certify that: Date: March 43
12 , 2624-2025 / s / Kenneth J. LovikKenneth J. Lovik, Chief Financial Officer Exhibit 32. 1 CERTIFICATION PURSUANT
TO 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF




2002 In connection with the Annual Report of First Internet Bancorp (the “ Company") on Form 10- K for the period ended
December 31, 2623-2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on lhc date hereof (the “ Report ), each of the
undersigned, certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 9()6 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act 0 £2002, that: (1)
The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) The
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company. / s / David B. BeckerDavid B. BeckerChief Executive OfficerMarch 43-12 , 2624-2025 / s / Kenneth J.
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